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Corporate proFILe
anD STrUCTUre

ConnectCounty Holdings Berhad (“CCHB” or “the Company”) is an investment holding company headquartered in Kuala 
Lumpur, Malaysia. The Company’s oversees its wholly owned subsidiaries, collectively known as the Rapid Conn Group (“rCG”), 
which consists of Rapid Conn (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd. (“rCC”), Rapid Conn Inc. (“rCI”), and Rapid Conn (S) Pte. Ltd. (“rCS”). 
Shenzhen Rapid Power Co. Ltd. (“rCp”) and Shenzhen Rapid Resin Co. Ltd. (“rCr”) are sub-subsidiaries of the Company, 
being majority-owned by RCC. The Company, together with its subsidiaries and sub-subsidiaries, are collectively known as 
the Group (“Group”).

The principal activities of its subsidiaries are that of design, manufacture, services, sales, and marketing of cables, wires, 
connectors and related products, with customers ranging from medium sized companies to large multinational corporations 
operating in key industries that include: connected homes and offices (set-top boxes and broadband), smart connected devices 
(i.e. mobile and wearables), white goods, medical, interactive kiosks, security and automotive.

Shenzhen Rapid Power Co. Ltd. was formerly known as Rapid Power (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd. The change of name was approved 
by the State Administration of Industry and Commerce (“SaIC”) on 27 September 2016. RCP and RCR were incorporated on 
12 February 2015 and 23 September 2016 respectively.

Rapid Conn Group 
(Interconnect Solutions 

Provider)

Rapid Conn (S) Pte. Ltd.
(Singapore)

Rapid Conn (Shenzhen) 
Co. Ltd.(China)

Rapid Conn Inc.(USA)

Shenzhen Rapid Power 
Co. Ltd.

Shenzhen Rapid Resin 
Co. Ltd. (China)

Borderless Fame Sdn 
Bhd (Dormant)

CCHB

Rapid Conn 
Interconnect (M) Sdn 

Bhd (Dormant)

100%

100%

80% 80%
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the rapid Conn Group (“rCG”)

A key aspect of RCG’s business model is providing vertically integrated services for in-house parts and sourcing activities. Its 
advanced interconnect and cable solutions cater for diverse industries and applications globally. Its manufacturing operations 
and Research and Development (“r&D”) activities are undertaken by its Shenzhen-based plant, RCC which is highly automated. 
R&D activities are also undertaken by the US-based company, RCI, which also does customisation for its customers within its 
own portfolio on an ad-hoc basis. 

As an integrated provider of interconnect solutions, we provide solutions covering:

1. Synchronisation of both supply and demand along the lines of production in order to improve production lead time. This 
is achieved by reducing RCG’s overall reliance on suppliers for raw materials and critical component parts by way of 
vertical integration;

2. Value-added products and services where we enhance industry standard cables and connectors in terms of additional 
features, improved product performance and product quality; and

3. Customization of products where we provide product development inclusive of conceptualization, design, prototyping, 
tool building, testing, debugging and tooling, all of which are undertaken based on our customers’ requirements.

The principal activity of RCP is to engage in manufacturing of high-end cable extrusion, while the principal activity of RCR is to 
engage in the production, manufacturing, value-added processing, sale and after-sales services of Thermoplastic Elastomers 
(“tpe”) materials. They will play a major role in realising the Group’s vertical integration objectives.

Both RCP and RCR commenced business operations in November 2016.

The Company’s subsidiaries and sub-subsidiaries operate as independent and self-contained business units. They maintain and 
manage their own portfolio of customers and industrial markets (both domestically and globally), and assume direct ownership 
and responsibility over the sales and marketing of cables, connectors and related products.

For more information on the Rapid Conn Group, please go to its official website: http://www.rapidconn.org/.

CorPoraTe ProfIle anD STrUCTUre
(cont’d)
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CHaIrMaN’S 
STaTemenT

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I am pleased to present to you the Annual Report and the 
Audited Financial Statements of ConnectCounty Holdings Berhad (“CCHB” or the “Company”) for 
the financial year ended 31 December 2016 (“FYE 2016”).

For the most part of 2016, the Group had to adjust to the rising material and commodity prices, and stiff competition from 
its competitors particularly in the highly lucrative automotive, white goods and smart connected devices markets. However, 
the industry continued to register volume growth during the year under review, as global demand for cable and interconnect 
products continue to remain strong. The Group’s presence in its core market, the Connected Homes and Offices sector, has 
continued to remain robust with room for further growth.

aN oVerVIeW oF tHe GroUp’S FINaNCIaL perForMaNCe

For FYE 2016, the Group attained its highest ever turnover at RM81.7 million in its 13-year history since incorporation. This was a 
26% increase compared to its turnover of RM64.9 million that was achieved in 2015. The increase in turnover at Group level can 
be seen in the increase in overall sales experienced by all subsidiaries within the Rapid Conn Group over the preceding financial 
year, i.e. Rapid Conn (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd. (China) (“rCC”) recorded a 70.1% increase over the preceding year, while Rapid Conn 
(S) Pte. Ltd. (Singapore) (“rCS”), a 19.5% increase and Rapid Conn Inc. (United States of America) (“rCI”), a 13% increase. 

However, despite the high turnover, we recorded relatively lower margins due to the increase of higher sales of low margin 
products from RCC, which diluted the higher margins from high-margin product sales generated by RCI and RCS. Another 
key factor is the discounts in pricing given by the Group to its key customers on their request. This “price-down” continues to 
pose a challenge to the Group. This is being addressed by several strategic initiatives currently undertaken by the Group, via 
strategic initiatives such as the vertical integration and automation programs which are under way. 

The Group also registered a lower profit before tax of RM94,657/- compared to the preceding year of RM2.82 million. This 
was largely due to the “one off” fixed costs incurred during the year under review such as the written-off of bad debts, the 
corporate exercise fees related to the proposed acquisition of Kejuruteraan Asastera Sdn. Bhd. and the adverse impact on 
realised, non-trade foreign exchange. Additionally, the operating costs incurred by RCC’s subsidiaries, Shenzhen Rapid Power 
Co. Ltd. (“rCp”) and Shenzhen Rapid Resin Co. Ltd. (“rCr”), were also key contributors to the Group’s disproportionate 
increased in its overall fixed costs. Although both RCP and RCR commenced operations in November 2016, they only started 
trading in February 2017.

operatIoNS oVerVIeW

For the year under review, the Group continued its strategy on increasing its market share in its core market, i.e. Connected 
Homes and Offices, while increasing its market penetration in the highly competitive but lucrative white goods, smart connected 
devices and automotive markets. This will not only afford the Company and its subsidiaries a higher economies of scale due 
to increased volumes of production (and correspondingly lower per unit costs of manufacturing), but also improve its overall 
profitability (i.e. gross profit margins) as these markets involve high-margin products.

The Group is also taking steps to improve and strengthen its customer relations management in order to further enhance its 
already excellent business relationships with its key customers, while taking appropriate steps to improve its business ties with 
its other customers within its portfolio, and seeking new customers to expand its market share in the various sectors in the 
cable and interconnect markets.

Moving forward, as the Group becomes more self–reliant (due to backward integration), we will be able to ensure consistently 
high product quality, keeping costs low and manageable, and enhancing the delivery process (for example reducing delivery 
lead times), while increasing our market share and expanding the scope of our current business with our present customers. 
During the year under review, the Group had invested around RM2.68 million as working capital for its backward vertical 
integration programs.

For more details on the Group’s financial performance and operations, including its various strategic and marketing initiatives, 
please refer to the Statement of Management Discussion and Analysis in this Annual Report.
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CHaIrman’S STaTemenT
(cont’d)

SIGNIFICaNt Corporate DeVeLopMeNtS

(a) On 15 June 2016, the Company had completed the following listing of and quotation for the following securities on ACE 
Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad:-

(i) 649,821,600  Irredeemable Convertible Preference Shares (“ICpS”) issued pursuant to the Rights Issue of ICPS;
(ii) 43,321,388 Warrants-B issued pursuant to the Rights Issue of ICPS; and
(iii) 9,223,144 additional Warrants-A issued pursuant to the relevant adjustment clauses of the deed poll governing 

the Warrants-A, dated 24 June 2011.

(b) On 4 July 2016, Rapid Conn Inc. (“rCI”) had accepted an award of contract from DirecTV Latin America LLC to undertake 
the manufacturing of High-Definition on Multimedia Interface (“HDMI”) devices for years 2017 and 2018. The contract 
will commence from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2018.

(c) On 14 September 2016, Rapid Conn Inc. (“rCI”) had entered into a Distribution Agreement with Venus Group Inc. 
(“Venus”) for the distribution of charging station products manufactured or distributed by RCI.

(d) On 23 September 2016, RCC incorporated a new majority-owned subsidiary (i.e. 80% ownership) in China, namely RCR. 
RCR was formerly known as Rapid Conn (Shenzhen) Plastic Resins Technology Co. Ltd.

appreCIatIoN

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I wish to extend my sincere thanks to all our valued customers, suppliers, financiers, business 
associates, Government authorities and shareholders for their continue support, co-operation and confidence in the Group. 
I would also like to convey my sincere appreciation and gratitude to my fellow Directors (past and present), the Management 
and staff for their dedication and commitment to the Company.

Chang Choon Ming
Non-Independent Non-Executive Chairman
27 March 2017
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BoarD oF
DIreCTorS’ ProfIle

CHaNG CHooN MING
Non-Independent Non-Executive Chairman

Malaysian, Male, aged 39

Date of appointment as Director : 21 October 2016

Length of Service since the Date of  
appointment (as at 31 March 2017)

: 5 months

Board Committee(s) Served on : None

academic/ professional Qualification(s)  
and Certification(s)

: Bachelor of Science in Computer Science, Oxford Brookes University

present Directorship(s) in other public  
Listed and Non-Listed public Companies

: None

Family relationship with any Director  
and/or  Substantial Shareholder of the 
Company

: No family relationship with any director and/or substantial shareholder 
of ConnectCounty Holdings Berhad

Working experience:
 
Mr. Chang commenced his career where he was tasked with the planning and implementation of sales and marketing strategies. 
Over the last fifteen (15) years, he has also accumulated experience in risk management and has a proven ability to successfully 
analyse an organisation’s marketing requirements, identify potential opportunities, and develop innovative strategies.

time Committed:

Mr. Chang attended one (1) Board of Directors’ Meeting of the Company held in the financial year ended 2016, during his 
tenure as the Director of the Company. 
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aNG CHUaNG JUaY
Executive Deputy Chairman 

Singaporean, Male, aged 59

Date of appointment as Director : 18 August 2003

Length of Service since the Date of  
appointment (as at 31 March 2017)

: 13 years 7 months

Board Committee(s) Served on : •	 Chairman	of	the	Risk	Management	Committee
•	 Member	of	the	Remuneration	Committee

academic/ professional Qualification(s)  
and Certification(s)

: Bachelor Degree in Engineering from the National University of 
Singapore

present Directorship(s) in other public  
Listed and Non-Listed public Companies

: None

Family relationship with any Director  
and/or  Substantial Shareholder of the 
Company

: No family relationship with any director and/or substantial shareholder 
of ConnectCounty Holdings Berhad

Working experience:
 
Mr. Ang began his career with Wearnes Technology as the Head of its Printed Circuit Board assembly operations. He remained 
with the Company for six (6) years throughout which he obtained extensive exposure in surface mount technology, floppy disk 
drive (“FDD”) and hard disk drive operation. He was seconded to Taiwan to head the production unit and was subsequently 
sent to China to set up the FDD operation. He also worked as the Managing Director of a United Kingdom (“UK”) information 
technology (“It”) company based in Singapore specialising in networking.

After the takeover of the UK IT company by another firm, he became a consultant to NS-Tech Co. Ltd.  His talents and natural 
drive was spotted by the founding member of NS-Tech Co. Ltd. and was roped in to assist in the expansion into the United 
States of America and set up a presence in Singapore.  Not satisfied with merely being a subcontractor for Original Equipment 
Manufacturer and with his mind firmly set on working in the forefront technology with multinational companies, he decided to 
pursue his own goals and visions by divesting his interests in NS-Tech Co. Ltd. and thereafter, formed ConnectCounty Holdings 
Berhad (“CCHB”). 

time Committed:

Mr. Ang attended seven (7) out of the eight (8) Board of Directors’ Meetings of the Company held in the financial year ended 2016.

boarD of DIreCTorS’ ProfIle
(cont’d)
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boarD of DIreCTorS’ ProfIle
(cont’d)

HoNG CHeoNG LIaNG
Independent Non-Executive Director

Malaysian, Male, aged 38

Date of appointment as Director : 30 October 2014

Length of Service since the Date of  
appointment (as at 31 March 2017)

: 2 years 5 months

Board Committee(s) Served on : •	 Chairman	of	the	Audit	Committee
•	 Member	of	the	Nomination	Committee
•	 Member	of	the	Remuneration	Committee
•	 Member	of	the	Risk	Management	Committee

academic/ professional Qualification(s)  
and Certification(s)

: •	 Bachelor	of	Management	(Hons)
 Universiti Tun Abdul Razak, Kelana Jaya, Selangor, Malaysia 
•	 Masters	of	Business	Administration
 University of South Australia, Adelaide, South Australia, Australia
•	 Member	of	the	Malaysian	Institute	of	Accountants	(“MIa”) 
•	 Member	of	the	Certified	Public	Accountants,	Australia	(“Cpa”) 
•	 An	Associate	Member	of	 the	 Institute	of	 Internal	Auditors	 	 in	

Malaysia

present Directorship(s) in other public  
Listed and Non-Listed public Companies

: K-Star Sports Limited (Listed)

Family relationship with any Director  
and/or  Substantial Shareholder of the 
Company

: No family relationship with any director and/or substantial shareholder 
of ConnectCounty Holdings Berhad

Working experience:
 
Mr. Hong commenced his career as an audit assistant with Russell Bedford LC & Company (“rBLC”) in 2004. He is well 
exposed in the area of internal audits of Public Listed Companies (“pLCs”), external financial audits, tax, liquidation, financial 
modeling and corporate advisory. Some of his significant assignments include performing internal audits for various PLCs, 
conducting various financial due diligences for merger and acquisition exercise and developing a financial model for a national 
level High Impact Project.

He left RBLC to join a boutique investment advisory firm as Assistant Vice President in 2008, where he obtained his corporate 
finance and management experiences. He was involved in various assignments in advising clients who seek corporate finance 
advice locally and abroad. He was also assigned to assist the management of a leading shopping mall in Kuala Lumpur.

After his stint in the investment advisory firm, he moved on to provide corporate and management advisory services as well as 
internal audit and risk management services to small medium enterprises and PLCs. Since then he has also acted as Group 
Accountant of a PLC, took on the role as Financial Controller of an AIM listed company, and acted as Finance Manager of a 
large manufacturing corporation based in China.

time Committed:

Mr. Hong attended all eight (8) Board of Directors’ Meeting of the Company held in the financial year ended 2016.
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MS LIM Bee SaN
Independent Non-Executive Director

Malaysian, Female, aged 48

Date of appointment as Director : 19 July 2016

Length of Service since the Date of  
appointment (as at 31 March 2017)

: 8 months

Board Committee(s) Served on : •	 Chairperson	of	the	Remuneration	Committee
•	 Member	of	the	Audit	Committee
•	 Member	of	the	Nomination	Committee

academic/ professional Qualification(s)  
and Certification(s)

: •	 BA	 (Hons)	 Law,	Accounting	&	 Finance	 from	Oxford	Brookes	
University, United Kingdom

•	 Barrister-at-Law	(Middle	Temple,	London)

present Directorship(s) in other public  
Listed and Non-Listed public Companies

: None

Family relationship with any Director  
and/or  Substantial Shareholder of the 
Company

: No family relationship with any director and/or substantial shareholder 
of ConnectCounty Holdings Berhad

Working experience:
 
Ms. Lim had previously practiced in two (2) legal firms as a legal assistant from years 1996 to 1999. She became a partner of a 
legal firm from 2000 to 2006. She is the Founding Partner of Messra. The Law Chambers of Yeap & Lim which was established 
since 2006.

time Committed:

Ms. Lim attended all three (3) Board of Directors’ Meetings of the Company held in the financial year ended 2016 during her 
tenure as a Director of the Company. 

 

boarD of DIreCTorS’ ProfIle
(cont’d)
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boarD of DIreCTorS’ ProfIle
(cont’d)

MoK SHIaW HaNG
Independent, Non-Executive Director

Malaysian, Male, aged 43

Date of appointment as Director : 21 October 2016

Length of Service since the Date of  
appointment (as at 31 March 2017)

: 5 months

Board Committee(s) Served on : •	 Chairman	of	the	Nomination	Committee
•	 Member	of	the	Audit	Committee

academic/ professional Qualification(s)  
and Certification(s)

: Bachelor of Science in Business Administration, University of Kansas

present Directorship(s) in other public  
Listed and Non-Listed public Companies

: None

Family relationship with any Director  
and/or  Substantial Shareholder of the 
Company

: No family relationship with any director and/or substantial shareholder 
of ConnectCounty Holdings Berhad

Working experience:
 
Mr. Mok has more than fifteen (15) years of experience in sales and marketing. He started his career as a Sales Executive in 
Simen Utama Sdn. Bhd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Lafarge Malayan Cement Berhad in 1997. He was later promoted to 
Sales Manager in 2001, where he led the sales teams and worked closely with the marketing department in formulation of sales 
strategies. His career in the company allowed him to gain extensive knowledge of sales and marketing process. 

Subsequently, he joined a subsidiary of Hume Industries Berhad in 2012 as a pioneer of its sales department. Being the Senior 
Manager, he was actively involved in every part of the division’s operations and was responsible for hiring of regional managers, 
development of sales strategies, project management as well as training of sales personnel, while simultaneously juggling with 
the responsibilities as the Director in two (2) private limited companies in the business of furniture and building materials trading. 
The division played a significant role in enabling Hume Industries to eventually establish its presence in new markets in the 
Northern and Center regions of Malaysia.

time Committed:

Mr. Mok attended one (1) Board of Directors’ Meeting of the Company held in the financial year ended 2016, during his tenure 
as a Director of the Company.

NoteS:

1. CoNFLICt oF INtereSt 

 None of the Directors of the Company has any conflict of interest with the Company, or the Group. 

2. CoNVICtIoNS For oFFeNCeS aND pUBLIC SaNCtIoN or peNaLtY IMpoSeD BY tHe reLeVaNt 
reGULatorY BoDIeS

 (Within the past five (5) years, other than traffic offences) 

 None of the Directors has any convictions for offences within the past five (5) years, other than traffic offence, if any, nor 
any public sanction or penalty imposed by the relevant regulatory bodies during the financial year ended 31 December 
2016.
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SeNIor MaNaGeMeNt’S (CorPoraTe) ProfIle
the Senior Management team is headed by the Company’s executive Deputy Chairman, 
Mr. ang Chuang Juay, who is also the Group’s Chief executive officer.

BaLaJI raGHUNatHaN
Vice President, Group Engineering 
and Research & Development
Vice President of Operations, Rapid Conn Inc. 
Indian National, US Permanent Resident, Male, aged 41

Date of employment : 28 June 2004

Directorship Held : Rapid Conn Inc. (“rCI”),
 United States of America (“USa”)

Qualification(s)/Certification(s) :
1. Bachelor in Mechanical Engineering, Vellore Institute of 

Technology, India
2. Masters in Industrial Engineering, State University, USA

Working experience :

Mr. Balaji Raghunathan graduated with a Bachelor Degree in 
Mechanical Engineering from the Vellore Institute of Technology, 
Tamil Nadu, India in 1996. He graduated with honours, which 
earned him a Silver Medal award from the University. In 1999, 
he went on for further studies and completed his Masters 
in Industrial Engineering with special focus on Production 
Systems from the State University of New York, Buffalo, New 
York, USA and graduated in 2001.

Mr. Balaji started his career in 1996 working for a leading 
automotive turbo charger manufacturing company in India. 
He gained valuable knowledge in manufacturing process 
and operations during his first three (3) years before opting 
to pursue his Masters Degree in the USA. During that time, 
Mr. Balaji was an intern at General Motors automotive plant in 
Buffalo, New York. He further honed his skills in manufacturing 
technologies in the world’s largest engine manufacturing plants 
of General Motors.

Upon graduation, Mr. Balaji started as a supplier and a process 
and quality control engineer for Hughes Network Systems, 
Maryland, USA in 2001. He left Hughes in 2004 to join RCI, 
USA. His skills were recognised quickly by the Management 
and he was appointed as the RCI’s Vice President of Operations 
in 2008. 

CorINa YoNG
Vice President, Group Business Development
General Manager, Rapid Conn (S) Pte. Ltd. 
Singaporean, Female, aged 54

Date of employment : 13 June 2011

Directorship Held : Rapid Conn (S) Pte. Ltd. (“rCS”)

Qualification(s)/Certification(s) :
1. Post Graduate in Strategic Marketing, Chartered Institute 

of Marketing, United Kingdom (“UK”)
2. Certified Professional Trainer, Workforce Development 

Agency (“WDa”), Singapore

Working experience :

Ms. Corina Yong specialises in building and leading 
integrated sales and marketing, business development and 
operational management in the Information Technology, 
Telecommunications and Financial Services industries. She 
is also a certified Professional Trainer from the Workforce 
Development Authority of Singapore. 

Ms. Corina had a dynamic sales career in the multi-billion life 
insurance industry with American International Assurance 
Ltd. for eight (8) years prior to undertaking a position as 
publisher of a leading automobile magazine, AutoNews. Her 
career in multinational companies saw her holding positions 
as Consultant for Cisco Systems, Head of the Asia Pacific 
Marcoms team in Lenovo, Director of Business Development 
in Sigma Delphi and regional marketing and channel marketing 
roles in Agilent and Racal Data Group. 

Prior to joining RCS, Ms. Corina was a Training Consultant to 
various multinational corporations (“MNCs”). In her regional 
roles with these companies, Ms. Corina travelled extensively 
to the USA and Asia Pacific countries. Her keen perception of 
the country markets enabled her to develop creative branding 
strategies successfully. Her in-depth understanding of the 
markets is demonstrated in her ingenuity to enhance company’s 
branding, and to continuously develop and drive successful 
sales and marketing strategies in these countries.



A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 1 6

13

SenIor manaGemenT’S (CorPoraTe) ProfIle
the Senior Management team is headed by the Company’s executive Deputy Chairman, 
Mr. ang Chuang Juay, who is also the Group’s Chief executive officer. (cont’d)

CLIFForD LIM SaY CHUaN
General Manager, Rapid Conn (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd.
Singaporean, Male, aged 55

Date of employment : 1 March 2013

Directorship Held : Rapid Conn (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd. (“rCC”)

Qualification(s)/Certification(s) :
1. Diploma in Civil Engineering, Singapore Polytechnic
2. NTC 2, ITE, Electrical Fitting

Working experience :

Mr. Clifford has over thirty (30) years of manufacturing 
experience under his belt. 

He started his career with Wearnes Peripherals as a material 
planner in 1984, and was subsequently promoted to material 
controller. 

In 1994, he left Wearnes to join NS-Tech Singapore Pte. Ltd. 
as its Purchasing Manager, where his main responsibility was 
dealing with printed circuit board assembly (“pCBa”) for one of 
NS-Tech’s major customers, Specialix UK, while also assuming 
the role of Marketing Manager where he was responsible for 
servicing the company’s customers. Mr. Clifford was later 
promoted to Vice President and transferred to the company’s 
new China manufacturing facility, NS-Tech (China) Ltd., which 
was set up for the assembly of connectors and cables.

In 2001, Mr. Clifford left NS-Tech to set up and manage his 
own business, a PCBA company, Acetech Industries Pte. Ltd. 
The company’s plant was based in Batam (Indonesia) and had 
4 SMT production lines. The company’s major customer was 
Wincor Nixdorf. The company was subsequently acquired by 
OSI Electronics (“oSI”) in 2011.

Acknowledging Mr. Clifford’s sound management skills as well 
as his experience and technical knowledge in the PCBA sector, 
the management of OSI Electronics appointed Mr. Clifford as 
one of their company’s Director on a two (2)-year contract to 
manage Acetech, where he was responsible for Acetech’s 
entire business operations and revenue.

After fulfilling his contractual obligations with OSI, Mr. Clifford 
left the company in 2013 and joined Rapid Conn (Shenzhen) 
Co. Ltd. as its General Manager and Director.

NICHoLaS CHee tIoNG KING
Group Chief Financial Officer
Malaysian, Male, aged 51

Date of employment : 19 January 2015

Directorship Held : None

Qualification(s)/Certification(s) :
1. Bachelors (Honors) Accountancy, University of Bolton, 

UK
2. Masters of Business Administration,  Preston University, 

USA
3. Postgraduate Diploma in Management, University of 

Lincoln, UK
4. Fellow Member of the Institute of Public Accountants, 

Australia
5. Fellow Member of the Institute of Financial Accountants, 

UK
6. Member of the Malaysian Institute of Management 

 
Working experience :

Mr. Chee has over twenty five (25) years of experience in the 
field of accounting and finance, which includes commercial 
and government financial audits, SOX audit, cost management 
and costing, financial planning & analysis (“Fp&a”), cash 
flow projection, project management and feasibility studies, 
accounting systems, risk management and budgeting.

He started his career with BDO Binder Malaysia in Kuala 
Lumpur, and subsequently worked for various local commercial 
enterprises and overseas-based MNCs, with businesses 
ranging from trading, information and communication 
technology (ICT), to property management/development and 
manufacturing. 

He spent a total of five (5) years in China, from February 2006 to 
January 2011, where he assumed the role of Senior Manager, 
Financial Operations with Fairchild (Suzhou) Semiconductor 
Co. Ltd., a subsidiary of Fairchild International, Inc. (US). In 
September 2008, he left Fairchild Suzhou to join GITI Tire 
(China) Investment Co. Ltd.’s regional headquarters in Shanghai 
as its Regional FP&A Senior Manager.

 

Note:

Save as disclosed above, none of the members of the senior management team has:
1. any directorship in public companies and listed issuers;
2. any family relationship with any directors and/or major shareholders of the Company;
3. any conflict of interest with the Company; 
4. any conviction for offences (other than traffic offences) within the past five (5) years; and
5. any public sanction or penalty imposed by the relevant regulatory bodies during the financial year.
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StateMeNt oN 
manaGemenT DISCUSSIon anD analYSIS

FINaNCIaL reVIeW 2016 aND HIGHLIGHtS – tHe GroUp’S oVeraLL perForMaNCe

The Group’s turnover for the financial year ended 31 December 2016 (“FYe 2016”) has improved considerably over its previous 
financial year result. In terms of financial performance, the Group had recorded an increase in revenue by 26%, over the 
preceding year. 

the Group’s 5-Year revenue trend

FYe
Malaysia

rCC, 
China

rCS,
Singapore

rCI, 
USa

total
revenue

total 
revenue

(USD
equivalent)

Weighted
average
(Forex 
rate)

Gross
Margin

rM’000 rM’000 rM’000 rM’000 rM’000 USD’000 rM:USD1 %

2016 – 20,946 25,230 35,535 81,711 19,737 4.14 : 1 20.71

2015 – 12,314 21,107 31,456 64,877 16,635 3.90 : 1 24.31

2014 744 9,380 12,162 30,324 52,610 16,089 3.27 : 1 22.48

2013 – 10,083 12,428 30,281 52,792 16,498 3.20 : 1 23.39

2012 95 12,805 12,891 27,735 53,526 17,266 3.10 : 1 18.12

RCC - Rapid Conn (ShenZhen) Co., Ltd.
RCS - Rapid Conn (S) Pte., Ltd
RCI - Rapid Conn Inc.

Sales

For the FYE 2016, the Group recorded a turnover of RM81.7 million, the highest in the Group’s history, as compared to RM64.9 
million (i.e. an increase by 26%) in the previous financial year. It has also exceeded budgeted sales by 9.3%. This was largely 
due to the Group’s aggressive sales campaigns into relatively new (i.e. in terms of market penetration), but key industries like 
automotive and white goods, while increasing its market presence geographically.

The overall increase in sales was mainly due to:-

1. The increase in sales achieved by RCC, in China’s domestic market, due to increased orders from current customers, 
coupled with sales from new customers. 

2. The increase in sales achieved by RCI from its key customers, which occurred in the second half of 2016. RCI experienced 
a 23% increase in revenue in Quarter 3 compared to Quarter 2, and a further increase in revenue in Quarter 4 by 58% 
compared to Quarter 3 of 2016. 

This is a big plus for RCI as these customers are important to the Group in terms of market penetration, both geographically 
and demographically. They also provide a market for our high margin products, an area which the Group is seeking to expand. 

2012

53,526
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81,711

74,774

Group Net Turnover for the FYEs
RM’000
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STaTemenT on manaGemenT DISCUSSIon anD analYSIS
(cont’d)

FINaNCIaL reVIeW 2016 aND HIGHLIGHtS – tHe GroUp’S oVeraLL perForMaNCe (CoNt’D)

Sales (Cont’d)

Recently, the Group through RCI was awarded the following projects by 2 of its key customers:-

1. A 2-year project (for 2017 and 2018) which involves the production of High-Definition Multimedia Interface (“HDMI”) 
cables. 

2.  A plastics and casting project, which will last till 2018. 

These projects will help boost our revenues and profitability as it involves high margin products.

This is also a testament to our key customers’ increasing confidence in our credibility and capabilities – we are not only 
considered to be one of their preferred suppliers, but also a reliable business partner. We will continue to maintain and strengthen 
our business relationship with all our customers, particularly our major customers, by staying focused on our obligations and 
commitment to them.     

Gross profit and Gross profit Margin

The Group recorded a lower gross profit margin at 20.7% in the period ended 31 December 2016 compared to the corresponding 
period ended 31 December 2015 despite of the higher revenue achieved during the period under review. 

This was mainly due to:- 

1. Higher sales of low margin products in the local China market;
2. The general reduction in selling price (i.e. a price down) given to some of our key customers; and
3. Factory overheads (i.e. mainly rental of plant and depreciation) incurred by RCC’s subsidiaries, Shenzhen Rapid Power 

Co., Ltd. (“rCp”) and Shenzhen Rapid Resin Co., Ltd (“rCr”). Both subsidiaries only began trading in February 2017. 
RCC also experienced an increase by almost 57% on average in its monthly factory rental from May through December 
2016.

profit Before tax

In 2016, the Group attained a profit before tax (“pBt”) of RM94,657/- (2015: RM2.82 million). The lower PBT was largely due 
to the professional fees incurred in relation to the proposed acquisition of 51% equity interest in Kejuruteraan Asastera Sdn. 
Bhd. (“KaSB”) and the loss on foreign exchange. Other key contributors were bad debts written off and the accumulated 
operating costs incurred by RCC’s subsidiaries, RCP and RCR. Both RCP and RCR did not generate any revenue during the 
FYE 2016 as they were, during the period, undergoing trial, sample and conditional runs. These costs constituted around 11% 
of the Group’s total fixed costs in 2016.
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12,349
11,827
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YTD 31 December Group Gross Profit 
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18.12%
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24.31% 20.71%

22.10%
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STaTemenT on manaGemenT DISCUSSIon anD analYSIS
(cont’d)

FINaNCIaL reVIeW 2016 aND HIGHLIGHtS – tHe GroUp’S oVeraLL perForMaNCe (CoNt’D)

profit Before tax (Cont’d)

a. Bad Debts Written-off – rCC 

 It is the Group’s policy to write off a bad debt when the related customer invoice is deemed to be uncollectible, after all 
necessary actions that were taken to recover the debt were unsuccessful. However, it is also Management’s policy to 
evaluate and monitor events relating to the bad debt to ascertain if there is a probability of recovery, whether partially 
or in full. In February 2017, we managed to collect almost 39% of a debt which was previously written off as bad. This 
particular debt constituted about 56% of the total bad debts written off in 2016.

b. Start-up and operating Costs Incurred by rCC’s Subsidiaries

 RCP and RCR, the majority-owned subsidiaries of RCC, commenced business in November 2016, but only began 
trading activities in the first quarter of 2017. They are expected to build up their respective portfolio of customers which 
will eventually lead to increased sales in subsequent quarters.

 RCP and RCR will also play a key role in the Group’s backward vertical integration strategy, which is part of the Group’s 
strategic objectives to reduce reliance on suppliers. The key benefits will be faster turnaround time which will greatly 
improve/enhance the delivery process and delivery lead time, better control over quality and overall cost reduction.

c. Corporate exercise Fees

 The fees relate to the proposed acquisition of 51% equity in KASB, which were paid to the various consultants engaged 
by the Company during the course of the exercise. The engagement of these consultants is mandatory under Bursa 
Malaysia Securities Berhad and the Securities Commission of Malaysia’s regulations.

 Following the expiry of the Exclusivity Period in 14 August 2016, the Heads of Agreement (“Hoa”) had lapsed. Subsequently, 
both parties have concluded that it would be in their mutual interest to not extend the Exclusivity Period as they were 
unable to come to an agreement on the terms and conditions for the proposed acquisition.

d. Foreign exchange (“ForeX”)

 The one-off forex loss (non-trade, realised) incurred was mainly due to the Group’s debt restructuring efforts, which saw 
the elimination of intercompany debts at subsidiary level by way of debt assignment, leaving only intercompany debts 
between the subsidiaries and the Company, which were subsequently eliminated by way of a waiver from the Company, 
or the capitalization of the debts. This had virtually eliminated the impact from non-trade forex incurred as the result of 
fluctuating forex rates throughout the financial year.

BUSINeSS DIreCtIoN oF tHe GroUp

Rapid Conn’s resilience in the manufacturing and interconnect industry can be seen in our proven track record of being in the 
business for more than twenty (20) years. An affirmation to our fine finished goods and outstanding sales and aftersales services 
are our top and faithful customers who have stayed with us for the last eight (8) to ten (10) years.

Leveraging on our experience and industrial expertise which we have accumulated over the years in the cable and interconnect 
business, it would be most prudent to harness our resources and core competencies as a springboard to expand sales and to 
increase market penetration, both demographically and regionally, as well as expand our core business into other industry sectors 
(i.e. automotive, white goods, wearables). We will continue to maintain and grow our current market share in the Connected 
Homes & Offices segment, which is still our biggest revenue earner to date.

The Group’s vision statement below communicates, in a nutshell, our strategic objectives and business direction, and underscores 
the importance we place on great teamwork and commitment to succeed in the mindset of every employee of the subsidiaries 
operating within the Group:-

“To be a leading global interconnect solutions provider, harnessing the vast experience and expertise of our R & D team, offering 
the most innovative, yet cost effective, vertically integrated solutions at competitive pricing and quality”
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STaTemenT on manaGemenT DISCUSSIon anD analYSIS
(cont’d)

BUSINeSS DIreCtIoN oF tHe GroUp (CoNt’D)

In order to realise our vision, we are currently focused on certain strategic initiatives which will translate into the Group’s unique 
selling points (“USps”), which in turn will give us a distinct competitive edge over our competitors in this highly dynamic and 
competitive market.

It is expected that the Group’s strategic action plans will also enable the Group achieve the following:-

1. To harness our expertise in our core industry (Connected Homes & Offices), using it as our USPs to secure at least two 
(2) new customers in the same industry;

2. To grow new industries such as Smart Connected Devices, White Goods, Automotive, Medical, ATM, Kiosk & Security, 
while at the same time reduce the Group’s reliance on its core industry, i.e. Connected Homes & Offices, which stood 
at 75% in 2016, though we will still continue to develop and expand our business operations in our core business and 
expand our market share. 

3. To achieve at least a 30% growth in the new industries, namely Smart Connected Devices, White Goods and Automotive.  

BUSINeSS FoCUS aND StrateGIC aCtIoN pLaNS

1. Vertically Integrated Solutions provider

 The Company’s active subsidiaries, collectively known as the Rapid Conn Group (“rCG”), aim to be a fully vertically 
integrated solutions provider in the next two (2) to three (3) years. 

 the benefits of being a Vertically Integrated Solutions provider include:-
a. Eliminating middlemen in the business, thus raising profit margins and increase profitability.
b. Acquiring instant know-how of the supplier’s trade and their teams of experienced workforce, thus learning curve 

will be minimised, while the utilisation of resources can be maximised.
c. Inherit valuable database of supplier’s list of customers which opens up opportunities of cross-selling.
d. Distinct competitive advantage over all our competitors as none of them has yet to provide full integrated solutions.
e. Our customers will also benefit: from faster turnaround time, lower prices and lower probability of quality issues 

occurring – this will result in value for money (“VFM”) for the customer in terms of lower purchase price while deriving 
efficiency and effectiveness of the purchase.

 This business model is an important and distinct USP that elevate us above all our competitors in terms of attractive 
pricing, more efficient order processing and shorter lead time. This will be the Group’s strategic competitive advantage 
which will give us a clear competitive edge over our competitors in the interconnect industry – and this is where the 
Group’s backward integration strategy plays a key role in this initiative.

 Backward Integration

 Backward integration is one form of vertical integration that enables a business to obtain control over its supplies and 
improve supply chain efficiency. As part of the Group’s vertical integration strategy, the Company’s wholly-owned China 
subsidiary, Rapid Conn (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd. (“rCC”) has incorporated two majority-owned subsidiaries so as to gain 
strategic advantages over its competitors. Both subsidiaries are manufacturing entities in their own right and located in 
a separate premise not far from the main plant.

 The diagram below illustrates the entire process that would be undertaken by a fully integrated cable house. By contrast, 
the Group was in the two final stages in the process (with limited cable extrusion capabilities), but with the incorporation 
of RCP and RCR in February 2015 and September 2016 respectively, the Group is able to expand its cable extrusion 
capabilities and production, and control the supply of TPEs.
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PRODUCTION
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BUSINeSS FoCUS aND StrateGIC aCtIoN pLaNS (CoNt’D)

1. Vertically Integrated Solutions provider (Cont’d)

a. Shenzhen rapid power Co. Ltd. (“rCp”)

 RCP’s business focuses solely on cable extrusion operations. It will provide raw cables to RCC, while at the same 
time, it will engage in external trade with its own portfolio of customers. Prior to RCP’s incorporation, the bulk of 
cable extrusion (70%) was outsourced to third parties.

 The Group will continue to invest in enhancing the technology behind this process as it intends to expand the 
current production of high end cables such as HDMI, Universal Serial Bus (“USB”) 3.0, USB3.1, and cables used 
in medical and automotive applications.

b. Shenzhen rapid resin Co. Ltd. (“rCr”)

 RCR is engaged in the production, manufacturing, value-added processing, sale and after-sales services of 
Thermoplastic Elastomers (“tpe”) materials, which is the key raw material in the production of cable casings.

 Additionally, the industry is moving away from traditional Polyvinyl chloride (“pVC”) and Polybutylene terephthalate 
(“pBt”) casing, and slowly replacing them with TPE, Thermoplastic polyurethane (“tpU”) and silicon with halogen 
free base casing. 

2. Vertically Integrated Services

 Our factory offers 100% Vertically Integrated Services for in-house parts and sourcing services:-

a. Excellent sales and customer support services – our sales team are fully supported by a superior team of Customer 
Support Services personnel to ensure efficient and on-time processing of all orders and enquiries.

b. Engineering design and prototyping – for customised solutions, our team of qualified and experienced engineers 
will meet the customers engineering and prototyping needs.

STaTemenT on manaGemenT DISCUSSIon anD analYSIS
(cont’d)
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STaTemenT on manaGemenT DISCUSSIon anD analYSIS
(cont’d)

BUSINeSS FoCUS aND StrateGIC aCtIoN pLaNS (CoNt’D)

2. Vertically Integrated Services (Cont’d)

c. In-house capabilities for some tooling to secure quicker sample response time

d. Fully equipped in-house testing capabilities – a range of Testing Capabilities & Equipment will warrant all our Products 
meet with all the necessary Industry requirements and Customer’s specifications

e. Mass production – trained production team, and a fully equipped plant with automated processes 

f. Our qualified Quality Assurance (“Qa”) team enforces stringent QA processes to ensure 100% Quality Control pass 
rates

g. Global supply chain logistics management – highly experienced Logistics and Customs personnel will assure on-
time delivery of all orders.

3. New and Important product Certification

a. MFi (Made For iphone, ipad & ipod)

•	 Final	certification	was	achieved	in	mid-2015.
•	 This	certification	will	open	up	more	opportunities	in	the	Smart	Connected	Devices	Industry.

b. USB 3.1

•	 Research	&	Development	(“r&D”) are in progress to jump onto this relatively new and potentially huge market 
of data charging cable with Apple leading the way.

•	 Exponential	growth	 is	expected	in	both	the	Connected	Homes	&	Offices	and	Smart	Connected	Devices	
industries.

•	 We	have	started	the	production	of	USB	Type	C	connectors	and	cables

c. tS-16949 

 A Full ISO/TS-16949 Production Line was set up in September 2015. The rigorous TS-16949 Production Line has 
the ability to manufacture products from the Automotive Industry

d. UL Cert No. e321220

 Cable extrusion manufacturing (Shenzhen Rapid Power)

e. UL Cert No. e257769 and UL 257769

 Cable assembly manufacturing

f. HDMI, USB and Serial at attachment (“Sata”) standards

 We are members of HDMI, USB & SATA and hence all our cable products comply with their standards. 
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BUSINeSS FoCUS aND StrateGIC aCtIoN pLaNS (CoNt’D)

4. Quality Management Systems (“QMS”)

 Our QMS practices are entrenched in our business policies and complement our manufacturing standard operating 
procedures (“Sop”), and are strictly observed to consistently meet our customers’ requirements and enhancing their 
satisfaction. 

 We have attained the following certifications:-

a. ISO 9001:2008 – Quality Management System (Cert #33971)
b. ISO 14001:2004 – Environment Management System (Cert #E429)
c. ISO/TS 16949:2009 and IATF-16949 – Automotive Industrial Quality Management System 
d. IPC/WHMA-A620 – Product Quality Control
e. EICC Code of Conduct Adopted
f. EcoVadis Registered
g. EU RoHS 2.0, China RoHs, REACH, JIG, SS00259 - Hazardous Substance Control

MarKet peNetratIoN aND DeVeLopMeNt

the Group’s Current Industry Landscape – 2016

We are traditionally involved in the Connected Homes & Offices market, which covers mainly Set Top Box, OTT, routers and 
Internet protocol TV (“IptV”) devices. At 75%, this forms the bulk of our revenue.

Although we intend to further expand our market footprint in the Connected Homes & Offices market, we are also taking 
steps to expand into other more lucrative industries that will bring us higher margins, such as smart connective devices, white 
goods and automotive. This can be achieved through training, certification, revamping current and/or set up new production/
manufacturing processes/lines and implementing the appropriate marketing strategies.

The table below illustrates the Group’s market composition and percentage contribution to revenue in terms of industry over 
a four (4)-year period. Revenue from the Connected Home & Offices market has increased markedly, but so has our revenue 
from both the White Goods and Automotive markets. 

rapID CoNN INDUStrY BreaKDoWN For FYe 2013-2016

2016 2015 2014 2013

Industries % % % %

Connected Homes & Offices 75.0% 71.0% 71.0% 81.0%

White Goods 9.7% 8.0% 7.0% 1.0%

Smart Connected Devices 6.9% 9.0% 15.0% 12.0%

Automotive 3.5% 2.0% 1.0% 0.0%

Others 1.4% 7.0% 3.0% 5.5%

Interactive Kiosks & Security 2.8% 2.0% 2.0% 0.0%

Medical 0.7% 1.0% 1.0% 0.5%

100% 100% 100% 100%

STaTemenT on manaGemenT DISCUSSIon anD analYSIS
(cont’d)
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MarKet peNetratIoN aND DeVeLopMeNt (CoNt’D)

the Group’s Current Industry Landscape – 2016 (Cont’d)

We have set plans into motion, through our sales and marketing strategies, that will enable us to further increase market 
penetration in these markets, while at the same time, enhance our credibility and visibility amongst major customers and key 
players in the interconnect and related markets. We are also working with an established customer that will further improve our 
market share in the Smart Connected Devices sector, which is an important market for us.

SaLeS aND MarKetING StrateGY

We continue to invest our resources in research and development for product innovation, while keeping abreast of advances 
in technologies affecting the market and changing consumers’ tastes and requirements. This is vital as it may not only provide 
critical information that will guide us in crafting our marketing strategy, but will also influence our approach in the planning and 
implementation stages of automation along our production and assembly lines, which is a critical part of our cost reduction 
initiatives.

1. Unique Selling points (USps)

a. Vertically Integrated Services (“VIS”)

 The VIS model provides a “one-stop centre” for customers: enquiries, customising & designs, prototyping, tooling, 
mass production, logistic, warehousing and after-sales service.

b. Vertically Integrated Solutions provider

 This gives us a strategic competitive edge over our competitors as we are able to past cost savings to customers 
in terms of attractive pricing. This will also result in more efficient order processing and enhanced delivery process 
due to shorter lead time.

c. Highly experienced r&D team

 With two strong R&D teams located in RCC, China and RCI, USA, we should sell our experience and capability to 
undertake in-house engineering design, customisation and product development.

d. Warehousing Solutions

 With 25,000 square feet (2,322.6 square metres) in office cum warehousing space and a team of experience logistic 
personnel, RCI, the Group’s US subsidiary, offers warehousing solutions such as VMI, JIT or Kanban.

RAPID CONN 
GROUP BY 
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Smart Connected
Devises
6.9%
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SaLeS aND MarKetING StrateGY (CoNt’D)

2. positioning

a. Rapid Conn is a global company with manufacturing facilities in China.

b. A global presence – sales offices are strategically located in USA, Singapore & China, to serve all time zones and 
all markets worldwide.

c. We have the expertise to operate in the various industries:-
•	 Connected	Homes	&	Offices
•	 Smart	Connected	Devices
•	 White	Goods
•	 Automotive

3. Marketing tactics

a. Sales representatives (“reps”) & Strategic partners

 Due to limited sales headcount, RCG has developed a network of appointed reps and strategic partners in different 
subsidiaries.

•	 Quarterly	Statement	of	Activities	&	Commission	to	be	sent	out	to	reps	and	strategic	partners	as	a	monitoring	
tool to assess their performance.

•	 Quarterly	review	of	Reps	&	Strategic	Partners	performance	to	be	conducted	to	sieve	out	barriers	and	give	
incentives to spur them to pursue more opportunities for RCG

•	 Expanding	regionally	via	the	recruitment	of	Reps	and	Strategic	Partners	–	the	table	below	shows	our	intention	
to recruit more Reps and Strategic Partner that will help us expand our market share.

 

Subsidiary Current Status targets

rCI •	 Three	(3)	Reps	in	USA	–	one	in	Seattle	
(covering North-West region), one 
in Denver (covering the East-Coast 
region).

•	 One	 (1)	Rep	 in	Mexico	

To recruit a Rep for the South-East region.

rCC Two (2) Strategic Partners To recruit One (1) more Strategic Partner

rCS Three (3) Strategic Partners covering Asia 
and the United Kingdom

To recruit One (1) more Strategic Partner

b. existing Customers

 Much effort and time have been spent enhancing our business and working relationship with our existing customers. 
Thus, an aggressive campaign has been launched to maintain an even closer rapport with our customers so that 
we will continue to be in their preferred list of suppliers:-

•	 We	will	always	be	alerted	of	new	projects	and	to	ensure	that	RCG	is	in	the	running	for	these	new	projects
•	 To	secure	introductions	or	referrals	to	different	departments	or	divisions

 RCG has managed to forge and maintained stellar relationships with our major customers over the last ten (10) 
years. As mentioned earlier, this is a testament to our major customers increasing confidence and trust in us, as 
they continue to support us unwaveringly throughout the years while we remain resolute in our commitment to 
service them to the best of our capabilities.

c. electronic Manufacturing Services (“eMS”) partners

 Over the years, we have established a strong working relationship with major contract manufacturers in the EMS 
industry – currently, Jabil, Mitrastar, Foxconn, Cal-Comp, Pegatron, just to name a few. Since these EMS contractors 
service various OEMs, we can benefit greatly either through referrals from them or sub-contracting jobs awarded 
by them.

STaTemenT on manaGemenT DISCUSSIon anD analYSIS
(cont’d)
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STaTemenT on manaGemenT DISCUSSIon anD analYSIS
(cont’d)

CoSt reDUCtIoN proGraMS

(Margin Growth Plan)

Apart from the Group’s vertical integration strategy, the Group has undertaken various cost reduction programs that will result 
in overall costs reductions and increased profitability. Alternatively, any costs savings attained can be passed on to the Group’s 
customers in the form of attractive pricing, which will invariably give the Group a competitive advantage over its competitors. 
Cost reduction will also act as a buffer should customers request for (or insist on) lower prices during negotiations or at any 
point in time during the course of the business.

Additionally, apart from managing our cost drivers (i.e. labour costs, factory overheads), the Group still maintains its costs 
reduction initiatives as this is an ongoing effort:-

1. Reviewing employee efficiency programs on a periodic basis to ensure that the programs are up to date, relevant and in 
sync with Corporate’s objectives. These programs are designed to improve skills and enhance productivity;

2. Reviewing and updating the production remuneration scheme for production workers, where the employees would be 
remunerated according to productivity. The remuneration scheme is currently being practiced by RCC;

3. Progressive automation of our manufacturing processes – potentially new areas of automation both in terms of revenue 
generating machines and production lines are periodically under review. The inherent benefits of automation:-
a. Reduce overall manufacturing costs;
b. Improve space utilization;
c. Reduce manufacturing turnaround time;
d. Generally, larger orders, particularly additional orders, can be considered without delay affecting quality and lead 

times. However, this will depend on the quantum of the order and if there are any changes in the product specs 
requirement; and

e. Enables multiple tasks in a particular process to be undertaken by a single machine (e.g. wire harnessing).

 We have implemented automation in the following areas along our assembly lines:-

a. Wire harnessing – this activity consists of several tasks undertaken by different operators (i.e. assembly line workers) 
such as auto wire cut, wire strip, wire crimp and wire tin. These tasks were combined into a single activity and 
undertaken seamlessly by a single automated machine.

b. Wrapping – we have moved from manual wrapping wire activities to automated wrapping, which have enabled us 
to combine both automatic wrapping and tie activities into a single process.

c. Soldering – this is one of the most labour intensive process, has been replaced by our new auto-soldering machine. 
Under manual soldering, a single production worker can only manage around 250 pieces per hour. In contrast, an 
automated soldering machine can easily achieve between 500 and 800 pieces per hour.

d. We have also installed 6 units of Autocut, Strip & Tint Dip automated machines, each of which is capable of 
performing the tasks of at least three production workers. This will not only save costs and increase productivity, 
but will also free up factory space.

e. We have also automated certain key activities in the manufacturing of HDMI cables: Testing and Hanking, HDMI 
soldering, HDMI metal casing.

4. Outsourcing of manufacturing activities (i.e. mainly production phases that are labour intensive) to contractors located in 
the inland provinces of China, where the costs of labour are considerably lower. In order to ensure that our contractors 
comply with our manufacturing and quality standards, and product specification requirements, we will normally perform 
a comprehensive operations audit of their plant, and provide training to their employees if and when necessary. We also 
monitor them periodically to ensure compliance on their part.

5. Where feasible, it is part of our policy to perform re-engineering of products to increase the efficiency of material and 
labour consumption, which will not only save costs but is also consistent with our policies on EHS and Corporate Social 
Responsibility (“CSr”) practices that relate to our role in promoting environmental sustainability.
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STaTemenT on manaGemenT DISCUSSIon anD analYSIS
(cont’d)

rISK FaCtorS

Given the fact that we are a global company as our entire business operations, including our customers are located overseas, 
we will be constantly exposed to external risks (apart from the internal risks)  that are inherent not only in our industry but also 
in the business environment in which we operate. 

Risks such as fluctuations in forex rates (particularly the United States of America (“US”) dollar) and commodity prices (i.e. 
copper), local labour laws particularly those relating to workers compensation (i.e. wage rates, minimum wage, workers benefits, 
etc.)/overtime, trade and custom laws and regulations (i.e. tariff rates), monetary policy, etc., all of which have the propensity 
to change from time to time. If these changes are unfavourable (e.g. increase in tariffs), the impact will adversely affect our 
business operations. The unfavourable conditions may even frustrate our planned initiatives that we have discussed earlier.

Another risk worth mentioning is that we are highly dependent on our customers’ financial health and growth, where the majority 
of our customers are end-product customers. Any changes in consumer tastes and preferences in their own markets or a 
downturn in overall demand due to the product’s end-of-life cycles and/or introduction of newer products in the market, or even 
stiff competition from their business rivals will adversely affect them, which in turn will invariably affect us. 

In 2016, 75% of our revenue was derived from the Connected Homes & Offices market sector as this has always been our 
core market. The Group is currently expanding its footprint in other industry sectors of the market such as automotive, smart 
connected devices (wearables) and white goods, which will not only increase the Group’s bottom and top lines, but also the 
Group’s profitability as these markets involves high margin products. This, in turn, will also increase our exposure to risks inherent 
in these industries as we continue to increase our presence in their respective markets.

The list of risk areas identified, which covers both internal and external risks, that may have an impact on our business should 
they occur, and our risk management process are set out in the Statement of Risk Management and Internal Control in this 
Annual Report.

DIVIDeND poLICY

There is no dividend policy for the Group at the moment, however the Board strives to adopt a consistent approach in declaring 
dividends after considering various factors, such as future investment and working capital needs, profitability and liquidity of 
the Company.
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The Board of Directors recognises that corporate governance is of paramount importance in ensuring the Company is managed 
in the best interest of the shareholders.

The Board is pleased to provide this statement which outline with an overview of the manner in which the Group has applied the 
principles and the extent of compliance with the best practices as advocated by the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance 
2012 (“MCCG 2012”) under the stewardship of the Board, throughout the financial year under review, i.e. financial year ended 
31 December 2016 (“FYe 2016”) . 

This statement also serves as a compliance with Rule 15.25 of the ACE Market Listing Requirements (“aCe Lr”) of Bursa 
Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”).

(I) eStaBLISH CLear roLeS aND reSpoNSIBILItIeS

1. Clear Functions of the Board and Management

 Board of Directors (“the Board”)
 
 The Board is responsible for the leadership, oversight and the long-term success of the Group. The Board fully 

understands their collective responsibilities in guiding the business activities of the Group in reaching an optimum 
balance of a sound and sustainable business operation with an optimal corporate governance framework in order 
to safeguard shareholders’ value.

 The Board has reserved certain items for its review including the approval of Group strategic plans, financial 
statements, dividend policy, risk management, significant acquisitions and disposals, investments in significant 
joint ventures, significant property transactions, significant capital expenditure, dividends and board appointments.

 The Board has also delegated certain responsibilities to other Board Committees, which operate within clearly 
defined Terms of Reference (“tor”). Standing committees of the Board include the Audit Committee, Nomination 
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Risk Management Committee. The Board receives reports at its meetings 
from the Chairman of each committee on current activities and it is the general policy of the Company that all major 
decisions be considered by the Board as a whole.

 Senior Management team

 The Board is duly assisted by the Management of the Company, namely the Senior Management Team. The Senior 
Management Team consists of senior employees holding the following positions:-

Job Designation Name

Executive Deputy Chairman Mr. Ang Chuang Jay

Chief Financial Officer Mr. Nicholas Chee Tiong King

Vice President, Operations, Rapid Conn 
Inc. (United States of America) (“rCI, USa”)

Mr. Balaji Raghunathan

V ice  P res iden t ,  G roup  Bus iness 
Development /General Manager, Rapid 
Conn (S) Pte. Ltd. (Singapore) (“rCS, 
Singapore”) 

Ms. Corina Yong

General Manager/Director, Rapid Conn 
(Shenzhen) Co. Ltd. (China) (“rCC, China”)

Mr. Clifford Lim Say Chuan

StateMeNt oN 
CorPoraTe GovernanCe
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(I) eStaBLISH CLear roLeS aND reSpoNSIBILItIeS (CoNt’D)

1. Clear Functions of the Board and Management (Cont’d)

 Senior Management team (Cont’d)

 The principal responsibilities of the Senior Management Team are as follows:- 
 

•	 Developing,	co-ordinating	and	implementing	business	and	corporate	strategies	for	the	approval	of	the	Board;
•	 Implementing	the	policies	and	decisions	of	the	Board;
•	 Overseeing	the	day-to-day	operations	of	the	Group;
•	 To	participates	 in	various	management	committees	or	working	committees	for	the	effective	discharge	of	

duties and functions; and
•	 Relevant	member(s)	of	the	Senior	Management	Team	be	invited	to	attend	Board	and/or	Board	Committees	

meetings to advise and furnish the Board and/or Board Committees with information, report, clarifications 
as and when required on the agenda items to be tabled to the Board and/or Board Committees, to enable 
the Board and/or Board Committees to arrive at a decision. 

2. Clear roles and responsibilities of the Board

 The Board has reserved a formal schedule of matters for its decision making to ensure that the direction and control 
of the Group is firmly in its hands. It provides effective leadership and manages overall control of the Company and its 
subsidiary companies the Group’s affairs through the discharge of the following principal duties and responsibilities:-

(a)  reviewing and adopting a strategic plan for the Company

 The Board plays an active role in the establishment of the Company’s strategic plan. At the beginning of 
the financial year, Management would present to the Board the proposed business plans as well as the 
annual budget for the year. The Board reviews and deliberates those documents at great length, as well as 
challenging Management’s underlying assumptions, prior to approving the same for adoption.

 During the financial year ended 31 December 2014 (“FYe 2014”), the Board has adopted the following two 
(2) strategic business plans to drive the sales and simultaneously increasing the profit margin of the Group:-
(1) Sales and Marketing Strategies (Sales Growth Plan); and
(2) Vertical Integration and Cost Reduction Programs (Margin Growth Plan).

 For FYE 2016, being third year in running after the adoption of the abovementioned strategic business plans, 
the Board noted both the strategic business plans have yielded positive results and the same have been 
reflected in the financial performance of the Group i.e. an increase of RM16.8 million in turnover to RM81.7 
million for FYE 2016 as compared to RM64.9 million for FYE 2015. 

 During the financial under review, the Board has reviewed and approved the following strategic business 
activities of the Group:-

(1) Issuance of New Securities, Increase of Authorised Share Capital and Amendment of Articles of 
Association;

(2) Proposed Acquisition of 51% Equity Interest in Kejuruteraan Asastera Sdn. Bhd. (“KaSB”);

(3) Award of Contract to Rapid Conn Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary, from DIRECTV Latin America, LLC 
for the manufacturing of High Definition Multimedia Interface (“HDMI”) Devices;

(4)  Proposed Additional Investment in RCC, China;

(5) Distribution Agreement between Rapid Conn Inc. and Venus Group Inc.;

STaTemenT on CorPoraTe GovernanCe
(cont’d)
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STaTemenT on CorPoraTe GovernanCe
(cont’d)

(I) eStaBLISH CLear roLeS aND reSpoNSIBILItIeS (CoNt’D)

2. Clear roles and responsibilities of the Board (Cont’d)

(a)  reviewing and adopting a strategic plan for the Company (Cont’d)

 During the financial under review, the Board has reviewed and approved the following strategic business 
activities of the Group:- (Cont’d)

(6) Incorporation of a new majority-owned sub-subsidiary in China, Shen Zhen Rapid Resins Co., Ltd. 
(formerly known as Rapid Conn (ShenZhen) Plastic Resins Technology Co., Ltd.) (“rCr”);

(7) Disposal of 1,500,000 ordinary shares of RenMinBi (“RMB”)1.00 each fully paid-up in the capital of 
ShenZhen Rapid Power Co., Ltd. (formerly known as Rapid Power (ShenZhen) Co., Ltd.) (“rCp”), 
representing 20% shares held in RCP;

(8) Proposed Additional Investment in RCS, Singapore; and

(9) Proposed appointment of a legal representative for RCR.

 Further details of the strategic business plans are outlined in the Statement on Management Discussion and 
Analysis in this Annual Report.

(b) overseeing the conduct of the Company’s business

 The Board monitors the performance of Management on a regular basis vide the insertion of relevant agenda 
item in the Board Meetings. 

 As the de facto executive head of the Group, the Executive Deputy Chairman is required to brief the Board 
on the operational performance of the Group while the Chief Financial Officer (“CFo”) is required to present 
a quarterly report on the financial performance of the Group.   

 As with any other business proposal, the Board conducted regular reviews vide the receipt of regular updates 
at every Board Meeting in relation to the strategic business plans approved by the Board earlier. The Board 
would then make the necessary business decisions to adapt to changing circumstances.

 For FYE 2016, the Board noted the following development in relation to the two (2) strategic business plans 
adopted since FYE 2014:-

(1) Sales Growth plan

 For FYE 2016, the aggressive sales campaigns into key industries such as automotive and white goods 
undertaken by the RCC, China have borne fruit with sales from new customers and increased orders 
from current customers. 

(2) Margin Growth plan

  Under the Margin Growth Plan, the Board noted Management has undertaken the following cost 
reduction initiatives for FYE 2016:-

(a) Improvement made to the Employees’ Efficiency Programme (“eep”) to further enhance 
productivity of employees of RCC;

(b) Review and adjustment to the Production Remuneration Scheme (“prS”) for production workers 
in RCC where those employees were now being remunerated mainly based on productivity 
level instead of fixed remuneration to increase the motivation and productivity of Production 
Department of RCC;



C O N N E C T C O U N T Y  H O L D I N G S  B E R H A D  ( C o m p a n y  N o .  6 1 8 9 3 3 - D )

28

(I) eStaBLISH CLear roLeS aND reSpoNSIBILItIeS (CoNt’D)

2. Clear roles and responsibilities of the Board (Cont’d)

(b) overseeing the conduct of the Company’s business (Cont’d)

(2) Margin Growth plan (Cont’d)

(c) Progressive automation of RCC’s manufacturing processes – potentially new areas of automation 
both in terms of revenue generating machines and production lines were under review during 
the year which would enable the Group to reduce overall manufacturing costs and improve 
space utilisation. For example, we have started moving from manual assembly to automated 
machine (e.g. incorporating auto wire cut, wire strip, wire crimp and wire tin activities into a single 
automated machine) for the wire harness process, and switching from manual wrapping wire 
activities to automated wrapping and incorporating both automatic wrapping and tie activities 
into a single process;

(d) For RCC, outsourcing of certain manufacturing activities to contractors located in the inland 
provinces of China; 

(e) For Rapid Conn, Inc., United States of America (“rCI”), the Group’s centre of excellence 
for research and development (“r&D”) activities, continuous investment in R&D for product 
innovation, while keeping abreast of advances in technologies affecting the market and changing 
consumers’ tastes and requirements; and

(f) For the Group, Management is looking at a full vertical integration process which will increase 
the Group’s margin (due to overall costs savings), and enable better control over quality and 
enhance delivery lead time. The benefits to both cost reduction and enhanced delivery lead time 
will become even more apparent with automation.

(c) Identification of principal risks and implementation of appropriate internal controls and mitigation 
measures 

 Mindful of its duties in terms of identification of principal risks as well as the need to institute risk management 
and internal control measures. The Board has adopted a Group Risk Management Framework (“Group rMF”) 
to manage its risk and opportunities. A Board Committee known as the Risk Management Committee was 
established by the Board since 17 April 2012. 

 risk Management Committee (“rMC”)

 The Board oversees the Group RMF vide the RMC. The RMC is governed by its own Terms of Reference 
(“tor”). The TOR of the RMC is available as “appendix D” of the Board Charter and is accessible from the 
Company’s website.

 The RMC is chaired by Mr. Ang Chuang Juay, the Executive Deputy Chairman and is made up of selected 
members of the Senior Management Team. The composition of the RMC is as follows:-

Name position Designation
attendance
of Meetings

Mr. Ang Chuang Juay Chairman Executive Deputy Chairman 2/2

Mr. Hong Cheong Liang Member Independent 
Non-Executive Director

2/2

Mr. Nicholas Chee Tiong King Member Chief Financial Officer 2/2

 For FYE 2016, the RMC met twice and a 100% attendance was achieved by all members. 

STaTemenT on CorPoraTe GovernanCe
(cont’d)
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(I) eStaBLISH CLear roLeS aND reSpoNSIBILItIeS (CoNt’D)

2. Clear roles and responsibilities of the Board (Cont’d)

(c) Identification of principal risks and implementation of appropriate internal controls and mitigation 
measures (Cont’d) 

 principal Duties and responsibilities:-

 The RMC has been entrusted by the Board to identify, evaluate, monitor and manage any relevant major risk 
faced by the Group so that the Group will achieve its business objectives. However, the Board as a whole 
remains responsible for all the actions of the RMC with regard to the execution of the delegated role and 
this includes the outcome of the review and disclosure on key risks and internal control in the Company’s 
annual reports.

 principal risks Identified:-

 The RMC has identified the following significant risks for FYE 2016:-

(1) Sales and operations risk

 Cost of doing business in China has been on an increasing trend in view of the rising minimum wage 
imposed by the government of Peoples’ Republic of China (“prC”). The automation of relevant 
operations in RCC as indicated in the Margin Growth Plan, form part of the mitigation measure to 
countermeasure the over reliance on manual workers.

(2) Credit risk

 As part of the Sales Growth Plan, the local sales team of RCC, only pursued from a pool of carefully 
identified potential new customers with reputable and good track records in order to mitigate the credit 
risk. 

(3) Market risk

 As part of the Sales Growth Plan, Management has established sales representative offices in Taiwan, 
parts of China and the USA in order to diversify the sources of income and mitigate against the market 
risk. 

(4) Foreign exchange risk 

 To mitigate against the fluctuation of currencies, Management has mainly dealt in United States Dollar 
(“USD”) in its transactions, be it procurement or sales. 

Summary of rMC activities held for FYe 2016:-

For FYE 2016, the RMC has carried out the following three main activities:-

(1) review of Group rMF

 The existing Group RMF was adopted by the Board of Directors on 17 April 2012 and with the efflux 
of time as well as subsequent major changes to the Board of Directors and the RMC, the RMC has 
resolved to update/ revise the Group RMF where necessary. 

STaTemenT on CorPoraTe GovernanCe
(cont’d)



C O N N E C T C O U N T Y  H O L D I N G S  B E R H A D  ( C o m p a n y  N o .  6 1 8 9 3 3 - D )

30

(I) eStaBLISH CLear roLeS aND reSpoNSIBILItIeS (CoNt’D)

2. Clear roles and responsibilities of the Board (Cont’d)

(c) Identification of principal risks and implementation of appropriate internal controls and mitigation 
measures (Cont’d) 

Summary of rMC activities held for FYe 2016:- (Cont’d)

(2) risk accountabilities procedures

 The RMC has reviewed and then recommended to the Board of Directors, the adoption of a “risk 
accountabilities” procedures encompassing the following basic criteria for plant/ subsidiaries of the 
Company:-

No. Description

(1) Risk management activities:-

(a) Identify both inherent and residual risks – itemisation of risk category, specify both 
systemic and unsystematic risk(s); 

 
(b) Design risk management activities/ procedures, tools and techniques;

(c) Incorporate risk management activities and procedures into Standard Operating 
Procedures (“Sop”) and business processes and operations;

(2) Setting of standards/ policies and controls;

(3) Establishing ownership, authorisation protocols and segregation of duties;

(4) Periodic review of risks and risk management procedures and internal controls;

(5) Reporting protocols – format/ layout, content and frequency of report(s)

(6) Documentation

 The Risk Accountabilities procedures which will form part of the Group RMF, is intended to formalise 
the following processes for the Management staff located at operating plant/ subsidiaries of the Group 
where they would be required to report to the RMC on a regular basis:-
 Process for identifying risk(s);
 Process for evaluating risk(s); 
 Recommendation/ Suggestion for improvement or managing risk(s); and
 Confirmation that necessary action have been taken to remedy significant weaknesses identified 

from review. 

 The RMC would in turn review the same at the RMC meeting(s) before escalating to the attention of 
the Board of Directors. 

(3) review of risk register of each subsidiaries

 The RMC had reviewed the risk register of each of the subsidiaries as provided by the person in-charge 
of the respective subsidiaries. 

STaTemenT on CorPoraTe GovernanCe
(cont’d)
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STaTemenT on CorPoraTe GovernanCe
(cont’d)

(I) eStaBLISH CLear roLeS aND reSpoNSIBILItIeS (CoNt’D)

2. Clear roles and responsibilities of the Board (Cont’d)

(c) Identification of principal risks and implementation of appropriate internal controls and mitigation 
measures (Cont’d) 

Summary of rMC activities held for FYe 2016:- (Cont’d)

(4) Additional components added to the Group RMF

 The Group has operating subsidiaries located in China, USA, Singapore and Malaysia where each of the 
subsidiaries has been incorporated under the respective local laws and to adhere to the local legislations. 
Therefore, to maintain the robustness of the Group RMF, the following additional components to the 
Group RMF, each cater to the local customs and regulations have been recommended by the RMC 
to the Board of Directors for adoption:-
(i) Group RMF – Sales and Marketing function;
(ii) Group RMF – Finance function;
(iii) RCS- Risk Management Framework – Finance function;
(iv) RCI - Risk Management Framework – Finance function; and
(v) RCC - Risk Management Framework – Finance function.

 Further details of the principal residual risks identified and the relevant internal control and mitigation 
measures are set out in the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control of this Annual Report.

(d) Succession planning

 The Board recognises that succession planning is an ongoing process designed to ensure that the Group 
identifies and develops a talent pool of personnel through mentoring, training and job rotation for high level 
management positions that become vacant due to retirement, resignation, death or disability and/or new 
business opportunities. 

 During the financial year under review, the position of Board Chairman was left vacant upon the resignation 
of Mr. Roy Thean Chong Yew on 8 June 2016. However, the Board has managed to fill the vacancy with 
the appointment of Mr. Chang Choon Ming as the new Non-Independent Non-Executive Chairman with 
effect from 21 October 2016. In addition, there were also two (2) other resignations by the Directors during 
the FYE 2016, all of which have been duly filled by the Board within FYE 2016, thereby indicating Board’s 
commitment towards resolving Board seat vacancies.  

(e) Implementation of a shareholder communications policy for the Company

 The Board is aware of the Group’s commitment to enhancing long term shareholders’ value through regular 
communication with all its shareholders, irregardless of individual shareholders and institutional investors 
(hereinafter referred to as “the Shareholders”.)

 The Board has adopted a Shareholders’ Communication Policy on 19 November 2015 in order to provide 
guidance as well as ensuring a consistent approach towards the Company’s communication with the 
Shareholders.

 A copy of the Shareholders’ Communication Policy is available for viewing under the “Corporate Governance” 
section of the Company’s corporate website at www.connectcounty.com/downloads/CCHB_Shareholders_
Communication_Policy.pdf/.

(f) reviewing the adequacy and the integrity of the Group’s internal control systems

 Given the diverse locations of the operating subsidiaries, the Board has established key control processes 
to ensure there is a sound framework of Group reporting on internal controls and regulatory compliance. 

 Details pertaining to the Group’s internal control system and its effectiveness are set out in the Statement 
on Risk Management and Internal Control of this Annual Report. 
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(I) eStaBLISH CLear roLeS aND reSpoNSIBILItIeS (CoNt’D)

3. Code of Conduct and ethics for Directors

 The Board has adopted a Code of Conduct and Ethics for Directors (“the Code”) which sets forth the values, 
expectations and standards of business ethics and conduct to guide the Board, in attaining the best corporate 
governance practices as well as compliance with the relevant legislations.

 The Code is established based on the principles in relation to the Board’s duty of care, integrity, responsibilities as 
well as corporate social responsibilities. It applies to both executive and non-executive directors of the Company. 

 The Code has been entrenched into the Board Charter and will be reviewed biennially or as and when it is required 
to ensure the information remains relevant and appropriate. The latest review of the Code was on 13 May 2016.

 The detailed Board Charter can be downloaded from the Company’s website at http://www.connectcounty.com/
downloads/CCHB_Board_Charter.pdf.

 Whistle Blowing policy
 
 Whistle blowing is an act of voluntary disclosure/reporting to the Management of the Company for further action of 

any improper conduct committed or about to be committed by an employee, officer or Management of the Group.

 The Board has adopted a Whistle Blowing Policy on 19 November 2015 with the following objectives:- 

•	 	Provide	an	avenue	for	all	employees	and	member	of	the	public	to	disclose	any	improper	conduct	or	any	action	
that is or could be harmful to the reputation of the Company and/or compromise the interest of stakeholders; 

•	 Provide	proper	internal	reporting	channel	to	disclose	any	improper	or	unlawful	conduct	in	accordance	with	
the procedures as provided for under this policy;

•	 Address	a	disclosure	in	an	appropriate	and	timely	manner;
•	 Provide	protection	for	the	whistle-blower	from	reprisal	as	a	direct	consequence	of	making	a	disclosure	and	

to safeguard such person’s confidentiality; and 
•	 Treat	both	the	whistle-blower	and	the	alleged	wrongdoer	fairly.

 This policy shall also similarly apply to any vendors, partners, associates or any individuals, including the general 
public, in the performance of their assignment or conducting the business for or on behalf of the Company.

 A copy of the Whistle Blowing Policy is available for viewing under the “Corporate Governance” section of the 
Company’s corporate website at www.connectcounty.com/downloads/CCHB_Whistle_Blowing_Policy.pdf/.

 Handling of reported allegation(s)

 The Audit Committee is responsible for the interpretation and supervision of the enforcement of the Code. The 
action to be taken by the Group in response to a report of concern under the Code will depend on the nature of 
the concern. The Audit Committee shall receive information on each report of concern and ensure that follow-up 
actions be taken accordingly.

 Communication and Feedback Channels

 Report(s) can be made in verbal or in writing in the following manners:-

•	 By	Letter		 –	 to	be	forwarded	in	a	sealed	envelope	to	the	below	mentioned	designated	person	labelling	
with a legend of “To be opened by the Audit Committee Chairman/ Executive Deputy 
Chairman/ Executive Director/ Chief Financial Officer only” (where applicable); or

•	 By	Email		 –	 to	be	forwarded	vide	secure	email	to	the	below	mentioned	designated	person	with	the	heading	
of “For the eyes of the Audit Committee Chairman/ Executive Deputy Chairman/ 
Executive Director/ Chief Financial Officer only” (where applicable).
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3. Code of Conduct and ethics for Directors (Cont’d)

 Communication and Feedback Channels (Cont’d)

For matters relating to financial reporting, unethical or illegal conduct, one can report directly to the following 
designated person:- 

(1) Audit Committee Chairman
 Mr. Hong Cheong Liang at email address: hcl.cpa@gmail.com 

 Postal Address

 No. 12-1 (1st Floor), Jalan Radin Bagus 9, Sri Petaling, 57000 Kuala Lumpur, Wilayah Persekutuan

For employment-related concerns, one can report directly to the following designated persons:-

(1) Executive Deputy Chairman 
 Mr. Ang Chuang Juay at email address: cjang@rapidconn.org or 

(2) Chief Financial Officer
 Mr. Nicholas Chee at email address: nicholas.chee@rapidconn.org 

 Postal Address

 No. 12-1 (1st Floor), Jalan Radin Bagus 9, Sri Petaling, 57000 Kuala Lumpur, Wilayah Persekutuan

 For FYE 2016, none of the designated persons have received any report or concerns vide the abovementioned 
communication and feedback channels.

4. Strategies to promote Sustainability

 The Board views the commitment to sustainability and Environmental, Social and Governance (“eSG”) performance 
as part of its broader responsibility to clients, shareholders and the communities in which it operates. Details of the 
ESG practices of the Group can be found in the Corporate Responsibility Statement of this Annual Report. 

 The Board is aware of the importance of business sustainability and have ensure Management implements various 
strategies to promote sustainability of the Group. One of the strategies undertaken by Management would be to 
solidify the quality of the product offerings of the Group by obtaining external certifications.    

 ISo/tS 16949:2009 Certification

 The Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, namely RCC has successfully obtained the following certification from 
NQA, a leading independent provider of environmental simulation testing, inspection and certification services.  

Certification Scope of work Validity

ISO/TS 
16949:2009

 The manufacture of connecting wires for the automotive 
industry

29 May 2016 to 
14 September 2018

 ISO/TS 16949 was developed by The International Automotive Task Force (IATF), in conjunction with International 
Organisation for Standardisation (ISO) support by Japan Automotive Manufacturers Association Inc. (JAMA).
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4. Strategies to promote Sustainability (Cont’d)

 This Certification pursuant to ISO/TS 16949 is intended to build up or enforce the confidence of a (potential) 
customer towards the system and process quality of a (potential) supplier. The registration to ISO/TS 16949 is a 
requirement for any company wanting to supply its products to the automotive industry. 

 The position of RCC, China as the accredited supplier of connecting wires for the automatic industry in China has 
been solidified with the receipt of this Certification. 

 The Board strongly believes in maintaining the quality of its products and services, and the safety of its processes. 
As such, the Group has documented most of its standard operating procedures, which encompass all work 
processes.

 The Group has received and maintained the following certifications:-

Certification Item of Certification

ISO 9001:2008 Quality Management System

ISO 14001:2004 Environment Management System

IPC/WHMA-A620 Product Quality Control

ISO 13485 Medical Devices Quality Management Systems

 The Group has also adopted the following industry best practices to ensure it operates responsibly within the 
sphere of ESG:-

Best practice remark

Electronic Industry Citizenship Coalition 
(“eICC”) Code of Conduct

Voluntary best practice for electronics industry supply chain that 
consistently operates with social, environmental and economic 
responsibility

EcoVadis-registered EcoVadis provides the Supplier Sustainability Ratings for global 
supply chains companies

•	 EU	RoHS	2.0	
•	 China	RoHs
•	 REACH
•	 JIG
•	 SS00259

Hazardous Substance Control

  
5. access to Information and advice

 In ensuring the effective functioning of the Board, all Directors have individual and independent access to the 
advice and support services of the Company Secretaries and External Auditors and, may seek advice from the 
Management on issues under their respective purview.  

 Each Director is provided with complete, relevant and timely information that will enable them to discharge their 
duties and responsibilities effectively. Prior  to  each  Board  Meeting,  the  agenda  together  with  the  detailed  
reports, relevant documentation  and  supplementary  papers are circulated to the Directors  at least three (3) 
days in  advance. This is to enable the Directors to obtain further explanations, where necessary, in order to be 
adequately informed before the Meeting.
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(I) eStaBLISH CLear roLeS aND reSpoNSIBILItIeS (CoNt’D)

5. access to Information and advice (Cont’d)

 The Directors may also interact directly with, or request further explanation, information or updates, on any aspect 
of the Company’s operations or business concerns from the Management to enable the Board to discharge its 
duties in relation to the matters being deliberated.

 The Directors, whether as a full Board or in their individual capacity, have full and unrestricted access to all information 
within the Group. Additionally, all Directors have access to the advice and services of the Group’s appointed 
Company Secretary, who is responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures are followed. The Secretaries are 
also responsible for providing advice to the Board on the Group’s legal and statutory obligations, while highlighting, 
if any, non-compliance with regards to statutory regulations and policies affecting the Group. The Directors may, 
at the Group’s expense, also seek external independent professional advice, to assist them in making informed 
decisions with regards to the Group’s affairs.

 protocol for seeking of professional advisory services

 Where applicable, the Directors whether as a full board or in their individual capacity, are encouraged to seek 
independent professional advice from the following parties:-

•	 	For	corporate	and/or	governance	matters,	the	external	company	secretaries;

•	 	For	audit	and/or	audit-related	matters,	any	representatives	of	the	audit	engagement	team	of	the	External	
Auditors or the outsourced Internal Auditors;

•	 For	any	other	specific	issues	where	professional	advice	is	required	to	enable	the	Board	to	discharge	its	duties	
in connection with specific matters, the Board may proceed to do so, with prior consultation of the Board 
Chairman, in relation to the quantum of fees to be incurred. Such right has been encapsulated as Item 9 – 
Rights of Directors section of the Board Charter of the Company. 

6. Company Secretaries

 The appointment and removal of the Company Secretaries is a matter for the Board. All Directors have unrestricted 
access to the advice and services of the Company Secretaries, who are responsible for ensuring that board 
procedures are followed and that applicable rules and regulations are complied with.

 In performing their duties, the Company Secretaries carry out, amongst others, the following tasks:-

•	 Statutory	duties	as	required	under	the	Companies	Act	2016,	ACE	Market	Listing	Requirements	of	Bursa	
Securities, Capital Market and Services Act, 2007;

•	 Facilitating	and	attending	Board	Meetings	and	Board	Committee	Meetings,	respectively;
•	 Ensuring	that	Board	Meetings	and	Board	Committee	Meetings,	respectively	are	properly	convened	and	the	

proceedings are properly recorded;
•	 Ensuring	timely	communication	of	the	Board	level	decisions	to	the	Management	for	further	action;
•	 Ensuring	that	all	appointments	to	the	Board	and/or	Board	Committees	are	properly	made	in	accordance	

with the relevant regulations and/or legislations;
•	 Maintaining	records	for	the	purpose	of	meeting	statutory	obligations;
•	 Facilitating	the	provision	of	information	as	may	be	requested	by	the	Directors	from	time	to	time	on	a	timely	

manner and ensuring adherence to Board policies and procedures; 
•	 Facilitating	the	conduct	of	the	assessments	to	be	undertaken	by	the	Board	and/or	Board	Committees	as	

well as to compile the results of the assessments for the Board and/or Board Committee’s notation;
•	 Assisting	the	Board	with	the	preparation	of	announcements	for	release	to	Bursa	Securities	and	Securities	

Commission Malaysia; and
•	 Rendering	advice	and	support	to	the	Board	and	Management.

 Both the Company Secretaries are members of the Malaysian Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators 
(“MaICSa”) and are qualified to act as company secretary under Section 235(2) of the Companies Act, 2016.  
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6. Company Secretaries (Cont’d)

 The brief profile of the Company Secretaries is as follows:-

(1) Ms. Chua Siew Chuan, FCIS 

 Ms. Chua has been elected as a Fellow Member of the MAICSA since 1997. She has more than 35 years 
of experience in handling corporate secretarial matters, with working knowledge of many industries and 
government services. She is currently the past President of MAICSA. 

 Ms. Chua is a Chartered Secretary by profession. She is the Managing Director of Securities Services (Holdings) 
Sdn. Bhd., a prominent corporate secretarial service provider in Malaysia. Ms. Chua is also the named 
company secretary for a number of public listed companies, public companies, private limited companies 
and societies.

 Ms. Chua has been appointed as Company Secretary to the Company with effect from 12 December 2014. 

(2) Mr. Cheng Chia ping, aCIS

 Mr. Cheng has been elected as an Associate Member of the MAICSA since 2012. He has more than 10 
years of experience in handling corporate secretarial matters, with working knowledge of many industries 
and non-profit organisations. 

 Mr. Cheng is a Chartered Secretary by profession. He is a Manager (Corporate Secretarial) of Securities 
Services (Holdings) Sdn. Bhd., a prominent corporate secretarial service provider in Malaysia. Mr. Cheng 
is also the named company secretary for a number of public listed companies, public companies, private 
limited companies and societies.

 Mr. Cheng has been appointed as Company Secretary to the Company with effect from 12 December 2014. 

 The Company Secretaries attend the meetings of the Board and the Board Committee and ensure that the meetings 
are properly convened and the deliberations at the meetings are well captured and minuted.  The Company 
Secretaries play an advisory role to the Board on the Company’s contribution, Board’s policies and procedures 
and compliance with the relevant regulatory requirements, codes or guidance and legislations.

 For FYE 2016, the Company Secretaries have attended the relevant continuous professional development 
programmes as required by MAICSA for practising company secretaries. 

 The Board is satisfied with the performance and support rendered by the Company Secretaries to the Board in 
discharging its functions.
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7. Board Charter and overall responsibility

 The Company has adopted a Board Charter which governs how the Company conducts its affairs. The Board 
Charter is applicable to all Directors of the Company and, amongst other things, provides that all Directors must 
avoid conflicts of interest between their private financial activities and their part in the conduct of company business.

 The Board Charter sets out the authority, responsibilities, membership and operation of the Board of the Company, 
adopting principles of good corporate governance and practice, in accordance with applicable laws in Malaysia. 
The Board Charter entails the following:-

•	 Objectives;
•	 Overview	of	Directors’	Functions;
•	 Composition	of	the	Board;
•	 Role	of	the	Board;
•	 Appointment	and	Tenure	of	Office;
•	 Remuneration	Framework;
•	 Induction	for	New	Directors;
•	 Board	Procedures;
•	 Rights	of	Directors;
•	 Matters	Reserved	for	Board’s	Decision;
•	 Internal	Control	including	Risk	Management;
•	 Time	Commitment	of	Directors;
•	 Directors’	Training;
•	 Board	Committees;
•	 Investor	Relations	and	Shareholders’	Communication;
•	 Company	Secretary;	
•	 Changes	to	the	Board	Charter;
•	 Code	of	Conduct	and	Ethics	for	Directors;
•	 Conflict	of	Interest	Policy;
•	 Corporate	Disclosure	Policy;
•	 Terms	of	Reference	of	the	Audit	Committee;
•	 Terms	of	Reference	of	the	Nomination	Committee;
•	 Terms	of	Reference	of	the	Remuneration	Committee;	and
•	 Terms	of	Reference	of	the	Risk	Management	Committee.

 The Board will review the Board Charter biennially and/or from time to time and make any necessary amendments 
to ensure they remain consistent with the Board’s objectives, current law and practices. The latest review of the 
Board Charter was on 13 May 2016.

 A full copy of the updated Board Charter is available for viewing under the “Corporate Governance” section of the 
Company’s corporate website at www.connectcounty.com/downloads/CCHB_Board_Charter.pdf/.

(II) StreNGtHeN CoMpoSItIoN

(a) Board Committees

 The Board has put in place the following Board Committees to assist in carrying out its fiduciary duties:-

•	 Audit	Committee;	
•	 Nomination	Committee;	
•	 Remuneration	Committee;	and
•	 Risk	Management	Committee;

 All of these Committees have written Terms of Reference (“tor”) clearly outlining their objectives, duties and 
powers. The final decisions on all matters are determined by the Board as a whole. 
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1. audit Committee

 The membership and TOR of the Audit Committee is stated in the Audit Committee Report of this Annual Report. 
A summary of the works of the Audit Committee during the year, including an evaluation of the independent audit 
process, is set out in the Audit Committee Report of this Annual Report.

 The TOR of the Audit Committee is available for viewing under the “Corporate Governance” section of the Company’s 
corporate website at www.connectcounty.com/downloads/CCHB_Board_Charter.pdf/.

2. Nomination Committee

 The membership and TOR of the Nomination Committee is stated in the Nomination Committee Report of this 
Annual Report. A summary of the activities of the Nomination Committee during the year is set out in the Nomination 
Committee Report of this Annual Report.

 The TOR of the Nomination Committee viewing under the “Corporate Governance” section of the Company’s 
corporate website at www.connectcounty.com/downloads/CCHB_Board_Charter.pdf/.

3. remuneration Committee

 The members of the Remuneration Committee comprise a majority of Independent Non-Executive Directors and 
the composition of the Remuneration Committee is as follows:-

remuneration 
Committee Designation Directorship

Number of 
remuneration 

Committee Meetings
attended / held in the 

financial year 
under review

Lim Bee San Chairperson Independent 
Non-Executive Director

1/1

Ang Chuang Juay Member Executive Deputy Chairman 2/2

Hong Cheong Liang Member Independent 
Non-Executive Director

2/2

 The Remuneration Committee met twice during the financial year under review.

 The principal duties and responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:-

•	 To	review	and	assess	the	remuneration	package	of	the	Executive	Director	in	all	forms,	with	or	without	other	
independent professional advice or other outside advice;

•	 To	ensure	the	levels	of	remuneration	be	sufficiently	attractive	and	be	able	to	retain	Directors	needed	to	run	
the Company successfully;

•	 To	structure	the	component	parts	of	remuneration	so	as	to	link	rewards	to	corporate	and	individual	performance	
and to assess the needs of the Company for talent at Board level at a particular time; and

•	 To	recommend	to	the	Board	the	remuneration	package	of	the	Executive	Director.

3.1 Directors’ remuneration policy

 The Directors’ Remuneration policy of the Company is encapsulated as Item 6 – Remuneration Framework 
in the Board Charter of the Company. 

 Pursuant to the said Remuneration Framework, the remuneration packages of the Executive Directors have 
been structured to attract and retain Directors of right calibre to manage the Group effectively. The Executive 
Directors play no part in deciding their own remuneration and the respective Board members shall abstain 
from all discussions pertaining to their remuneration. It is the ultimate responsibility of the Board to approve 
the remuneration packages of Executive Directors. 
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(II) StreNGtHeN CoMpoSItIoN (CoNt’D)

3. remuneration Committee (Cont’d)

3.1 Directors’ remuneration policy (Cont’d)

 Pursuant to the said Remuneration Framework, the remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors shall be 
based on experience, degree of responsibilities and contributions, which will be determined by the Board as 
a whole. The Non-Executive Directors have been accorded a Directors’ Fees (inclusive of meeting allowance, 
chairmanship allowance and membership allowance)(subject to shareholders’ approval) as follows:-

Directors entitlement

For Non-Executive Directors Directors’ fees of RM2,000/- per month 

(inclusive of meeting allowance, chairmanship allowance and 
membership allowance)

For Audit Committee Chairman only  Additional Directors’ fees of RM1,000/- per month
 
(inclusive of meeting allowance, chairmanship allowance and 
membership allowance)

 For FYE 2016, a total Directors’ Fees paid to the Non-Executive Directors, of RM87,009 have been 
recommended to the shareholders for approval at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting (“aGM”) of the 
Company. 

 The Remuneration Committee is responsible for reviewing and making recommendations to the Board for approval, 
the framework and remuneration packages of the Non-Executive Directors as well as the Executive Directors in all 
forms, drawing from outside advice whenever necessary prior to making the relevant recommendations to the Board 
such that the levels of remuneration are sufficient to attract and retain the Directors needed to run the Company 
successfully. In its review, the Remuneration Committee considers various factors including the Directors’ fiduciary 
duties, time commitments expected of them and the Company’s performance.

 Details of the remuneration for the Directors of the Company comprising remuneration received/receivable from 
the Company and its subsidiary companies during the FYE 2016 are as follows:-

(i) aggregate remuneration categorised into appropriate components:-

(a) Group

Directors’ 
remuneration

executive Directors
(rM)

Non-executive Directors
(rM)

Fees
Salaries
Benefits-in-kind

120,127
1,379,591

16,792

87,009
–
–

total 1,516,510 87,009

(b) Company

Directors’ 
remuneration

executive Directors
(rM)

Non-executive Directors
(rM)

Fees
Salaries
Benefits-in-kind

12,000
127,551

–

87,009
–
–

total 139,551 87,009
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3. remuneration Committee (Cont’d)

(ii) the number of Directors whose total remuneration falls within the following bands are as follows:-

(a) Group

range of remuneration 
per annum

No. of Directors
(executive)

No. of Directors
(Non-executive)

Below RM50,000
RM50,001 to RM100,000
RM100,001 to RM500,000
RM500,001 to RM1,000,000
RM1,000,001 to RM1,500,000

2
2
3
1
1

6
–
–
–
–

(b) Company
 

range of remuneration 
per annum

No. of Directors
(executive)

No. of Directors
(Non-executive)

Below RM50,000
RM100,001 to RM150,000
RM1,000,001 to RM1,500,000

–
1
1

6
–
–

4. risk Management Committee (“rMC”)

 
 The membership of the RMC is stated on item (I)(2)(c) of this Statement. 

 The TOR of RMC has been entrenched into the Board Charter. A full copy of the Board Charter is available for 
viewing on the Company’s corporate website at www.connectcounty.com/downloads/CCHB_Board_Charter.pdf/.

(III) reINForCe INDepeNDeNCe

1. annual assessment of Independence of Directors

 The Board carries out an annual assessment of the independence of its Independent Directors.

 The said Assessment has been based on the following criteria:-

(i) Legal requirements

 As a basic evaluation criteria, the Board adopts the definition of Independent Director as stipulated in Rule 
1.01 of the ACE LR of Bursa Securities. 

(ii) Declaration of independence by the Independent Directors

 Secondly, the Board will take note of the Declaration of Independence by the Independent Directors. 

 The Board noted that Letters of Declaration have been executed by the following Independent Non-Executive 
Directors of the Company, confirming their independence pursuant to relevant ACE LR of Bursa Securities as 
well as the MCCG 2012 and that the Independent Non-Executive Directors have undertaken to inform the 
Company immediately should there be any change which could interfere with the exercise of their independent 
judgement or ability to act in the best interest of the Company:-

•	 Mr.	Hong	Cheong	Liang
•	 Ms.	Lim	Bee	San
•	 Mr.	Mok	Shiaw	Hang
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(III) reINForCe INDepeNDeNCe (CoNt’D)

1. annual assessment of Independence of Directors (Cont’d)

(iii) Independence of mind and/or action 

 Thirdly, the Board will perform a general observation on the contributions made by the Independence Directors 
in respect to their individual and unfettered views on various issues at Board and/or Board Committee 
Meetings (where applicable).  

(iv) outcome of Directors’ self-assessment and evaluation of Board and Board Committee’s 
effectiveness

 Fourthly, the Board vide the Nomination Committee will conduct annually the Directors’ self-assessment and 
peer assessment survey, the Evaluation on the effectiveness of the Board of Directors and the Committees 
of the Board (hereinafter referred to as “the Surveys”). The Surveys do provide an indication of level of 
independence demonstrated by the Independent Non-Executive Directors and their ability to act in the best 
interest of the Company.

(v) any relationship between Independent Directors and Management 

 Lastly, the Board will consider any existing relationship, be it family and/or business between Independent 
Directors and Management that could materially interfere with the exercise of their objectivity and independent 
judgement.

 The Board noted that Mr. Hong Cheong Liang, Ms. Lim Bee San and Mr. Mok Shiaw Hang are independent of 
management and free from any relationship that could materially interfere with the exercise of their objectivity 
and independent judgement.

 
 Mr. Ang Chuang Juay, Mr. Chang Choon Ming, Ms. Lim Bee San and Mr. Mok Shiaw Hang are the Director who 

will be eligible for stand for re-election at the forthcoming AGM of the Company. 

 The Board therefore recommends and supports the re-election of Mr. Ang Chuang Juay, the Director who retires 
in accordance with Article 83 of the Articles of Association of the Company at forthcoming AGM of the Company.

 The Board further recommends and supports the re-election of Mr. Chang Choon Ming, Ms. Lim Bee San and 
Mr. Mok Shiaw Hang, the Directors who retire in accordance with Article 90 of the Articles of Association of the 
Company at forthcoming AGM of the Company.

2. tenure of Independent Directors

 The MCCG 2012 recommended that the tenure of an Independent Director should not exceed a cumulative terms 
of nine (9) years. Upon completion of the nine (9) years’ terms, an Independent Director may continue to serve on 
the Board subject to the Director’s re-designations as a Non-Independent Director.

 The Board subscribes to an open policy on the tenure of Independent Director whereby there should not be an 
arbitrary tenure be imposed on the Independent Directors. The Board believes that the length of tenure of Independent 
Directors on the Board does not interfere with their objective and independent judgement or their ability to act in 
the best interest of the Company. 

 In view thereof, the Board shall provide justifications and seek shareholders’ approval in the event it proposes to 
retain an independent director who has served the Board in that capacity for more than nine (9) years, upon the 
prior review and relevant recommendation from the Nomination Committee. 

 The Board noted there are no Independent Directors whose tenure exceeds a cumulative term of nine (9) years 
in the Company thus far. Therefore, there is no such need for the Company to seek for shareholders’ approval on 
the said purpose at the forthcoming AGM of the Company.
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3. Separation of position of the Chairman and Chief executive officer

 The Board recognises the importance of having a clearly accepted division of power and responsibilities at the 
head of the Company to ensure a balance of power and authority. At present, the Company does not have a Chief 
Executive Officer but Executive Director. 

 There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the Executive Director. The position of the 
Chairman is held by Mr. Chang Choon Ming, a Non-Independent Non-Executive Chairman. The Board has outlined 
the roles and responsibilities of the Chairman of the Board through the Board Charter.

 Mr. Ang Chuang Juay is the Executive Deputy Chairman, the de facto head of management who is based mainly 
in China. The roles of the Non-Independent Non-Executive Chairman and the Executive Deputy Chairman, duly 
outlined in the Board Charter are quite distinct and separate. 

 Bearing in mind that the Company’s main manufacturing plants are located in China, a Board level management 
personnel is required to not only manage the RCC, China, but to represent the Board in dealing with third parties 
and/or the relevant authorities. 

 The current arrangement is to provide strong leadership with the ability to marshal the Board’s priorities objectively 
and to propel the Group to the next level while keeping a lean Board composition, in tune with the operational 
requirements of the Group.

 
4. Board Composition and Balance

 The Board noted the Recommendation 3.5 of the MCCG 2012 stating that the Board must comprise a majority 
of Independent Directors where the Chairman of the Board is not an Independent Director.

 The Board is currently composed of five (5) members, three (3) of whom are Independent Non-Executive Directors, 
one (1) is the Non-Independent Non-Executive Director and the other one (1) is the Executive Director. The 
Independent Directors represent compliance with the requirement for one-third (1/3) Independent Directors on the 
Board, pursuant to Rule 15.02(1) of the ACE LR of the Bursa Securities and the adoption of the best practices set 
out in the MCCG 2012. 

 Through the Surveys the Independent Non-Executive Directors have indicated their satisfaction with the level of 
independence of each of their peers and their ability to act in the best interests of the Company in decision-making. 
The Directors have made valuable contributions to the Company through their business acumen and the application 
of a wide spectrum of knowledge and skills from their respective experiences.

 The members of the Board consist of professionals with calibre and entrepreneurs equipped with a mix of industry 
specific knowledge with broad business and commercial experience. This balance provides the strength that is 
needed to lead the Company to meet its objectives and to provide effective leadership to the Company in aspects 
of strategy and performance as well as to maintain high standards of governance and integrity in deciding matters 
relating to strategy, performance, internal controls, investor relations and human resource.

 The Board is of the view that the current composition of the Board is appropriate, where no individual shall dominate 
the Board’s decision making. It reflects fairly the investment in the Company by the shareholders at large even 
though two (2) of the Board members namely Mr. Chang Choon Ming and Mr. Ang Chuang Juay are substantial 
shareholders in the Company. In that respect, the interests of investors including the Company’s minority shareholders 
and the public are adequately served and protected by the appointment of the three (3) Independent Non-Executive 
Directors. The profile of each of the members of the Board is as set out in the Board of Directors’ Profile of this 
Annual Report.

 The Board structure ensures that no individual or group of individuals dominates the Board’s decision-making 
process. The composition of the Board provides an effective blend of entrepreneurship, business and professional 
expertise in general management, finance, corporate affairs, legal and technical areas of the industry in which the 
Group operates. The individuality and vast experience of the Directors in arriving at collective decisions at board 
level will ensure impartiality.
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STaTemenT on CorPoraTe GovernanCe
(cont’d)

(IV) FoSter CoMMItMeNt

1. time Commitment

 The Board requires its members to devote sufficient time to the workings of the Board, to effectively discharge 
their duties as Directors of the Company, and to use their best endeavours to attend meetings. 

 Board protocol on time Commitment

 As a general rule, the Directors are expected to devote sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the Company/ 
Group.

 The Board has in place the following protocols:-

1.1 Board of Directors’ Meetings attendance

 During FYE 2016, the Board had convened a total of eight (8) Board of Directors’ Meetings for the purposes of 
deliberating on the Company’s quarterly financial results at the end of every quarter and discussing important 
matters which demanded immediate attention and decision-making. During the Board of Directors’ Meetings, 
the Board reviewed the operation and performance of the Company and other strategic issues that may affect 
the Company’s business. Relevant staff were invited to attend some of the Board of Directors’ Meetings to 
provide the Board with their views and clarifications on issues raised by the Directors.

 review of attendance by the Nomination Committee

 The Nomination Committee has been tasked to review the attendance of the Directors at Board and/or Board 
Committee Meetings. Upon review, the Nomination Committee noted the Board members have devoted 
sufficient time and effort to attend Board and/or Board Committee meetings for FYE 2016.

 For FYE 2016, majority of the Board members achieved a 100% attendance at the Board Meetings held. 
The attendance record of each Director at Board Meetings during the last financial year is as follows:-

Name of Directors

total no.
of meetings held 
during tenure of 

office

total no.
of meetings 

attended
% of 

attendance
Chang Choon Ming 1 1 100
Ang Chuang Juay 8 7 88
Hong Cheong Liang 8 8 100
Lim Bee San 3 3 100
Mok Shiaw Hang 1 1 100

 The Board will also meet on an ad-hoc basis to deliberate urgent issues and matters that require expeditious 
Board direction or approval. In the intervals between Board meetings, any matters requiring urgent Board 
decisions and/or approval can be sought via circular resolutions which are supported with all the relevant 
information and explanations required for an informed decision to be made.

 Meeting papers were prepared to provide relevant facts, analysis and recommendations for supporting the 
proposals to enable informed decision-making by the Board. The agenda and papers for meetings were 
furnished to the Directors and Board Committee members at least three (3) days in advance to enable them 
to prepare for the meetings.

 The Board encourages constructive and healthy debate at all meetings. The Directors are given the chance to 
freely express their opinions or share information with their peers in the course of deliberation as a participative 
Board. Any Director/Board Committee member who has a direct or deemed interest in the subject matter 
to be deliberated shall abstain from deliberation and voting on the same during the meeting.
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(IV) FoSter CoMMItMeNt (CoNt’D)

1. time Commitment (Cont’d)

1.1 Board of Directors’ Meetings attendance (Cont’d)

 review of attendance by the Nomination Committee (Cont’d)

 The Company Secretaries would ensure a quorum is present for all meetings and that such meetings are 
convened in accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company or relevant Board Committee’s TOR. 
The Company Secretaries record the proceedings of all meetings including pertinent issues, the substance 
of inquiries (if any) and responses thereto, members’ suggestions and the decisions made, as well as the 
rationale for those decisions. By doing so, the Company Secretaries keep the Board updated on the follow-up 
actions arising from the Board’s decisions and/or requests at subsequent meetings. The Board is therefore 
able to perform its fiduciary duties and fulfil its oversight role towards instituting a culture of transparency 
and accountability in the Company.

1.2 acceptance of New Directorships in other companies

 The members of the Board are required to notify the Independent Non-Executive Chairman and/or the 
Company Secretaries in writing prior to accepting any new directorship. Such notification also includes an 
indication of time that will be spent on the new appointment. 

 As at the date of this Statement, there was one (1) written notification received from Mr. Hong Cheong Liang 
on his appointment as Director in K-Star Sports Limited on 3 August 2016.

1.3 annual Meeting Schedule

 In facilitating the schedule of the Directors, the Company Secretaries will prepare and circulate in advance an 
annual meeting schedule, which includes all the proposed meeting dates for Board and Board Committee 
Meetings, as well as the AGM. Upon the concurrence by all the Board members, the annual meeting timetable 
will be adopted for the applicable financial year.

1.4 restriction on Directorship in other listed companies

 None of the Directors have more than five directorships in public listed corporations listed on Bursa Securities.

2. Continuing education and training of Directors

 In order for the enlarged Connect Group to remain competitive, the Board ensures that the Directors continuously 
enhance their skills and expand their knowledge to meet the challenges of the Board. 

 The Board has cultivated the following best practices:-

•	 All	newly	appointed	Directors	are	to	attend	the	Mandatory	Accreditation	Programme	as	prescribed	by	the	
ACE LR of Bursa Securities within the stipulated timeframe;

•	 All	Directors	are	encouraged	to	attend	talks,	training	programmes	and	seminars	to	update	their	knowledge	
on the latest regulatory and business environment;

•	 The	Directors	may	be	requested	to	attend	additional	training	courses	according	to	their	individual	needs	as	
a Director or member of Board Committees on which they serve;

•	 The	Directors	are	briefed	by	the	Company	Secretaries	on	the	letters	 issued	by	Bursa	Securities	at	every	
Board meeting; and

•	 The	Directors	are	to	undertake	reconnaissance	trip/	board	meetings	at	subsidiary(ies)	of	different	jurisdiction	
to have a first hand knowledge of the operations of the Group.

 Upon assessing the training needs of the Directors, the Board recognised that continuing education would be the 
way forward in ensuring its members are continually equipped with the necessary skills and knowledge to meet 
the challenges ahead. 
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(IV) FoSter CoMMItMeNt (CoNt’D)

2. Continuing education and training of Directors (Cont’d)

 As at the date of this Statement, the Board has participated in the following continuing education programmes:- 

 (a) Mr. ang Chuang Juay

No. Dates Description of training programmes

1. 12 December 2016 Internal Quality Training on ISO/TS 16949

 (b) Mr. Hong Cheong Liang

No. Dates Description of training programmes

1. 13 January 2016 The New Auditor’s Report – Sharing the United Kingdom Experience

2. 26 March 2016  Corporate Governance Breakfast Series: Improving Board Risk Oversight 
Effectiveness

3. 22 August 2016 Case Study Workshop for Independent Directors

4. 20 September 2016 CPA Congress in Kuala Lumpur 2016

5. 6 December 2016 Feng Shui Talk: 2017 Year of the Fire Phoenix

 (c) Ms. Lim Bee San

No. Dates Description of training programmes

1. 23 August 2016 Practical Impact of the New Companies Act

 The newly appointed Directors, i.e. Mr. Chang Choon Ming and Mr. Mok Shiaw Hang who were appointed towards 
the end of FYE 2016, have been scheduled to attend their respective Mandatory Accreditation Programme prescribed 
by Bursa Securities in financial year ending 31 December 2017.

 In addition, the Company Secretaries and the External Auditors update the Board on a regular basis the respective 
changes and amendments to regulatory requirements and laws and accounting standards to help Directors keep 
abreast of such developments.

 Upon review, the Board concluded that the continuing education programmes participated by the Directors for 
FYE 2016 were adequate. 

 2017 training Needs

 Upon review of the training needs of the Directors for the financial year ending 31 December 2017 and recognising 
the need to keep abreast with the fast changing business and regulatory environment, the Board has encouraged its 
members to attend at least two (2) continuing education programmes, whereby one of those should be in relation 
to the ACE LR of Bursa Securities. 
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(V) UpHoLD INteGrItY IN FINaNCIaL reportING

1. Compliance with applicable Financial reporting Standards

 The Audit Committee assist the Board to oversee the financial reporting process and the quality of its financial 
reporting by reviewing the information to be disclosed, to ensure completeness, accuracy and adequacy prior to 
endorsing the same to the Board for release to Bursa Securities and Securities Commission Malaysia. 

 The Audit Committee has received assurance that the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for 
the financial year ended 31 December 2016 had been prepared in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting 
Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. 
Consequently, the Audit Committee has recommended the Audited Financial Statement for the financial year ended 
31 December 2016 of the Company to the Board for approval and the Board upon its review, has approved the 
same at a Board of Directors’ Meeting held on 27 March 2017.

 The Board ensures that shareholders are presented with a clear, balanced, meaningful assessment of the Company’s 
financial performance and prospects through the issuance of the audited financial statements and quarterly 
announcements of financial results and vide corporate announcements on significant development in accordance 
with the ACE LR of Bursa Securities on a timely basis and in compliance with the applicable financial reporting 
standards.

2. assessment of Suitability and Independence of external auditors

 For FYE 2016, the Audit Committee has formalised the procedures to assess the suitability and independence of 
External Auditors vide an annual assessment of the suitability and independence of the External Auditors.

 In its assessment of “Suitability” of the External Auditors, the Audit Committee considered, inter alia, the following 
factors:-

•	 The	External	Auditors	have	the	adequate	resources,	skills,	knowledge	and	experience	to	perform	their	duties	
with professional competence and due care in accordance with approved professional auditing standards 
and applicable regulatory and legal requirements;

•	 To	the	knowledge	of	the	Audit	Committee,	the	External	Auditors	do	not	have	any	record	of	disciplinary	actions	
taken against them for unprofessional conduct by the MIA which has not been reversed by the Disciplinary 
Board of MIA;

•	 The	engagement	partner	has	not	served	for	a	continuous	period	of	more	than	five	(5)	years	with	the	Company;
•	 The	external	audit	firm	has	the	geographical	coverage	required	to	audit	the	Company;
•	 The	external	audit	firm	advises	the	Audit	Committee	on	significant	issues	and	new	developments	pertaining	

to risk management, corporate governance, financial reporting standards and internal controls on a timely 
basis;

•	 The	external	audit	firm	consistently	meets	the	deadlines	set	by	the	Company;
•	 The	level	of	quality	control	procedures	in	the	external	audit	firm,	including	the	audit	review	procedures;	and
•	 The	external	audit	scope	is	adequate	to	cover	the	key	financial	and	operational	risks	of	the	Company.

 In its assessment of “Independence” of the External Auditors, the Audit Committee considered, inter alia, the 
following factors:-

•	 The	lead	engagement	partner	has	not	served	for	a	continuous	period	of	more	than	five	(5)	years	with	the	
Company;

•	 The	Audit	Committee	receives	written	assurance	from	the	External	Auditors	confirming	that	they	are,	and	
have been, independent throughout the conduct of the audit engagement in accordance with the terms of 
all relevant professional and regulatory requirements; and

•	 Tenure	of	the	current	External	Auditors.

 The Audit Committee noted for FYE 2016, Messrs. Moore Stephens Associates PLT, the External Auditors of the 
Company confirmed that the engagement quality control reviewer and members of the engagement team in the 
course of their audits were and had been independent for the purpose of the audit in accordance with the terms 
of relevant professional and regulatory requirements.
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STaTemenT on CorPoraTe GovernanCe
(cont’d)

(V) UpHoLD INteGrItY IN FINaNCIaL reportING (CoNt’D)

2. assessment of Suitability and Independence of external auditors (Cont’d)

 The Audit Committee noted that the current External Auditors has been appointed since the Company’s listing on 
20 October 2005. The Audit Committee further noted that the lead engagement partner of Messrs. Moore Stephens 
Associates PLT for FYE 2016 has been rotated. 

 Upon completion of its assessment, the Audit Committee was satisfied with Messrs. Moore Stephens Associates 
PLT’s technical competency and audit independence during the financial year under review and recommended to 
the Board the re-appointment of Messrs. Moore Stephens Associates PLT as External Auditors for the financial 
year ending 31 December 2017. The Board has in turn, has recommended the same for shareholders’ approval 
at the forthcoming 14th AGM of the Company.

(VI) reCoGNISe aND MaNaGe rISKS

1. Sound Framework to Manage risks

 The Group’s risk management system was updated internally by the Management. The framework of the risk 
management encompasses the following key elements:- 

 
•	 Risks	identified	were	individually	assessed	and	ranked	as	either	extreme, high, medium or low based on its 

magnitude of impact and likelihood of occurrence within the Group; and

•	 Individual	risk	profiles	created	from	the	above	assessment	were	endorsed	by	the	Board	and	subsequently	
cascaded to the Senior Management of the Group for implementation of action plans required to mitigate 
or maintain the risk impact of the Group at an acceptable level.

 For FYE 2016, the RMC has reviewed the Group RMF to ensure that the said Framework remain relevant for use 
and made recommendations for additional insertions, where applicable. 

 The internal controls are tested for effectiveness and efficiency at least two (2) cycles per financial year via an 
independent outsourced Internal Audit function. The report of the Internal Audit is tabled for the Audit Committee’s 
review and comments, and the audit findings will then be communicated to the Board.

 The Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control of the Group as set out in this Annual Report provides 
an overview of the state of risk management and internal controls within the Group.

 As part of the risk mitigation measures, the Board has established the following policies:-

(i) Insider Dealing policy

 Insider dealing or trading is defined as the purchase or sale of the Company’s securities affected by or on 
behalf of a person with knowledge of relevant but non-public material information regarding that company. 
The insider is in a position to make massive gains by selling or buying securities before information that might 
affect the price of the Company’s securities (price-sensitive information) is made public.

 This Policy aims mainly to prevent insider dealing of securities and ensure transparency and fairness in dealing 
with all stakeholders of the Company.

 A copy of this Policy is available for viewing under the “Corporate Governance” section of the Company’s 
corporate website at www.connectcounty.com/downloads/CCHB_Insider_Dealing_Policy.pdf/.
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(VI) reCoGNISe aND MaNaGe rISKS (CoNt’D)

1. Sound Framework to Manage risks (Cont’d)

(ii) related party transaction (“rpt”) policy

 The Board has formalised a RPT Policy which is designed to ensure the RPTs carried out in the ordinary course 
of business, are made at arm’s length and on normal commercial terms which are not more favourable to the 
related party or parties than those generally available to the public and are not on terms that are detrimental 
to the minority shareholders of the Company. 

 This policy also aims to comply with the Part E, Paragraphs 10.08 and 10.09 of the ACE LR of Bursa 
Securities.

 A copy of this Policy is available for viewing under the “Corporate Governance” section of the Company’s 
corporate website at www.connectcounty.com/downloads/Related_Party_transaction_Policy.pdf/.

2.  Internal audit Function

 The outsourced Internal Auditors communicate regularly with and report directly to the Audit Committee. For FYE 
2016, the outsourced Internal Auditors’ representative met up twice with the Audit Committee. 

 The Internal Audit Review of the Company’s operations encompasses an independent assessment of the Company’s 
compliance with its internal controls and makes recommendations for improvement.

 outsourced Internal auditors

 At the Audit Committee Meeting held on 16 February 2016, the outsourced Internal Auditors, Morison AAC Corporate 
Solutions Sdn. Bhd. (“Morison”) have presented to the Audit Committee the 2016 Risk-based Internal Audit Plan, 
encompassing the following audit visits and timing:-

Scheduled for Internal audit review
FYe 31 December

2015 2016

rCC
- operations Management

•	 Production	Resource	Planning
•	 Production	Planning,	Work	Scheduling	and	Control
•	 Quality	Management	and	Performance	Measurement
•	 Waste	Handling	and	Equipment	Maintenance
•	 Research	and	Development	monitoring
•	 Environment,	Safety	and	Health

Q2

- Inventory Control & Management

•	 Inventory	Levels	Management
•	 Re-order	quantities	and	procurement
•	 Material	issuance
•	 Inventory	Tracking	System
•	 Warehouse	Control	and	Access
•	 Control	Over	Disposal	of	Spoilage	/	Damaged	Goods

Q2

rCS
- revenue and receivables Management

•	 Revenue	Forecast	and	Planning
•	 Revenue	Processing	Cycle
•	 Credit	Management	and	Evaluation	
•	 Credit	Monitoring	and	Collection

Q4
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STaTemenT on CorPoraTe GovernanCe
(cont’d)

(VI) reCoGNISe aND MaNaGe rISKS (CoNt’D)

2.  Internal audit Function (Cont’d)

 outsourced Internal auditors (Cont’d)

 At the Audit Committee Meeting held on 16 February 2016, the outsourced Internal Auditors, Morison AAC Corporate 
Solutions Sdn. Bhd. (“Morison”) have presented to the Audit Committee the 2016 Risk-based Internal Audit Plan, 
encompassing the following audit visits and timing:- (Cont’d)

Scheduled for Internal audit review
FYe 31 December

2015 2016

rCI 
- review of Corporate Governance

•	 Management	and	structure	of	reporting
•	 Discretionary	Authority	Limits

Q1

- Sales and revenue Management

•	 Customers	Evaluation
•	 Credit	Limits	Approval
•	 Daily	Sales	Order	Processing

Q1

- account receivable Management,

•	 Accounts	Receivables	Tracking	
•	 Collection	Procedures

Q1

- procurement & payables Management

•	 Selection	of	vendor	
•	 Procurement	planning	
•	 Sourcing	for	competitive	prices	
•	 Purchasing	authority	limit	
•	 Suppliers	performance	appraisal

Q1

- Human resources Management

•	 HR	policies	and	procedures	
•	 Recruitment	
•	 Resignation	and	termination	
•	 Performance	review	and	appraisal	
•	 Leave	management	
•	 Training	and	development

Q1

- Inventory Management

•	 Inventory	Levels	Management	
•	 Re-order	and	procurement	
•	 Material	issuance	
•	 Inventory	Tracking	System	
•	 Warehouse	Control	and	Access

Q1

- property, plant & equipment

•	 CAPEX	Planning	&	budget	
•	 CAPEX	Policies	and	Procedures	
•	 Commissioning	of	Plant	and	Machinery	Maintenance	
•	 Disposal	/	Write-offs	
•	 Physical	control	

Q1
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(VI) reCoGNISe aND MaNaGe rISKS (CoNt’D)

2.  Internal audit Function (Cont’d)

 outsourced Internal auditors (Cont’d)

 At the Audit Committee Meeting held on 16 February 2016, the outsourced Internal Auditors, Morison AAC Corporate 
Solutions Sdn. Bhd. (“Morison”) have presented to the Audit Committee the 2016 Risk-based Internal Audit Plan, 
encompassing the following audit visits and timing:- (Cont’d)

Scheduled for Internal audit review
FYe 31 December

2015 2016

rCC
- procurement and payables Management

•	 Selection	of	vendor
•	 Procurement	planning
•	 Sourcing	for	competitive	prices
•	 Purchasing	authority	limit
•	 Suppliers	performance	appraisal

Q4

- Financial Management

•	 Budgeting	and	Budget	Management
•	 Treasury	and	Fund	Management
•	 Cash	Flow	Monitoring
•	 Borrowing	Operation
•	 Payment	Process
•	 Receipt	Process
•	 Insurance	Coverage

Q4

 
 At the said Meeting, the Audit Committee has resolved that the 2016 Risk-based Internal Audit Plan be approved 

for adoption. 

 For FYE 2016, the Audit Committee noted that Morison has successfully conducted and completed their audits 
in accordance with the 2016 Risk-based Internal Audit Plan.

 Formal assessment of Internal auditors

 For FYE 2016, the Audit Committee has formalised the procedures to assess the performance of internal auditors 
vide an annual assessment of the suitability of the internal auditors. 

 In its assessment, the Audit Committee considered, inter alia, the following assessment criteria:-
•	 Understanding;
•	 Charter	and	structure;
•	 Skills	and	experiences;
•	 Communication;	and
•	 Performance.

 Upon completion of its assessment, the Audit Committee was satisfied with the outsourced Internal Auditor, 
Morison’s technical competency and audit independence during the financial year under review.
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(VII) eNSUre tIMeLY aND HIGH QUaLItY DISCLoSUre

1. Corporate Disclosure policy

 The Company recognises the value of transparent, consistent and coherent communications with investment 
community consistent with commercial confidentiality and regulatory considerations.

 In line with that, the Board has adopted a Corporate Disclosure Policy on 19 November 2015 in order to develop 
and maintain an established framework for making corporate disclosures.

 The Directors of the Company, the Company Secretary, all employees of the Company and its subsidiaries are 
obliged to observe the provisions of Corporate Disclosure Policy. Nonetheless, this Policy does not cover the 
following:-

(i)  material information that is already in the public domain;
(ii)  material information that is not generated or owned by the Company;
(iii) material information that summarises, realigns or is computed from material information that already in the 

public domain. 

 Pursuant to this Policy, the following are the authorised spokesperson of the Company:-

 authorised Spokesperson

Name of Director Designation

Mr. Ang Chuang Juay Executive Deputy Chairman

Mr. Nicholas Chee Tiong King Chief Financial Officer
 

 This Policy has been entrenched into the Board Charter and will be reviewed biennially or as and when it is required 
to ensure the information remains current and updated. 

 The detailed Board Charter can be downloaded from the Company’s website at http://www.connectcounty.com/
downloads/CCHB_Board_Charter.pdf/.

 During FYE 2016, the Company has engaged a professional public relations firm to manage and assist with the 
release of information to the public, in particular, press release and press interview.  

2. Leverage on Information technology for effective Dissemination of Information

 The Company’s corporate website provides all relevant information on the Company and is accessible by the public. 
It includes the announcements made by the Company and annual reports. The Board discloses to the public all 
material information necessary for informed investment and takes reasonable steps to ensure that all shareholders 
enjoy equal access to such information.

 The Company’s corporate website is accessible at http://www.connectcounty.com/.
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(VIII) StreNGtHeN reLatIoNSHIp BetWeeN CoMpaNY aND SHareHoLDerS

1. Shareholders’ participation at General Meetings

 The Company communicates regularly with the shareholders and investors through annual reports, quarterly financial 
reports and various announcements made to the Bursa Securities as the Board acknowledges the importance of 
accurate and timely dissemination of information to its shareholders, potential investors and the public in general.

 
 Several channels are used to disseminate information on a timely basis, such as:-

•	 The	AGM	which	is	used	as	the	main	forum	of	dialogue	for	shareholders	to	raise	any	issues	pertaining	to	the	
Company;

•	 Annual	report,	quarterly	financial	results	and	various	announcements	made	to	Bursa	Securities;	and
•	 The	websites	http://www.connectcounty.com/ which provide corporate information on the Group.

 At the 13th AGM of the Company held on 26 May 2016, all the Directors were present to engage personally with 
the shareholders present.

2. poll Voting

 The Board noted the Recommendation 8.2 of the MCCG 2012 states that the Board should encourage poll voting. 
In line with this recommendation, the Chairman of the Meeting will inform the shareholders of their right to demand 
a poll vote at the commencement of the general meeting.

 Where feasible and within the financial means of the Company, the Board will consider and explore the suitability 
and feasibility of adopting electronic voting in coming years to facilitate greater shareholders participation at general 
meeting(s).

3. Shareholders’ Communication and Investor relations

3.1  Shareholders’ Communication policy

 The Company recognises the value of transparent, consistent and coherent communications with investment 
community consistent with commercial confidentiality and regulatory considerations.

 In line with that, the Board has adopted a Shareholders’ Communication Policy on 19 November 2015 to 
ensure that all shareholders have ready and timely access to all publicly available information of the Company, 
to fairly and accurately represent the Company so that investors and potential investors can make properly 
informed investment decisions and others can have a balanced understanding of the Company and its 
objectives.

 The Board has adopted the following measures with regards to communication with the Company’s 
shareholders:-

(i) Announcements to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad

 Material information, updates and periodic financial reports are published on a timely basis through 
announcements to Bursa Securities.

 Shareholders and investors can obtain the Company’s latest announcements such as quarterly financial 
results in the dedicated website of Bursa Securities at http://www.bursamalaysia.com.my. 

(ii) Corporate Website

 A corporate website (http://www.connectcounty.com/) is maintained and the said website contains 
relevant information for the shareholders, potential investors, suppliers and the general public.

(iii) Annual Reports

 The Company’s Annual Reports to the shareholders remain the central means of communicating to 
the shareholders, amongst others, the Company’s operations, activities and performance for the past 
financial year end as well as the status of compliance with applicable rules and regulations.
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STaTemenT on CorPoraTe GovernanCe
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(VIII) StreNGtHeN reLatIoNSHIp BetWeeN CoMpaNY aND SHareHoLDerS (CoNt’D)

3. Shareholders’ Communication and Investor relations (Cont’d)

3.1  Shareholders’ Communication policy (Cont’d)

 The Board has adopted the following measures with regards to communication with the Company’s 
shareholders:- (Cont’d)

(iv) AGMs/General Meetings

 The AGM/General Meetings which are used as the main forum of dialogue for shareholders to raise 
any issues pertaining to the Company. 

 For the convenience of the shareholders, the Board endeavour to ensure the venue of the general 
meetings be held in Kuala Lumpur area, being the capital city of Malaysia. 

(v) Designated Contact Persons

 Any enquiry regarding investor relations/ from the shareholders may be conveyed to the following 
designated senior management personnel, the information of which has also been published on the 
Company’s Corporate Website:-

Mr. Nicholas Chee, Chief Financial Officer
Email address: nicholas.chee@rapidconn.org
Telephone No. : 03-9054 3776
Facsimile No : 03–9055 3767

         This policy will be reviewed biennially or as and when it is required to ensure the information remains current 
and updated. 

3.2 Investor relations (“Ir”)

 A summary of IR activities conducted for FYE 2016 is listed below for information:- 

Date topic of Ir activities
type of 
Ir activities audience

19 February 2016 Quarter 4 FYE 2015 results Press release Media

16 May 2016 Quarter 1 FYE 2016 results Press release Media

30 August 2016 Quarter 2 FYE 2016 results Press release Media

25 November 2016 Quarter 3 FYE 2016 results Press release Media

 Conclusion

 As recommended by Bursa Securities, the Board has perused and reviewed the Letter dated 19 December 2016 from 
Bursa Securities in relation to the Analysis of Corporate Governance Disclosures in Annual Reports and Report on 
Company’s Performance together with a copy of the Company’s Corporate Governance Disclosure scores and detailed 
report. Pursuant to the said Letter, the Board has instituted several measures to improve the shortcomings/ weaknesses 
detected. 

 The Board is satisfied that for the financial year ended 31 December 2016, it complies substantially with the principles 
and recommendations of the MCCG 2012.

 This Statement on Corporate Governance is made in accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors passed 
on 20 April 2017.
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StateMeNt oN 
CorPoraTe SoCIal reSPonSIbIlITY

The Board acknowledges that effective management of social and environmental risks of the Group’s business environment 
can improve business performance. This has led to increased oversight by the Board over how the Group is managing its social 
and environmental performance as part of its fiduciary obligation and accountability. 

The Group believes that part of being a good company is being a responsible corporate citizen, and that a firm commitment 
to Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSr”) activities forms the basis of good corporate citizenship. 

Aligned with the Group’s business strategy, we endeavour to manage our business in a socially responsible manner. We strive 
to look after the interests of our key stakeholders – from shareholders, investors, customers, suppliers to employees, as well 
as the community where we operate. 

Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”) has defined “Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSr”) as:-

“Open and transparent business practices that are based on ethical values and respect for the community, employees, the 
environment, shareholders. It is designed to deliver sustainable value to society at large.” 

The Group has adopted the Bursa Securities’s CSR Framework which was launched in 2006 as a set of guidelines for Malaysian 
public listed companies who wish to practice CSR. The Group’s CSR framework covers the following four (4) dimensions:-

(1) Workplace

√ Training and development
√ Workplace diversity
√ Healthy and safe working environment
√ Employees’ well being

(2) Community

√ Cultural awareness programme to selected school
√ Financial and non-financial contributions to help and 

promote the welfare of those in need

(3) environment

√  Re-engineering of products for less material and labour 
consumption

√ Compliance and adherence to local environmental laws, 
regulations and requirements

(4) Marketplace

√  Corporate governance in key areas of cooperate 
disclosures and investor relations

√  Dedicated sections at corporate website that is 
accessible to the stakeholders and the public at large

(1) WorKpLaCe

 With a constantly growing workforce and ever-evolving Information and Technology, it is imperative that the Group 
continues to invest in its employees.

(a) training and Development

 Training programmes, both internal and external, are organised to deliver an all-round training experience to our 
employees by upgrading their skill sets, job knowledge and competency level in achieving an overall increase in 
productivity.

 Rapid Conn (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“rCC”), the Group’s subsidiary in China has put in place a comprehensive 
training and development programme to improve the skill sets and knowledge of its staff.

 For the financial year ended 2016 (“FYe 2016”), a total of 28 training sessions have been organised for the benefit 
of Production workers, Quality Assurance workers, all workers and Store Department workers, respectively, with an 
average of 7 training sessions per quarter. Upon completion, the relevant participants were required to undergo oral 
and/or written examinations, which will form part of their personnel records for bonus entitlement, salary increment 
and/or promotion prospects.

 Respect and considerations of our colleagues are the work culture of the Group. Training programmes and job 
rotations are in place for employees in assisting them to work towards their goals and aspirations. 



A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 1 6

55

(1) WorKpLaCe (CoNt’D)

(b) Workplace Diversity

 The Group embraces diversity at the workplace and is committed to be a fair and equal opportunity employee. 
We do not allow room for any form of discrimination practice against people of different gender, age, ethnicity, 
nationality or marital status. 

 By employing a diverse workforce, the Group is able to have a better understanding of today’s dynamic market 
demographics. It has also enable the Group to tap into a pool of people from diverse background who can provide 
unique market insights or generate creative solutions, thereby increasing the Group’s competitiveness in today’s 
globalised and challenging economy.

 Note that all members of the Board of Directors are also included as part of the Group’s workplace diversity in 
terms of gender, age and ethnicity.

 Gender diversity

 As at 31 March 2017, the Group had achieved a male to female ratio of 61:39 (2016: 62:38) within its workforce, 
which has well exceeded the Malaysian government’s initiatives to achieve at least 30% women participation in 
the workplace. 

 This represents a slight increase over the preceding year’s ratio of 62:38.

 

STaTemenT on CorPoraTe SoCIal reSPonSIbIlITY
(cont’d)

Workforce in terms 
of Gender in the 

Group
61%

39%

Male Female
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STaTemenT on CorPoraTe SoCIal reSPonSIbIlITY
(cont’d)

(1) WorKpLaCe (CoNt’D)

(b) Workplace Diversity (Cont’d)

 Age diversity

 As at 31 March 2017, 43% of our employees belong to the age group of between 20 and 29 and this represents 
the largest age group. The next largest age group are those aged between 30 and 39 (30%), followed by those 
aged between 40 and 49 years (15%). The Group has a very strict employment policy against the hiring of minors/
underage workers and in this respect, is consistent with the related labour laws of the country in which it operates.

 Note that the Group’s age demographics broadly reflected those overseas where the younger age employees form 
the majority of the workforce. 

 Ethnicity diversity

 In view that, save for Rapid Conn Interconnect (M) Sdn. Bhd., one of the subsidiaries of the Company being located 
in Malaysia, the other subsidiaries are located out of Malaysia, and namely United States of America (“U.S.a.”), 
Singapore and China, the demographics of the ethnicity of the Group’s employees are broadly reflected as such. 
From this perspective, any non-citizens of Malaysia, regardless of race, are considered as “other” in the below 
ethnicity distribution pie chart.

 As at 31 March 2017, employment of Non-Malaysian Citizens ethnicity constituted the largest workforce of the 
Group at 98%. 

Workforce in terms 
of Age in the Group

42%

31%

<20 years 20 - 29 years 30 - 39 years

41 - 49 years 50 - 59 years 60 years and above

15%

6%
6%

Workforce in terms 
of Ethnicity in the 

Group

98%

2%

Malay Chinese Indian Other
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(1) WorKpLaCe (CoNt’D)

(c) Healthy and Safe Working environment 
 
 The Group continuously strive to provide a healthier and safer working environment for our employees. Regular 

workplace inspection is one of the main duties of the Management to ensure work places are uncluttered, neat, tidy 
and safe. Fire and safety drills, as well as risk awareness campaigns are held regularly to ensure that employees 
are well prepared in the event of an emergency.

 To promote a healthier working environment, Rapid Conn (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“rCC”) encourages its employees 
to partake in sports and other health-related activities.

1. Several basketball competitions are organized annually. RCC has its own basketball court within its compound 
and has encourage its employees to make use of the court after working hours; and

2. Organised free yoga sessions for its employees.
 
(d) employees’ Well Being

 As a caring and law-abiding employer, the Group has ensured that all the benefits-in-kind and/or perks as required 
by the local legislation (where the individual subsidiary operates) be accorded and complied with by the respective 
Human Resource Departments (“HrD”). 

 RCC has continue to maintain and manage the implementation of its workers’ benefit schemes which are designed 
to create a conducive working environment for its employees:-

(i) Hostel accommodation is provided to its out-of-town employees – the hostel is situated adjacent to the 
manufacturing plant;

(ii) Periodic review of RCC’s Production Remuneration Scheme for its production workers in accordance with 
the productivity target achieved which served to boost productivity while increasing their basic pay; 

 
(iii) Food subsidy allowance, the quantum ranged from a minimum 30% to 100% be provided to the employees, 

in accordance with their length of service with RCC, with a minimum of 1 year’ service;
  
(iv) Staff Welfare Store – a purpose-built subsidised convenience store within the compound of RCC for the 

benefit of the employees who stayed in the hostel accommodation; and

(v) Annual excursion – a day trip to ZengCheng, BaiShuZai – this trip was organised by a professional tour 
agency in July. A total of 53 tour buses were chartered for the employees and their families. 

(2)  eNVIroNMeNt

 The Group believes it has a moral and social responsibility in reducing the carbon footprint, contributing towards a greener 
environment. 

1. RCC, being the manufacturing outfit of the Group, has re-engineered some of its products to increase the efficiency 
of material and labour consumption, thereby reducing the amount of material usage as well as utilisation of labour 
resources;

2. RCC has also been progressively automating certain manufacturing processes along the assembly lines and is 
also continuously looking into potentially new areas for automation; and

STaTemenT on CorPoraTe SoCIal reSPonSIbIlITY
(cont’d)
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STaTemenT on CorPoraTe SoCIal reSPonSIbIlITY
(cont’d)

(2)  eNVIroNMeNt (CoNt’D)

3. The Group is committed to identify, manage and minimise the environmental impact of its business operations and 
manufacturing activities:-
(a) To comply with environmental regulatory and legal requirements, for example, to minimise the level of pollutants 

entering into the air and water from daily business operations;
(b) To continuously review the Group’s controls and Standard Operating Procedures with regards to its business 

operations and manufacturing activities with a view to managing, attaining and improving the Group’s 
environmental sustainability objectives; and

(c) To create an ever-increasing awareness of this policy within the Group and stakeholders. This is done via 
in-house training programs organised for the employees, and through our policy based on environmental, 
health and safety (“eHS”) guidelines and practices. Our policy can be found on RCG’s official website: http://
www.rapidconn.org/.

(3)  CoMMUNItY

 The Group recognises that the community plays an essential role in driving the success of its business. In view thereof, 
the Group has made its contribution back to society a cornerstone of its CSR activities. For FYE 2016, the following 
community activities were carried out by the Group:-

(a) Community Welfare and Development

 RCC had embarked on several initiatives to provide for the welfare of selected impoverished communities:- 
 
 Guangdong province
   

(i) RCC contributed financially to the installation of thirty (30) solar-powered street lights, which were erected 
along BaoHang Village, a poor village with no electrical power facilities. 

(ii) Villagers were presented with gifts and “ang pow” money.

Solar-powered street 
lamps along BaoHang 
Village.

Volunteers engaging residents of the Bao 
Hang Village.

Residents of the BaoHang Village being 
interviewed by reporters for local media 
coverage.
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(3)  CoMMUNItY (CoNt’D)

(a) Community Welfare and Development (Cont’d)

 Guangdong province (Cont’d)

(iii) RCC’s representative and volunteers from the Association also visited the children of the SongYuan BaoHang 
primary school to donate school bags and other school supplies. 

(iv) RCC’s representative also visited Meizhou special education school for special-needs children.

 Sichuan province
 
 RCC’s volunteers visited a primary school which consists mainly of poor rural children, children who were abandoned 

by their parents and the “left behind” children. RCC has adopted ten (10) of these children and providing them with 
an annual allowance of RMB300.

 The “left-behind children” phenomenon in China is the result of parents from China's rural areas leaving their children 
when they move to urban areas to seek work, leaving them to be cared for by the grandparents (sometimes relatives 
or friends). In some cases the caregiver may not be able to give adequate care due financial or physical reasons, 
leading to the increase in developmental and psychological issues of these children.

(b) Donation to Singapore amalgamated Services Co-operative organisation Limited (“SaSCo Ltd”) 

 SASCO Ltd was established in November 1933. Its aim is to provide social & economic services to community, 
i.e. affordable community and social development to the community at large.

 Since 2013, RCS has been making monetary contributions to the SASCO Community Project Fund with the aim 
to provide a better quality of life for the elders and their families with dependable and affordable care.

(c) Donation to pertubuhan Kebajikan Mental Selangor (“pKMS”)

 PKMS was founded in November 2006 as a non-profit organization to help and care for the depressed and mentally 
disabled.

 The Company donated some funds to PKMS to support the upkeep and maintenance of the Institute’s two (2) 
homes which accommodate around 78 patients, and to help cover the costs of provisions, medication, therapy & 
rehabilitation, and other related facilities/activities. 

STaTemenT on CorPoraTe SoCIal reSPonSIbIlITY
(cont’d)

Charity drive at the Meizhua Special Education School.
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STaTemenT on CorPoraTe SoCIal reSPonSIbIlITY
(cont’d)

(3) CoMMUNItY (CoNt’D)

award and accolades

 Our Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Ang Chuang Juay, received the “Outstanding Volunteer Group” award on behalf of RCC 
during its 2016 Annual Dinner on January 2017. This award was presented by the head of the Communist Youth League, 
in recognition of RCC’s active participation in charity events and initiatives.

 This award was created by the local government for companies/organisations in recognition of their contributions to local 
communities and society.

(4)  MarKetpLaCe 

 As a listed entity as well as an employer, the Group has an obligation to its shareholders and statutory obligations to the 
relevant authorities. The Group has instituted several responsible marketplace practices to maintain the highest standards 
of integrity, fairness and transparency in our conduct of business. 

(a)  Corporate Disclosure practices

 The Group recognises the importance of timely and thorough dissemination of accurate and useful information 
relating to our operations to stakeholders. In this regard, we strictly adhere to the disclosure requirements of Bursa 
Securities and the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board. In fact, this Annual Report contains comprehensive 
information pertaining to the Group, while various disclosures on financial results provide stakeholders with the 
latest financial information on the Group.

(b)  Investor relations (“Ir”) activities

 Recognising the need to communicate the corporate vision, strategies, developments, financial plans and prospects 
of the Group to investors, financial community and other stakeholders fairly and accurately and to obtain feedback 
from the stakeholders, the Group has embarked on investor relation activities during the year. 

 The Group organises regular IR activities to promote and develop a positive relationship with all our stakeholders via 
active two-way communication and to relay pertinent information to stakeholders in a transparent and consistent 
manner. Please refer to the Statement on Corporate Governance in this Annual Report for a summary of IR activities 
conducted for FYE 2016. 

(c)  Dedicated Sections at Corporate Website

 Apart from the mandatory public announcements through Bursa Securities, the Group’s website at http://www.
connectcounty.com/ provides the public with convenient and timely access to business updates, and financial and 
non-financial information. Furthermore, stakeholders are able to direct queries to the Group via this website.

The Outstanding Volunteer Group Award. Mr. Ang Chuang Juay, presented with the 
Outstanding Volunteer Group Award.
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Corporate responsibility Governance (“CrG”) for Sustainability

The concept of corporate responsibility maintains that companies should be responsible to more than just their owners. Corporate 
responsibility maintains that there are multiple dimensions that should affect a company's actions, which will have an impact 
on the Company’s stakeholders and ultimately the public at large. 

The Company will need to understand these dimensions when planning its own corporate responsibility efforts and initiatives, 
and implement and manage these initiatives efficiently, effectively and in a productive manner.

The Company’s corporate responsibility initiatives will be even more meaningful if they are able to attain a high level of sustainability 
that would benefit both the Group and its stakeholders, not just in the short term, but in the long term as well.

Therefore, CRG for sustainability is becoming more essential in gaining the confidence of investors, other stakeholders and 
the public. 

(a) To ensure that sustainability forms an integral part of the Group’s strategic planning initiative;

(b) To enhance and maintain sustainability through regular updates and review on corporate business strategies, objectives 
and policies;

(c) To establish and continue to improve appropriate governance structures and processes;

(d) To assess the impacts and outcomes of sustainability; and

(e) To provide awareness and the relevant training to employees.

The Group recognises the importance of CRG for sustainability and as a responsible corporate citizen; the Group will endeavour 
to ensure sustainability in the design and implementation of CSR initiatives while taking a proactive action in relation to its CSR 
activities.

Currently, the Group is focused on social sustainability, which involves the workplace and the community. Social sustainability is 
focused on the development of programs and processes that promote social interaction and cultural enrichment. It emphasises 
on protecting the vulnerable, respecting social diversity and ensuring that the Group places priority on social capital.

(a) To maintain a safe and healthy workforce;

(b) To recruit and retain high potential and high performing employees;

(c) To use training and development as a strategic investment and a way of shaping culture and behaviour in the Group;

(d) To enable employees to further develop their professional and personal skills;

(e) To promote safety and well-being amongst all employees;

(f) To provide a safer workplace for all employees;

(g) To actively encourage our people to get involved in charity work;

(h) To respond in a professional and timely manner to public enquiries;

(i) To continue to improve public perception and experience of the Group; and

(j) To support and encourage community development.

CoNCLUSIoN

The Group noted that Bursa Securities has always advocated CSR as key to sustainability. The Group recognises the importance 
of sustainability and its increasing impact to the business. The Group is committed to understanding and implementing sustainable 
practices and to exploring the benefits to the business whilst attempting to achieve the right balance between the needs of the 
wider community, the requirements of shareholders and stakeholders, and economic success.

STaTemenT on CorPoraTe SoCIal reSPonSIbIlITY
(cont’d)
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aUDIt CoMMIttee 
rePorT

The Board is pleased to present the Audit Committee Report which provides insight to the manner the Audit Committee members 
discharged its functions for the financial year ended 31 December 2016 (“FYe 2016”).

1. CoMpoSItIoN aND DeSIGNatIoN oF tHe aUDIt CoMMIttee

 The Audit Committee comprises of three (3) members, all of whom are Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INeD”), 
which satisfy the test of independence under the ACE Market Listing Requirements (“aCe Lr”) of Bursa Malaysia Securities 
Berhad (“Bursa Securities”) and also meets the requirements of the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance 2012. 
The composition of the Audit Committee and their attendance records are set out in this report accordingly.

 The Audit Committee Chairman, Mr. Hong Cheong Liang, is an INED. In this respect, the Company comply with Rule 
15.10 of the ACE LR.

 In addition, Mr. Hong Cheong Liang, is a member of the Malaysian Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“MICpa”), 
Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“MIa”) and a Chartered Member of Institute of Internal Auditors of Malaysia (“CMIIa”). 
In this respect, the Company complies with Rule 15.09(1)(c) of the ACE LR.

 For the FYE 2016, the Audit Committee has completed the self and peer assessment surveys for the review by the 
Nomination Committee. Upon review, the Nomination Committee is satisfied that the Audit Committee and each of its 
members were able to discharge their functions, duties and responsibilities in accordance with the Terms of Reference 
of the Audit Committee, thereby supporting the Board in ensuring appropriate Corporate Governance standards within 
the Group.

Name Designation Directorship 

Hong Cheong Liang Chairman Independent Non-Executive Director
 
Lim Bee San Member Independent Non-Executive Director
(Appointed w.e.f. 26 August 2016)

Mok Shiaw Hang Member Independent Non-Executive Director
(Appointed w.e.f. 4 November 2016) 

2. terMS oF reFereNCe

 In view of the recent amendments of the ACE LR of Bursa Securities, the Terms of Reference (“tor”) of the AC has 
been reviewed and revised by the AC and recommended the same to the Board of Directors’ approval for adoption. 
Accordingly, the revised TOR of the AC was approved by the Board of Directors on 13 May 2016.

 The updated Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee is available on the Company’s website at http://www.
connectcounty.com/downloads/CCHB_Board_Charter.pdf under Appendix A of the Board Charter of the Company.
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aUDIT CommITTee rePorT
(cont’d)

MeetINGS

The Audit Committee held a total of five (5) meetings during the financial year ended 31 December 2016. 

The details of attendance of the Audit Committee Meetings during the financial year were as below:-
   

audit Committee Members

Date of
appointment to the
audit Committee

total no. 
of meetings 

attended

total no. 
of meetings 
held during
tenure of

office
%

Hong Cheong Liang (Chairman) 30 October 2014 5 5 100

Lim Bee San 26 August 2016 2 2 100

Mok Shiaw Hang 4 November 2016 1 1 100
    
For the FYE 2016, the Audit Committee Meetings were held as follows:-

No. aC Meeting Date

private session with the Internal auditors and 
external auditors without executive Directors 
and Management

(1) 16 February 2016 √

(2) 25 March 2016 √

(3) 13 May 2016 –

(4) 26 August 2016 –

(5) 22 November 2016 √
  
The Audit Committee would hold meetings with the External Auditors without the presence of the Executive Directors and 
Management (“private Sessions”), where the External Auditors were encouraged to raise with the Audit Committee any matters 
deemed to be important to bring to the Audit Committee’s attention. For FYE 2016, three (3) private sessions were held, with 
the presence of the lead audit engagement partner and the engagement manager of the External Auditors responsible for the 
Company and its subsidiaries had attended all the sessions for FYE 2016.

The Audit Committee Chairman sought information on the communication flow between the External Auditors and the 
Management which was necessary to allow unrestricted access to information for the External Auditors to effectively perform 
their duties.

Notices of Audit Committee meetings and Meeting Papers were distributed to the Committee at least three (3) days in advance 
prior to the meeting to enable the Audit Committee Members to peruse and provide their feedbacks/comments at the meeting. 
All deliberations during the Audit Committee meetings were duly minuted. Minutes of the Audit Committee meetings were tabled 
for confirmation at every succeeding Audit Committee meeting.

The Audit Committee Chairman presented the Audit Committee’s recommendations together with the respective rationale to 
the Board for approval of the annual audited financial statements and the unaudited quarterly financial results. As and when 
necessary, the Audit Committee Chairman would convey to the Board matters of significant concern raised by the Internal or 
External Auditors.
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SUMMarY oF WorKS

The summary of the works undertaken by the Audit Committee for the financial year under review included the following:

(a) Financial reporting review

1. Reviewed the Group’s audited financial statements and made recommendation to the Board for approval.

2. Reviewed the unaudited quarterly reports and announcements for the Board’s consideration and approval.

(b) review of Internal Control Matters

3. Reviewed and discussed the internal audit reports on audit issues highlighted, recommendations and Management 
Responses and the effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal controls.

4. Followed up on previous internal audit reports issued.

5. Reviewed the Audit Committee Report and Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control.

(c) oversight of Internal audit function
  

6. Reviewed the Internal Audit Reports for the FYE 2016 and assessed the Internal Auditors’ findings and the 
Management’s responses and made the necessary recommendations to the Board of Directors for approval;  

7. Reviewed the adequacy and performance of the Internal Audit function and its comprehensive coverage of the 
Group’s activities; 

8. Reviewed and assessed the adequacy of the scope, functions, competency and resources of the outsourced 
Internal Auditors and that they have the necessary authority to carry out their work;

(d) oversight of external auditors

9. Reviewed the Audit Planning Memorandum for the audit of financial year ended 31 December 2016 prepared by 
the External Auditors which set out the External Auditors’ responsibilities in respect of financial reporting, audit 
approach, scope of work, current developments, areas of concern and audit procedures.

10. Considered and recommended to the Board for the approval of the audit fees payable to the External Auditors.

11. Reviewed existing accounting standards for the additional disclosures requirement approved by the Malaysian 
Accounting Standards Board and Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards applicable in the preparation of the 
Group’s financial statements.

(e) review of related party transactions

12. Reviewed the related party transactions and conflict of interest situation that may arises within the Company and 
the Group.

aUDIT CommITTee rePorT
(cont’d)
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INterNaL aUDIt FUNCtIoN

(I) appointment  

 The Group has appointed an external audit service provider to carry out the internal audit function, namely Morison AAC 
Corporate Solutions Sdn. Bhd. (“Morison”). The outsourced Internal Auditors report directly to the Audit Committee, 
providing the Board with a reasonable assurance of adequacy of the scope, functions and resources of the internal audit 
function. The purpose of the internal audit function is to provide the Board, through the Audit Committee, assurance of 
the effectiveness of the system of internal control in the Group.

 The internal audit function is independent and performs audit assignments with impartiality, proficiency and due professional 
care.

(II) Internal audit works

 For the financial year ended 31 December 2016, Morison has successfully conducted the following audits in accordance 
with their Internal Audit Plan 2016 which was approved by the Audit Committee and agreed on the timing, frequency and 
scope of internal audit services to be rendered:-

 

audit entity audit activities

Rapid Conn Inc Review of:-
•	 Corporate	Governance;	
•	 Sales	and	revenue	management;	
•	 Account	receivable	management;	
•	 Procurement	and	payables	management;	
•	 Human	resources	management;	
•	 Inventory	management;	and	
•	 Plant	property	and	equipment.

Rapid Conn (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd. Review of:-
•	 Financial	management;	
•	 Procurement	and	account	payables

 The Audit Committee was informed that Morison has conducted their audit in adherence to the International Standards 
for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing (Standards) as advocated by the Institute of Internal Auditors. 

 During their course of audit, Morison has reviewed compliance with policies, procedures and standards, relevant external 
rules and regulations, as well as assessed the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal control and 
recommended appropriate actions to be taken where necessary.

 The internal audits performed met the objective of highlighting to the Audit Committee the audit findings which required 
follow-up action by the Management, any outstanding audit issues which required corrective actions to be taken to 
ensure an adequate and effective internal control system within the Group, as well as any weaknesses in the Group’s 
internal control system. It ensured that those weaknesses were appropriately addressed and that recommendations from 
the internal audit reports and corrective actions on reported weaknesses were taken appropriately within the required 
timeframe by the Management.

(III) total costs incurred for the financial year ended 31 December 2016

 The total cost incurred for the internal audit function of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2016 amounted 
to RM33,300/-  (2015: RM30,800/-).

aUDIT CommITTee rePorT
(cont’d)
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NoMINatIoN CoMMIttee 
rePorT

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the Nomination Committee comprises exclusively of non-executive Directors 
and the composition of the Nomination Committee is as follows:- 

Nomination Committee Designation Directorship

Number of Nomination 
Committee Meetings 

attended / held in 
the financial year under 

review

Mok Shiaw Hang 
(Appointed w.e.f. 25 November 2016)

Chairman Independent 
Non-Executive Director

1/1

Hong Cheong Liang Member Independent 
Non-Executive Director

3/3

Lim Bee San
(Appointed w.e.f 26 August 2016)

Member Independent 
Non-Executive Director

1/1

  
The Nomination Committee met three (3) times during the financial year under review. The present chair of the Nomination 
Committee is Mr. Mok Shiaw Hang, the Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company. 

The principal duties and responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are as follows:-

•	 To	nominate	and	recommend	to	the	Board,	suitable	candidates	for	directorships.	In	making	such	recommendations,	to	
consider candidates proposed by the Executive Directors and within the bounds of practicability, by any other senior 
executives or any director or shareholder;

•	 To	nominate	and	recommend	to	the	Board,	the	nominees	to	fill	seats	on	Board	committees;
•	 To	assist	the	Board	in	its	annual	review	of	its	required	mix	of	skills	and	experience	and	other	qualities,	including	core	

competencies which non-executive directors should bring to the Board; and
•	 To	assist	the	Board	in	implementing	an	assessment	programmes	to	assess	the	effectiveness	of	the	Board	as	a	whole,	

the committees of the Board and the individual Director on an annual basis.

The following activities were undertaken by the Nomination Committee during the financial year under review:-

(i)  Conducted the Board evaluation to assess the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and Board Committees in accordance 
with the eight (8) principles of the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance 2012;

(ii)  Evaluated the contribution and performance of each individual Director;

(iii) Review and recommended to the Board, the adoption of “Declaration by Independent Directors” to confirm the 
“independence” of the Independent Directors on an annual basis; and 

(iv) Review and recommended to the Board, the re-election of the Directors who will be retiring at the forthcoming Annual 
General Meeting (“aGM”) of the Company.
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nomInaTIon CommITTee rePorT
(cont’d)

1. appointment of the Board 

 The Nomination Committee has the responsibility to identify and select potential new Directors and to make 
recommendations to the Board for the appointment of Directors.

 The Nomination Committee reviews candidates for appointment as Directors based on the following established criteria:-
 

•	 Fulfillment	of	Rule	2.20	of	the	ACE	LR	in	terms	of	character,	experience,	integrity,	competence	and	time	to	effectively	
discharge his/ her role as a director,

•	 qualifications;	
•	 skills	and	competence;	
•	 functional	knowledge;	
•	 experience;	
•	 background	and	character;
•	 integrity	and	professionalism;
•	 time	commitment;
•	 gender	diversity;	and	
•	 in	the	case	of	candidates	for	the	position	of	Independent	Non-Executive	Directors,	whether	the	test	of	independence	

under the ACE Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad is satisfied.

 In its review of the candidates, the Nomination Committee also considered the overall composition of the Board and the 
combination of skills of existing Directors to ensure the selected candidate would help close any possible gaps in the 
Board. The recommendation of the Nomination Committee was submitted to the Board for its consideration and approval. 

 During the financial year under review, the Nomination Committee has performed the abovementioned reviews and 
recommended to the Board, the appointment of Ms. Lim Bee San, Mr. Chang Choon Ming, and Mr. Mok Shiaw Hang 
as candidates to the Board.

 Ms. Lim Bee San, Mr. Chang Choon Ming, and Mr. Mok Shiaw Hang have accepted the Board’s appointment on 19 July 
2016 and 21 October 2016, respectively.

2. appointment to Board Committees

 The review is conducted on an annual basis, and as and when the need arises, such as when a new director is appointed. 
In determining the candidates for appointment to the Board Committees, various factors are considered by the Nomination 
Committee, including, 

•	 the	needs	of	the	particular	Board	Committee;
•	 the	results	of	the	Board	evaluations	for	the	Board	Committees;	
•	 time	commitment	and	availability;
•	 regulatory	requirements;	and
•	 best	practices	or	governance	practices.

 During the financial year under review, in view of the vacancy in the Board Committees arise due to the resignation of 
Mr. Roy Thean Chong Yew, Mr. Goh Kok Boon and Mr. Lee Choon Kwong, and upon the acceptance of the Board’s 
appointment of Ms. Lim Bee San and Mr. Mok Shiaw Hang, the Independent Non-Executive Directors, of the Company, 
and Mr. Chang Choon Ming, the Non-Independent Non-Executive Chairman of the Company, the following appointments 
to the Board Committees are taken place:-

(i)  Ms. Lim Bee San is appointed as a Chairperson to the Remuneration Committee and a member to Nomination 
and Audit Committee; 

(ii) Mr. Mok Shiaw Hang is appointed as a Chairman to the Nomination Committee, members of Audit Committee 
and Remuneration Committee;

(iii) Mr. Hong Cheong Liang and Mr. Nicholas Chee Tiong King are appointed as members to the Risk Management 
Committee; and

(iv)   Mr. Ang Chuang Juay is appointed as a Chairman of the Risk Management Committee.
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3. re-election of Directors

 Pursuant to Article 83 of the Articles of Association (“aa”) of the Company, an election of Directors shall take place 
each year at its AGM where one-third (1/3) of the Directors who are longest in office shall retire, and, if eligible, may offer 
themselves for re-election. The Nomination Committee is responsible for making recommendation to the Board on the 
eligibility of the Directors to stand for re-election at the AGM. 

 In determining the relevant Directors’ eligibility, the Nomination Committee carried out the following assessments:- 

•	 formal	review	of	the	performance	of	the	Director,	taking	into	account	the	results	of	the	latest	Board	evaluations;
•	 attendance	of	Board	meetings	as	well	as	Board	Committee	Meetings	(where	applicable);
•	 the	level	of	contribution	to	the	Board	through	his	skills;
•	 experience	and	strength	in	qualities;
•	 his	level	of	independence;	and	
•	 ability	to	act	in	the	best	interest	of	the	Company	in	decision-making.

 Pursuant to Article 90 of the AA, any Director appointed by the Board shall hold office until the next following AGM and 
shall then be eligible for re-election. 

 Ms. Lim Bee San, Mr. Chang Choon Ming, and Mr. Mok Shiaw Hang are subject to retirement pursuant to Article 90 of 
the AA at the forthcoming 14th AGM of the Company. 

 The Nomination Committee has recommended the Mr. Ang Chuang Juay, as the Director for retirement pursuant to Article 
83 of the AA and the Board in turn has recommended the same to the shareholders for approval at the forthcoming 14th 
AGM of the Company.

4. annual assessment of the Board

 The Nomination Committee conducted the following assessments annually:-

(i) Directors’ self-assessment 

 In conducting the survey, the following main criteria were adopted by the Nomination Committee:-

(i) Contribution to interaction;
(ii) Quality of input; and
(iii) Understanding of role.

 Based on the survey conducted for the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the Nomination Committee was 
satisfied with the performance of the individual Board of Directors. 

(ii) evaluation on the effectiveness of the Board of Directors and the Committees of the Board

 In conducting the evaluation, the following main criteria were adopted by the Nomination Committee:-

•	 Board	Structure;
•	 Board	Operations;	
•	 Board	Roles	and	Responsibilities;
•	 Board	Chairman’s	Roles	and	Responsibilities;	and
•	 Executive	Director’s	Role	and	Responsibilities.

 Based on the evaluation conducted for the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the Nomination Committee 
was satisfied with the performance of the Board and Committees of the Board. 

nomInaTIon CommITTee rePorT
(cont’d)
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5. Board Diversity policy

 The Board affirms its commitment to boardroom diversity as a truly diversified Board can enhance the Board’s effectiveness, 
creativity and capacity to thrive in good times and weather tough times. 

 Bearing in mind that an appointment to the Board is a long term commitment to the Company and in view of the need 
to keep a lean Board composition to assist with the turnaround of the Company, the Board has not at this juncture set 
any short term target or measure for boardroom diversity but nevertheless works to ensure that there is no discrimination 
on the basis of, but not limited to, ethnicity, race, age, gender, nationality, political affiliation, religious affiliation, sexual 
orientation, marital status, education, physical ability or geographic region, during the recruitment of new Board members. 

 The Board has indicated its commitment to boardroom diversity by the following appointments:-

 Gender Diversity

 Ms. Lim Bee San has been appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company on 19 July 2016. She 
is also appointed as the Chairperson of the Remuneration Committee and sits as a member in the Audit and Nomination 
Committees. 

 Age Diversity

 The Board believes that the Directors with diverse age profile will be able to provide a different perspective and bring 
vibrancy to the Group’s strategy making process. 

 The age profiles of the Directors were ranging from thirties to fifties of age, which underlies the Board’s commitment to 
age diversity at the Board level appointment. 

 Diversity in Nationality and Geographic Region

 Mindful of global mobility of talents, the Board does not restrict its composition to just Malaysians who were based in 
Malaysia. The Board endeavour to source and appoint Directors of diverse nationality and of trans-national background 
and experiences.

 Mr. Ang Chuang Juay, the Executive Deputy Chairman, is a Singaporean who has more than twenty (20) years of industry 
experiences in Singapore, Taiwan and China.  

nomInaTIon CommITTee rePorT
(cont’d)
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StateMeNt oN 
rISK manaGemenT anD InTernal ConTrol

INtroDUCtIoN

The Board of Directors (“the Board”) is pleased to present the Statement of Risk Management and Internal Control (“SorMIC”), 
which is  made pursuant to Paragraph 15.26(b) of the ACE Market Listing Requirements (“aCe Lr”) of Bursa Malaysia Securities 
Berhad (“Bursa Securities”) and in accordance with the Principles and Recommendations relating to risk management and 
internal controls provided in the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance 2012 (“MCCG 2012”) as well as the Statement on 
Risk Management and Internal Control: Guidelines for Directors of Listed Issuers (“SRMICG”). 

The Board acknowledges that the ERM framework and the system of internal controls can only provide reasonable, but not 
absolute, assurance against any material misstatement, fraud or loss as they are designated to manage rather than eliminate the 
risk of failure to achieve the Group’s business objectives, and to safeguard shareholders’ investments and the Group’s assets.

tHe BoarD’S roLe aND reSpoNSIBILItY

The Board acknowledges its role in and the importance of good corporate governance policies and practices and is therefore, 
committed to maintaining a sound, effective and robust enterprise risk management (“erM”) framework and internal control 
system. 

the risk oversight Function of the Board

Although the Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s ERM framework and internal control system, the Board does not 
take a direct role in managing risks but only assumes an oversight role.

Without becoming directly involved in managing risks, the Board achieves its role by:-

1. Identifying material risks, implementing the appropriate and relevant control measures to evaluate and manage these 
risks, and reviewing the adequacy, relevance and integrity of both the ERM framework and internal control system;

2. To develop policies and procedures around risks that are consistent with the Company’s strategic and business objectives;

3. Following up on management’s implementation of risk management policies and procedures, and be assured that they 
function as intended; and

4. Taking steps to foster risk awareness and encourage an organisational culture of risk adjusting awareness; and

Although the Board liaises directly with Management, the external auditors and the internal auditors, it may, when the situation 
calls for it, rely on external consultants/professionals to obtain further assurance.

rISK MaNaGeMeNt

The risk management approach adopted by the Group is objective driven and uses the basic “cause, risk and effect” principle 
to describe risk (i.e. risk profiling).

purpose and application

Risk assessment is intended to furnish Management with information regarding events that could impact the achievement of 
objectives. It is best coordinated and integrated into existing management and operational processes that should be carried 
out using a top-down approach that is complemented by a bottom up appraisal methodology. 

The ERM framework considers all inherent and residual risks, including how risks interrelate, and develops a portfolio view of 
risks from both subsidiary and entity level perspectives. 

The purpose of risk management is to identify potential problems before they occur so that risk-handling activities may be 
planned and invoked as needed across the life of the product or project to mitigate adverse impacts on achieving objectives.
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STaTemenT on  rISK manaGemenT anD InTernal ConTrol
(cont’d)

rISK MaNaGeMeNt (CoNt’D)

Risk management is a continuous, forward-looking process which is an important part of business and technical management 
processes. Risk management should address issues that could endanger achievement of critical objectives. A continuous 
risk management approach is applied to effectively anticipate and mitigate the risks that have critical impact on the business

the risk Management process
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STaTemenT on  rISK manaGemenT anD InTernal ConTrol
(cont’d)

rISK MaNaGeMeNt (CoNt’D)

the risk Management process (Cont’d)

The above is a diagrammatical representation of the risk management process which was developed by the major risk 
management organisations in the United Kingdom – The Institute of Risk Management (“IrM”), The Association of Insurance 
and Risk Managers (“aIrMIK”), and The National Forum for Risk Management in the Public Sector (“aLarM”). The steps within 
the process are incorporated in the Company’s Risk Register and references are made in the subsidiaries’ Standard Operating 
Procedures (“Sop”). The Company more or less subscribe to this process.

As the Company’s risk management framework is objective driven, this approach will certainly protect, while at the same time 
add value to the Group and its stakeholders by:-

1. providing a framework for an organisation that enables future activity to take place in a consistent and controlled manner;

2. improving decision making, planning and prioritisation by comprehensive and structured understanding of business 
activity, volatility and project opportunity/threat;

3. contributing to more efficient use/allocation of capital and resources within the organization;

4. reducing volatility in the non-essential areas of the business;

5. protecting and enhancing assets and company image;

6. developing and supporting people and the organisation’s knowledge base; and

7. optimising operational efficiency.

the risk register (“rr”)

The Group’s RR is a master document and plays an essential role to the successful management of risk. Each subsidiary within 
the Group manages its own risks and therefore maintains separate and distinct RR. The RR forms the platform for documenting 
risks (source, nature and profile) and identifies the principal risk owners and risk managers (i.e. on a departmental/divisional basis) 
within each subsidiary, including actions to be taken to manage each risk. It tracks and addresses issues as they arise. It also 
records potential risks and provide guidelines on how these risks are to be avoided/mitigated and managed if they should occur.

risk Management during the Year under review

During the year under review, Management continued to:-

1. Review all risk events and factors, whether inherent or otherwise, that are both internal and external to the Group, while 
continuing to monitor the Group’s business environment to ensure that the Risk Register continues to be relevant and 
up to date; and

2. Re-evaluate current risks and determine if there were any additional risks to consider in light of changing events and to 
ensure that the current risk management strategies are adequate and relevant, and to make the appropriate amendments 
where necessary.

(i) With the incorporation of two (2) additional business units (both being majority-owned subsidiaries of Rapid Conn 
(ShenZhen) Co., Ltd. (“rCC”), ShenZhen Rapid Power Co. Ltd. (“rCp”) (cable extrusion operations) and ShenZhen 
Rapid Resin Co., Ltd. (“rCr”) (production of thermoplastic elastomers), Management is currently studying potential 
risks that may incur as these business units will themselves maintain their own domestic markets and play a vital 
role in the Group’s backward vertical integration strategy. Both RCP and RCR commenced operations in November 
2016, and began trading in February 2017.

(ii) The very nature of the Group’s business and its global positioning in terms of location, business operations and 
trading activities, has invariably caused the Group to be exposed to external risk factors that can be relatively difficult 
to predict, mitigate and/or manage. The most notable ones foreign exchange, commodity prices (i.e. copper) and 
local laws/regulations (e.g. labour laws, customs – excise duties/sales tax, monetary policy, etc.) that may change 
over time – all of which will have an impact on the Groups’ business operations, which will ultimately affect the 
Group’s strategic objectives.
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rISK MaNaGeMeNt (CoNt’D)

risk Management during the Year under review (Cont’d)

During the year under review, Management continued to:- (Cont’d)

2. Re-evaluate current risks and determine if there were any additional risks to consider in light of changing events and to 
ensure that the current risk management strategies are adequate and relevant, and to make the appropriate amendments 
where necessary. (Cont’d)

(iii) Management has virtually eliminated the impact of non-trade foreign exchange by restructuring long standing 
inter-company debts (i.e. by way of debt waiver and capitalisation). Management is currently reviewing the foreign 
exchange impact on intercompany trading activities to ascertain the appropriate risk management approach.

Management has ascertained that there were no major changes in the Group’s overall risks profile as compared to 2015. 
Therefore, the key risk areas identified in 2016 remain unchanged, and are tabulated below:-

Key areas of 
risk assessment

risk Description

1 Strategic This relates to the Group’s mission and strategic objectives.

2 Operational  This relates to the Group’s risk of loss (i.e. financial performance) as a result of shortcomings 
or failings from within the Group (i.e. systems, processes, people), or from external events.

3 Compliance This relates to the Group’s compliance obligations vis-a-vis government regulations, policies 
and procedures, business ethics, etc.

4 Internal Audit   This relates to risks associated with the value drivers of the Group that impact shareholder’s 
value as it affects strategic, financial, operational, and compliance objectives.

5 Financial Statement This relates to risks associated with the likelihood of material misstatements of the Group’s 
financial statements through input from various departments within the Group.

6 Fraud This relates to potential occurrences of fraud or misrepresentations that may compromise the 
Group’s ethics and compliance standards, business practice requirements, financial reporting 
integrity, and other objectives.

7 Market  This relates to risks associated with movements in the market that could affect the Group’s 
performance or risk exposure (typically foreign exchange, interest rates and commodity prices).

8 Credit  This relates to risks associated with the likelihood that the borrower or counterparty (re: contracts) 
may default on their financial obligations.

9 Customer This relates to the risk profile of the customer (i.e. creditworthiness) or counterparty (i.e. intent), 
that could affect the Group’s credibility, reputation and financial standing.

10 Supply Chain This relates to the risks associated with the functions of purchasing, planning, logistics and 
warehousing. The failure to effectively manage supply chain risks may result in economic and 
financial losses, reductions in product quality, delivery delays and loss of reputation.

11 Product This relates to risks associated with an organisation’s product, from design and development 
through manufacturing, distribution, use, and disposal. Failure to manage the risks will have 
far-reaching effects, as they not only negatively impact cost and revenue, but also the Group’s 
reputation and product credibility.

12 Project Management  This relates to risks associated with the implementation and delivery of a project, taking into 
account the risks affecting the key parameters of project management, i.e. time, cost and quality.

 

STaTemenT on  rISK manaGemenT anD InTernal ConTrol
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rISK MaNaGeMeNt (CoNt’D)

periodic review and Disclosure

The Risk Management Committee convenes at least once a year or on an ad-hoc basis. The current findings and updates for 
the year under review were presented to the Board by the Risk Management Committee during the Board Meeting held on 
February 2017. 

Management still maintains the ERM framework and the RR as there were no significant changes in the risk exposure pertaining 
to the Group’s current operations and business environment. Management has highlighted that with the incorporation of RCP 
and RCR, a review is underway to identify the risks which are inherent in their respective industries and to ascertain how these 
risks may impact the Group and the approach to be taken to either pre-empt or manage these risks. 

on-going assessment by the Board

The Risk Management Committee shall report to the Board periodically on key developments of the Group’s business strategies, 
risks, opportunities and rewards that may have impacted or likely to impact the Group and its achievement of its strategic 
objectives.

Key Features of the Group’s Internal Control System

(i) Internal Control 

 As per the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“CoSo”)’s definition:

 Internal control is a process, effected by an entity’s Board of Directors, management, and other personnel, designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of objectives relating to operations, reporting and compliance.

 The Group’s internal controls are aligned to its financial operations, reporting and compliance objectives.

 The Group’s internal control process consists of ongoing tasks and activities, and is continuously being reviewed and 
updated. The internal control process is designed to complement the Group’s ERM programmes.

 The Group’s system of internal controls is designed to provide management and the Board with reasonable assurance, 
but not absolute assurance, which will enable the Board to make sound judgement and informed decisions.

 The Group’s system of internal controls is so designed such that the processes and procedures can be applied on an 
entity-wide basis or a subsidiary basis, while at the same time taking into account local conditions pertaining to the 
individual subsidiaries.

(ii) authority and responsibility

 Certain responsibilities are delegated to the following Board Committees through clearly defined Terms of Reference 
(“tor”) which are reviewed periodically and/or when the need arises:-

•	 Audit	Committee;	
•	 Nomination	Committee;	
•	 Remuneration	Committee;	and
•	 Risk	Management	Committee.	

 The TOR of the abovementioned Board Committees is an important feature of the Company’s Board Charter. 

 A full copy of the Board Charter is available for viewing on the Company’s corporate website at http://www.connectcounty.
com/downloads/CCHB_Board_Charter.pdf/.

STaTemenT on  rISK manaGemenT anD InTernal ConTrol
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the Internal audit (“Ia”) Function

The purpose of an Internal Audit function is to provide the Board, through the Audit Committee, assurance of the effectiveness 
of the system of internal control in the Group. The Company has an IA function that is independent of Management, which 
reports directly to the Audit Committee.

Since November 2014, The Board has outsourced the Group’s entire internal audit function to an independent, qualified 
professional consulting firm, namely Morison AAC Corporate Solutions Sdn. Bhd. (“Morison”). Morison will provide the necessary 
support to the Audit Committee’s oversight role over the Group’s risk management and internal control function. Therefore, 
Morison is required to:-   

(i) Undertake internal audit and related assignments at the behest of the Audit Committee and the Board, and present their 
findings after the completion of the assignment. They are to advise on issues encountered during the course of the audit 
and recommend improvements where necessary; and

(ii) Provide objective assurance to the Board on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management system, 
and give recommendations where necessary.

Note that while Management is primarily responsible for the Group’s risk management function, the internal auditor’s role is to 
provide reasonable assurance on the effectiveness of the risk management function. 

The table below underlines the contrasting role between risk management and internal audit1:-

risk Management Function Internal audit Function

Develop the risk management framework Audit the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management 
framework

Implement the risk management framework Audit implementation of the risk management framework

Advise Management on integration of risk management into 
business operations and their roles in making it work

Audit Management’s commitment to risk management and 
their roles in risk management

Advise on the allocation of accountability for risks, controls 
and tasks

Audit whether accountable managers fulfil those roles and 
are capable

Advise Management and the Board on the interpretation of 
risk management information

 Provide independent assurance of the risk management 
information submitted to the Board

Provide appropriate risk management status and performance 
information to the Board, Audit Committee and Risk 
Management Committee

 Provide an independent view on the credibility and reliability 
of the risk management information submitted to the Board, 
Audit Committee and Risk Management Committee

Act as an advisor and mentor to Management on risk 
management matters

Act as an independent reviewer to provide assurance on 
Management’s capability and performance in risk management

_____________________________
1 Bradley Gilbert, MFAc, UPS
 
Therefore, though there may be collaboration and a symbiotic relationship between Management and the internal auditor as 
far as risk management goes, the roles of both are distinct and mutually exclusive.

Internal audit activities Conducted for the Financial Year under review

An internal audit was conducted on Rapid Conn Inc. and RCC in May 2016 and October 2016 respectively. The details of the 
internal audit activities conducted for the financial year ended 31 December 2016 were set out in the Audit Committee Report 
of this Annual Report. 

STaTemenT on  rISK manaGemenT anD InTernal ConTrol
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assurance from Management

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016, assurance from the Executive Deputy Chairman (i.e. the Group’s Chief Executive 
Officer), who is primarily responsible for the Group’s operations, and the Chief Financial Officer, are obtained throughout the 
year that the Group’s risk management and internal control systems are operating effectively. This assurance has obtained via 
formal and informal inquiries, discussions and meetings.

The Executive Deputy Chairman provides assurance that the Group’s operational controls are effective throughout the year, 
while the Chief Financial Officer provides assurance that the Group’s financial reporting controls are effective throughout the 
year. The Executive Deputy Chairman and the Chief Financial Officer are taking a more comprehensive review of the Group’s 
internal control system as recommended by MCCG 2012.

review of the Statement by the external auditors

Pursuant to Rule 15.23 of the ACE LR, the External Auditors have reviewed this statement for inclusion in the 2016 Annual 
Report, in accordance with the Malaysian Approved Standard on Assurance Engagements, International Standard on Audit 
Engagement (“ISae”) 3000 – Assurance Engagements other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information and 
Recommended Practice Guide (“rpG”) 5 (Revised) – Guidance for Auditors on Engagements to Report on the SORMIC included 
in the Annual Report issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants. 

Based on their review, the External Auditors reported to the Board that nothing has come to their attention that causes them 
to believe that this statement is inconsistent with their understanding of the processes adopted by the Board in reviewing the 
adequacy and integrity of the system of internal controls of the Group.

RPG 5 does not require the External Auditors to, and they did not, consider whether this statement covers all risks and controls, 
or to form an opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems.

CoNCLUSIoN

The Board has reviewed the risk management and internal control systems and is of the opinion that the systems in place during 
the financial year under review are adequate and effective to safeguard the shareholders’ as well as other key stakeholders’ 
interests and the Group’s assets.

The Board is also of the opinion that as the development of a sound risk management and internal control systems is a continuous 
process and must continuously evolve to support the Group’s business operations and strategic objectives, the Board together 
with Management are committed to ensure that the Group’s risk management and internal control systems will continue to 
remain robust, relevant and up to date.

This statement is made in accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors dated 27 March 2017.
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aDDItIoNaL CoMpLIaNCe 
InformaTIon

The following information is provided in accordance with Rule 9.25 of the ACE Market Listing Requirement of Bursa Malaysia 
Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”) as set out in Appendix 9C thereto.

1. options, Warrants or Convertible Securities

 On 3 October 2011, a total of 60,847,500 warrants 2011/2021 were issued and quoted on the ACE Market of Bursa 
Securities.

 There were no conversion of warrants 2011/2021 for the financial year ended 31 December 2016. As at 31 December 
2016, the remaining balance of unexercised warrants were 59,613,944.

 On 15 June 2016, the following securities were issued and quoted on the ACE Market of Bursa Securities pursuant to 
the Rights Issue of Irredeemable Convertible Preference Shares (“ICpS”):-

a. 649,821,600 ICPS of RM0.025 each;
b. 43,321,388 Warrants-B pursuant to the Rights Issue of ICPS; and
c. 9,223,144 additional Warrants-A issued pursuant to the relevant adjustment clauses of the Deed Poll governing 

the Warrants-A dated 24 June 2011.

2. related party transactions of a revenue or trading Nature

 Significant related party transactions of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2016 are disclosed on page 
137 of this Annual Report.

3. audit and Non-audit Fees 

 For the financial year ended 31 December 2016, Messrs. Moore Stephens Associates PLT, the External Auditors has 
rendered certain audit and non-audit services to the Company. A breakdown of which is listed as below for information:-

     Company Group
     (rM) (rM)

audit services rendered  
Financial Year-End audits     25,000 155,370

total     25,000 155,370

Non-audit services rendered  
Review of Directors’ Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control  8,000 8,000

total     8,000 8,000

4. Material Contracts Involving Directors’, Chief executive’s and Major Shareholders’ Interests

 There was no material contract entered into by the Group involving the interest of Directors, Chief Executive and major 
shareholders, either still subsisting as at the end of the financial year or entered into since the end of the previous financial 
year.
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StateMeNt oN DIreCtorS’ reSpoNSIBILItY 
for PreParInG THe fInanCIal STaTemenTS

In accordance with the Companies Act, 1965, Companies Act 2016 and the applicable approved accounting standards, the 
Directors are required to prepare annual financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position and the results 
and cash flows of the Group and of the Company for that financial year then ended.

The Directors have reviewed the accounting policies to ensure that they are consistently applied throughout the financial year and 
are of the view that relevant approved accounting standards have been followed in the preparation of these financial statements. 
In cases where judgements and estimations were made, they were based on reasonableness and prudence. 

The Directors have relied on the system of internal controls to ensure that the information generated for the preparation of the 
financial statements from the underlying accounting records are accurate and reliable. 

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Company maintains accounting records which disclose with reasonable 
accuracy of the financial position of the Group and the Company, and which enable them to ensure that the financial statements 
comply with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1965.

The Directors have general responsibilities for taking such steps that are reasonably available to them to safeguard the assets 
of the Group and the Company, and to prevent and detect frauds and other irregularities. 

This Statement on Directors’ Responsibility for preparing the financial statements is made in accordance with the resolution of 
the Board of Directors dated 27 March 2017.
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DIreCtorS’ 
rePorT

The directors hereby submit their report and the audited financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the financial 
year ended 31 December 2016.

prINCIpaL aCtIVItIeS

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 14 to the 
financial statements.

There have been no significant changes in the nature of these principal activities during the financial year.

reSULtS

    Group Company
    rM rM

(Loss)/Profit for the year, net of tax    (145,485) 6,242,370
   

Attributable to:  
Owners of the Company    (11,085) 6,242,370
Non-controlling interests    (134,400) –

    (145,485) 6,242,370

There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year other than as disclosed in the financial 
statements.

In the opinion of the directors, the results of the operations of the Group and of the Company during the financial year were not 
substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature. 

DIVIDeNDS

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company since the end of the previous financial year. 
 

ISSUaNCe oF SHareS or DeBeNtUreS
 
During the financial year, the Company increased its 

(a) authorised ordinary share capital from RM50,000,000 to RM175,000,000 through the creation of 1,250,000,000 ordinary 
shares of RM0.10 each;

(b) issued and fully paid-up share capital from RM21,660,720 to RM28,683,023 by way of the issuance of:

(i) 30,762,825 ordinary shares of RM0.10 each pursuant to conversion of 123,051,300 irredeemable convertible 
preference shares (“ICpS”) on the basis of 4 ICPS for 1 existing ordinary share; and 

(ii) 39,460,200 ordinary shares of RM0.10 each pursuant to conversion of 39,460,200 ICPS on the basis of 1 ICPS 
for 1 ordinary share with cash consideration of RM0.075 each.

The new ordinary shares issued during the financial year rank pari passu in all respects with the existing ordinary shares of the 
Company.
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DIreCTorS’ rePorT
(cont’d)

optIoNS 

No option has been granted to any person during the financial year under review to take up unissued shares of the Company.

DetaCHaBLe WarraNtS

The warrants 2011/2021 (“Warrant-a”) represent detachable warrants which are constituted under Deed Poll dated 24 June 
2011. As at 31 December 2016, the total numbers of warrants that remained unexercised were 59,613,944. 

In the financial year ended 31 December 2016, 649,821,600 new ICPS were issued pursuant to renounceable rights issue on 
the basis of 3 ICPS for every 1 existing ordinary shares held in the Company with free detachable warrant (“Warrant-B”) on 
the basis of 1 free warrant for every 15 ICPS held at an issue price of RM0.025 on 17 May 2016. 

No Warrant-B were exercised during the financial year. As at 31 December 2016, the total numbers of warrants that remained 
unexercised were 43,321,388.

Details of the warrants are set out in Note 20 and Note 22 to the financial statements.

DIreCtorS

The names of the directors of the Company in office during the financial year and at the date of this report are: 

Ang Chuang Juay 
Hong Cheong Liang 
Lim Bee San (Appointed on 19 July 2016)
Chang Choon Ming (Appointed on 21 October 2016)
Mok Shiaw Hang (Appointed on 21 October 2016)
Roy Thean Chong Yew (Resigned on 8 June 2016)
Goh Kok Boon (Resigned on 17 August 2016)
Lee Choon Kwong (Resigned on 4 November 2016)

DIreCtorS' BeNeFItS 

Neither at the end of the financial year, nor at any time during that year, did there subsist any arrangement to which the Company 
was a party, whereby the directors might acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company 
or any other body corporate.

Since the end of the previous financial year, no director has received or become entitled to receive a benefit (other than benefits 
included in the aggregate amount of emoluments received or due and receivable by the directors as shown in Note 10 to the 
financial statements) by reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation with any director or with a firm of 
which he is a member, or with a company in which he has a substantial financial interest.
 

DIreCtorS’ INtereStS 

According to the register of directors’ shareholdings, the interests of directors in office at the end of the financial year in shares 
and options over the shares in the Company and its related corporations during the financial year were as follows: 

 Number of ordinary Shares of rM0.10 each
Direct interest 1.1.2016 Bought Sold 31.12.2016

Ang Chuang Juay 15,665,752 5,348,372 (4,000,000) 17,014,124
Chang Choon Ming  – 31,555,000 – 31,555,000
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DIreCtorS’ INtereStS (CoNt’D)

According to the register of directors’ shareholdings, the interests of directors in office at the end of the financial year in shares 
and options over the shares in the Company and its related corporations during the financial year were as follows: (Cont’d)

 Number of Irredeemable Convertible preference 
 Shares of rM0.025 each
Direct interest  1.1.2016 acquired Converted 31.12.2016

Ang Chuang Juay  – 56,997,256 – 56,997,256
Chang Choon Ming  – 7,990,000 – 7,990,000

 Number of Warrants-B
Direct interest  1.1.2016 Bought Sold 31.12.2016
    
Ang Chuang Juay  – 3,133,150 (3,133,150) –

Other than as disclosed above, the other directors do not have any interest in the shares or options over shares of the Company 
or of its related companies during and at the end of the financial year.

otHer StatUtorY INForMatIoN

(a) Before the statements of profit or loss, statements of comprehensive income and statements of financial position of the 
Group and of the Company were made out, the directors took reasonable steps:

(i) to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and the making of provision 
for doubtful debts, and satisfied themselves that all known bad debts had been written off and adequate provision 
had been made for doubtful debts; and

(ii) to ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to be realised in the ordinary course of business including 
their value as shown in the accounting records of the Group and of the Company have been written down to an 
amount which they might be expected so to realise. 

(b) At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which would render: 

(i) the amount written off for bad debts or the amount of provision for doubtful debts in the financial statements of 
the Group and of the Company inadequate to any substantial extent; and 

(ii) the values attributed to the current assets in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company misleading.

(c) At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which have arisen which would render adherence 
to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of the Group and of the Company misleading or inappropriate.

(d) At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise dealt with in this report or the 
financial statements of the Group and of the Company which would render any amount stated in the financial statements 
misleading.

(e) As at the date of this report, there does not exist:

(i) any charge on the assets of the Group or of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial year 
which secures the liabilities of any other person; or

(ii) any contingent liability of the Group or of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial year.

 

DIreCTorS’ rePorT
(cont’d)
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otHer StatUtorY INForMatIoN (CoNt’D)

(f) In the opinion of the directors:

(i) no contingent or other liability has become enforceable, or likely to become enforceable, within the period of twelve 
months after the end of the financial year, which will or may affect the ability of the Group and of the Company to 
meet their obligations as and when they fall due;

(ii) no item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature has arisen in the interval between the end of the 
financial year and the date of this report which is likely to affect substantially the results of the operations of the 
Group or of the Company for the financial year in which this report is made.

SIGNIFICaNt eVeNtS

Details of significant events are disclosed in Note 33 to the financial statements.

SUBSeQUeNt eVeNtS

Details of subsequent events are disclosed in Note 34 to the financial statements.

aUDItorS

The auditors, Moore Stephens Associates PLT, have expressed their willingness to continue in office.

 Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the directors dated 25 April 2017.

aNG CHUaNG JUaY CHaNG CHooN MING

Kuala Lumpur

DIreCTorS’ rePorT
(cont’d)
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StateMeNt BY 
DIreCTorS
Pursuant to Section 169(15) of the Companies act, 1965

StatUtorY 
DeClaraTIon
Pursuant to Section 169(16) of the Companies act, 1965

We, Ang Chuang Juay and Chang Choon Ming, being two of the Directors of ConnectCounty Holdings Berhad, do hereby 
state that, in the opinion of the Directors, the accompanying financial statements set out on pages 89 to 147 are drawn up in 
accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies Act, 
1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 
2016 and of their financial performance and the cash flows for the year then ended.

The supplementary information set out on page 148 have been prepared in accordance with the Guidance on Special Matter 
No. 1. Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia 
Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants and presented based on the format 
as prescribed by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. 
 
 Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the directors dated 25 April 2017.

aNG CHUaNG JUaY CHaNG CHooN MING

Kuala Lumpur

I, Nicholas Chee Tiong King, being the officer primarily responsible for the financial management of ConnectCounty Holdings 
Berhad, do solemnly and sincerely declare that the financial statements as set out on pages 89 to 148 are in my opinion correct 
and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true and by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory 
Declarations Act, 1960.

Subscribed and solemnly declared by the )
abovenamed Nicholas Chee Tiong King )
at Kuala Lumpur in the Federal Territory )
on 25 April 2017. )
  NICHoLaS CHee tIoNG KING

Before me:

S. arULSaMY
Commissioner for Oaths
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INDepeNDeNt  
aUDITorS’ rePorT

to the members of Connectcounty Holdings berhad

report oN tHe aUDIt oF tHe FINaNCIaL StateMeNtS

opinion

We have audited the financial statements of CONNECTCOUNTY HOLDINGS BERHAD, which comprise the statements of 
financial position as at 31 December 2016 of the Group and of the Company, and the statements of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows of the Group and of the Company for 
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, as set out 
on pages 89 to 147.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of 
the Company as at 31 December 2016, and of their financial performance and their cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements 
of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing. 
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our opinion.

Independence and other ethical responsibilities

We are independent of the Group and of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional Ethics, Conduct and 
Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ 
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with the By-Laws and the IESBA Code.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial 
statements of the Group and of the Company for the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit 
of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section 
of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to 
respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, 
including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis of our audit opinion on the accompanying 
financial statements.

Key audit Matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Impairment loss on trade receivables

Refer to Note 17 to the financial statements. The Group has a 
material amount of trade receivables that are past due but not 
impaired amounted to RM3,281,800. The collectability of the 
Group’s trade receivables and the valuation of the allowance 
for impairment of trade receivables is a key audit matters due 
to management judgement is required.

our audit procedures included, among others:

•	 We	obtained	understanding	of	 the	Group’s	collection	
process;

•	 We	obtained	understanding	of	the	Group’s	assumption	
in recognition of impairment losses;

•	 We	assessed	the	aging	of	the	trade	receivables,	past	
payment and credit history of the customers;

•	 We	reviewed	subsequent	collection	for	major	receivables	
and amounts past due; and

•	 We	evaluated	the	reasonableness	and	adequacy	of	the	
allowance for impairment recognised in the financial 
statements.
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report oN tHe aUDIt oF tHe FINaNCIaL StateMeNtS (CoNt’D)

Key audit matters (Cont’d)

Key audit Matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Valuation of inventories

Refer to Note 16 to the financial statements. Total inventories of 
RM12,899,181 representing 18% of total assets of the Group.

Inventories are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value.

Management made periodic review on inventories for excess 
inventories, obsolescence and decline in the realisable value, 
which involves judgement and estimates.

our audit procedures included, among others:

•	 We	obtained	understanding	of	how	the	Group	identified	
and assessed obsolete inventories; 

•	 We	tested	the	net	realisable	value	of	major	inventories;	
and

•	 We	analysed	the	inventories	turnaround	and	inventories	
aging summary.

Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the annual report, but 
does not include the financial statements of the Group and of the Company and our auditors’ report thereon, which is expected 
to be made available to us after the date of this auditors’ report.

Our opinion on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, our responsibility is to read the other 
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 
statements of the Group and of the Company or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are 
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the Group and of the Company that 
give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards, 
and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia. The directors are also responsible for such internal control as 
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements of the Group and of the Company that 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s 
and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Company or to cease 
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

InDePenDenT aUDITorS’ rePorT
to the members of Connectcounty Holdings berhad
(cont’d)
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InDePenDenT aUDITorS’ rePorT
to the members of Connectcounty Holdings berhad

(cont’d)

report oN tHe aUDIt oF tHe FINaNCIaL StateMeNtS (CoNt’D)

auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the Group and of the Company 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they 
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
 
As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards of auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing, we 
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

•	 Identify	and	assess	the	risks	of	material	misstatement	of	the	financial	statements	of	the	Group	and	of	the	Company,	
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•	 Obtain	an	understanding	of	internal	control	relevant	to	the	audit	in	order	to	design	audit	procedures	that	are	appropriate	
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s and the 
Company’s internal control.

•	 Evaluate	the	appropriateness	of	accounting	policies	used	and	the	reasonableness	of	accounting	estimates	and	related	
disclosures made by the directors.

•	 Conclude	on	the	appropriateness	of	the	director’s	use	of	the	going	concern	basis	of	accounting	and,	based	on	the	audit	
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 
on the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements of 
the Group and of the Company or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based 
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause 
the Group or the Company to cease to continue as going concerns.

•	 Evaluate	the	overall	presentation,	structure	and	content	of	the	financial	statements	of	the	Group	and	of	the	Company,	
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements of the Group and of the Company represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

•	 Obtain	sufficient	appropriate	audit	evidence	regarding	the	financial	information	of	the	entities	or	business	activities	within	
the Group to express an opinion on the financial statements of the Group. We are responsible for the direction, supervision 
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant 
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, 
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit 
of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current year and are therefore the key audit matters. We 
describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, 
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.



C O N N E C T C O U N T Y  H O L D I N G S  B E R H A D  ( C o m p a n y  N o .  6 1 8 9 3 3 - D )

88

report oN otHer LeGaL aND reGULatorY reQUIreMeNtS

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report the following:

(a) In our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Companies Act, 1965 to be kept by the 
Company and its subsidiaries have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1965.

(b) We have considered the accounts and auditors’ report of the subsidiary of which we have not acted as auditors, which 
is indicated in Note 14 to the financial statements, being accounts that have been included in the consolidated accounts.

(c) We are satisfied that the financial statements of the subsidiaries that have been consolidated with the financial statements 
of the Company are in form and content appropriate and proper for the purposes of the preparation of the consolidated 
financial statements and we have received satisfactory information and explanations required by us for those purposes.

(d) The auditors’ reports on the financial statements of the subsidiaries were not subject to any qualification and did not 
include any comment required to be made under Section 174(3) of the Companies Act, 1965.

otHer reportING reSpoNSIBILItIeS

The supplementary information set out on page 148 is disclosed to meet the requirement of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad 
and is not part of the financial statements. The directors are responsible for the preparation of the supplementary information in 
accordance with Guidance on Special Matter No 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context 
of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian Institute of 
Accountants (MIA Guidance) and the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. In our opinion, the supplementary information 
is prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the MIA Guidance and the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

otHer MatterS

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 174 of the Companies Act, 
1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other person for the content of this report.

Moore StepHeNS aSSoCIateS pLt Lo KUaN CHe
LLP0000963 – LCA & AF002096 03016/11/2018J
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountant

25 April 2017
Petaling Jaya, Selangor

InDePenDenT aUDITorS’ rePorT
to the members of Connectcounty Holdings berhad
(cont’d)
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StateMeNtS oF 
ProfIT or loSS

for the year ended 31 December 2016

 Group Company
 Note 2016 2015 2016 2015
  rM rM rM rM

revenue 3 81,711,368 64,877,247 – –

Cost of sales 4 (64,788,109) (49,105,919) – –

Gross profit  16,923,259 15,771,328 – –
     
Other items of income 5 1,676,590 2,110,100 10,046,024 1,372,448

other items of expenses
 Administration expenses  (13,611,641) (11,016,943) (1,630,730) (1,419,559)
 Distribution and selling expenses  (4,043,850) (3,199,268) – –
 Other expenses 6 (736,022) (767,951) (2,171,002) (443,653)
 Finance cost, net 7 (113,679) (80,776) (1,922) (352)

profit/(Loss) before tax 8 94,657 2,816,490 6,242,370 (491,116)

Income tax expense 11 (240,142) (124,525) – –

(Loss)/profit net of tax  (145,485) 2,691,965 6,242,370 (491,116)

(Loss)/profit attributable to:    
 Owners of the Company  (11,085) 2,691,965 6,242,370 (491,116)
 Non-controlling interest  (134,400) – – –

  (145,485) 2,691,965 6,242,370 (491,116)

(Loss)/earnings per share 
 attributable to owners of 
 the Company (sen)
 Basic 12(a) (0.005) 1.27
 Diluted 12(b) (0.003) 1.15

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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StateMeNtS oF 
ComPreHenSIve InCome
for the year ended 31 December 2016

 Group Company
  2016 2015 2016 2015
  rM rM rM rM
    
(Loss)/profit net of tax  (145,485) 2,691,965 6,242,370 (491,116)

other comprehensive income
Foreign currency translation   513,068 1,285,352 – –

total comprehensive income/ 
 (expenses) for the year  367,583 3,977,317 6,242,370 (491,116)

total comprehensive income/ 
 (expenses) attributable to:     
Owners of the Company  511,721 3,977,317 6,242,370 (491,116)
Non-controlling interest  (144,138) – – –

  367,583 3,977,317 6,242,370 (491,116)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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CoNSoLIDateD StateMeNt oF 
fInanCIal PoSITIon
as at 31 December 2016

   Note 2016 2015
    rM rM

aSSetS
Non-current assets    
Plant and equipment   13 10,145,972 4,839,634
Deferred tax assets   15 391,643 49,315

    10,537,615 4,888,949

Current assets    
Inventories   16 12,899,181 7,548,965
Trade receivables   17 27,322,141 17,184,359
Other receivables   18 5,507,134 2,525,174
Cash and bank balances   19 14,607,209 4,859,231

    60,335,665 32,117,729

totaL aSSetS    70,873,280 37,006,678

eQUItY aND LIaBILItIeS   
equity   
Share capital   20 28,683,023 21,660,720
Share premium   21 – 2,070,279
Equity component of irredeemable convertible  preference share  22 11,102,336 –
Reserves   23 5,025,244 1,479,679
Accumulated losses    (5,835,470) (4,351,349)

equity attributable to owners of the Company   38,975,133 20,859,329
Non-controlling interest    503,012 –

totaL eQUItY    39,478,145 20,859,329
    
Non-current liabilities    
Borrowings   24 173,483 251,928
Other payable   27 10,004 27,742
Liability component of irredeemable convertible  
 preference share   22 1,421,601 –
  
    1,605,088 279,670

Current liabilities
Borrowings   24 93,829 79,231
Trade payables   26 22,261,532 12,415,521
Other payables   27 7,369,517 3,372,927
Tax payable    65,169 –

    29,790,047 15,867,679

totaL LIaBILItIeS    31,395,135 16,147,349
   
totaL eQUItY aND LIaBILItIeS    70,873,280 37,006,678

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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CoMpaNY StateMeNt oF 
fInanCIal PoSITIon
as at 31 December 2016

   Note 2016 2015
    rM rM

aSSetS    
Non-current assets    
Plant and equipment   13 92,829 80,396
Investments in subsidiaries   14 24,997,811 4,236,034
Deferred tax asset   15 341,185 –

    25,431,825 4,316,430
    
Current assets    
Other receivables   18 1,695,169 6,469,066
Cash and bank balances   19 9,339,659 340,801

    11,034,828 6,809,867

totaL aSSetS    36,466,653 11,126,297
    

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES   
Share capital   20 28,683,023 21,660,720
Share premium   21 – 2,070,279
Equity component of irredeemable convertible  
 preference shares   22 11,102,336 –
Reserves   23 3,032,497 –
Accumulated losses    (8,055,654) (12,824,988)

totaL eQUItY    34,762,202 10,906,011
    
Non-current liability    
Liability component of irredeemable convertible 
 preference shares   22 1,421,601 –
    
Current liability    
Other payables   27 282,850 220,286
    
totaL LIaBILItIeS    1,704,451 220,286

totaL eQUItY aND LIaBILItIeS    36,466,653 11,126,297

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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CoMpaNY StateMeNt oF  
CHanGeS In eQUITY

for the year ended 31 December 2016

 Non-distributable
  Share Share accumulated total
 Note Capital  premium  Losses equity
  rM rM rM rM

at 1 January 2015  20,615,140 2,170,979 (12,333,872) 10,452,247
Total comprehensive expense 
 for the year  – – (491,116) (491,116)

  20,615,140 2,170,979 (12,824,988) 9,961,131

Issuance of ordinary shares pursuant 
 to private placement 20&21 1,045,580 (100,700) – 944,880

at 31 December 2015  21,660,720 2,070,279 (12,824,988) 10,906,011

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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StateMeNt oF  
CaSH floWS

for the year ended 31 December 2016

 Group Company
  2016 2015 2016 2015
  rM rM rM rM

CaSH FLoWS FroM 
 operatING aCtIVItIeS     
Profit/(Loss) before tax  94,657 2,816,490 6,242,370 (491,116)
Adjustments for:     
Allowance for impairment loss on      
– investment in subsidiary  – – – 99,999
– trade receivables  467,603 – – –
– other receivables  – – 1,741,064 –
Bad debts written off  666,324 629,812 – –
Bad debts recovered  (132,472) – – –
Depreciation of plant and equipment  1,701,271 1,634,530 16,026 10,842
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment  – (5,983) – –
Gain on disposal of associate   – (1) – (1)
Gain on foreign exchange – unrealised   (377,623) (1,066,513) (13,488) (1,159,462)
Interest expenses  11,605 14,259 – –
Interest income  (145,610) (4,786) (139,216) (69)
Reversal of impairment loss on
– investments in subsidiaries  – – (9,685,885) – 
– trade receivables  (299,647) – – –
– other receivables  – (629,812) – –
Plant and equipment written off  4,045 73,745 – –

Operating profit/(loss) before working 
 capital changes  1,990,153 3,461,741 (1,839,129) (1,539,807)
Inventories  (5,376,029) (1,936,504) – –
Receivables  (13,187,348) (5,934,279) 3,147,724 790,950
Payables  13,858,341 4,698,286 (39,912) 34,675

Cash (used in)/generated from operations  (2,714,883) 289,244 1,268,683 (714,182)
Interest paid  (11,605) (14,259) – –
Tax paid  (175,549) (371) – –

Net cash (used in) /generated from 
 operating activities  (2,902,037) 274,614 1,268,683 (714,182)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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 Group Company
  2016 2015 2016 2015
  rM rM rM rM
     
CaSH FLoWS FroM INVeStING 
 aCtIVItIeS     
Acquisition of interest in subsidiaries   – – (11,075,892) (699,675)
Interest received  145,610 4,786 139,216 69
Proceeds from disposal of plant and 
 equipment  – 6,405 – –
Proceeds from disposal of associate  – 1 – 1
Purchase of plant and equipment  (7,095,736) (1,826,770) (28,459) (79,701)

Net cash used in investing activities  (6,950,126) (1,815,578) (10,965,135) (779,306)

     
CaSH FLoWS FroM FINaNCING 
 aCtIVItIeS     
Non-controlling interest arising from 
 investment in subsidiaries  647,150 – – –
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary 
 shares pursuant to conversion of ICPS  7,022,303 – 7,022,303 –
Proceeds from issue of shares upon 
 exercise of warrants  – 1,045,580 – 1,045,580
Proceeds from issuance of ICPS  12,182,752 – 12,182,752 –
Exercise of warrants expenses  – (100,700) – (100,700)
Conversion of ICPS expenses  (510,818) – (510,818) –
Repayment of hire purchase   (77,818) (71,694) – –

Net cash generated from financing 
 activities  19,263,569 873,186 18,694,237 944,880

Net INCreaSe/(DeCreaSe) IN 
 CaSH aND CaSH eQUIVaLeNtS  9,411,406 (667,778) 8,997,785 (548,608)
eFFeCtS oF eXCHaNGe rate 
 CHaNGeS  336,572 679,951 1,073 (20,252)
CaSH aND CaSH eQUIVaLeNtS at 
 BeGINNING oF tHe FINaNCIaL Year  4,859,231 4,847,058 340,801 909,661

CaSH aND CaSH eQUIVaLeNtS at 
 eND oF tHe FINaNCIaL Year 
 (Note 19)  14,607,209 4,859,231 9,339,659 340,801

STaTemenT of CaSH floWS
for the year ended 31 December 2016

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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NoteS to tHe  
fInanCIal STaTemenTS

31 December 2016

1. Corporate INForMatIoN 

 The Company is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia, and listed on the ACE Market 
of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. The registered office of the Company is located at Level 7, Menara Milenium, Jalan 
Damanlela, Pusat Bandar Damansara, 50490 Kuala Lumpur.

 The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are that of design, 
manufacture, sales, marketing, services and trading of cables, connectors, thermoplastic, elastomer materials and related 
products. There have been no significant changes in the nature of these principal activities during the financial year. 

2. SIGNIFICaNt aCCoUNtING poLICIeS

(a) Basis of preparation

 The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Malaysian 
Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRSs”), International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and the requirements 
of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia. 

 The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared under the historical cost convention 
unless otherwise stated below.

 The financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (“RM”).

(b) New and amended Standards and Interpretations 

 At the beginning of the financial year, the Group and the Company adopted the following Amendments to MFRSs 
and Annual Improvements which are mandatory for the financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016:

 Amendments to MFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations (Annual Improvements 
2012 – 2014 Cycle)*

 Amendments to MFRS 7 Financial Instruments Disclosures (Annual Improvements to MFRSs 2012 – 2014 Cycle)
 Amendments to MFRS 119 Employee Benefits (Annual Improvements to MFRSs 2012 – 2014 Cycle)
 Amendments to MFRS 134 Interim Financial Reporting (Annual Improvements to MFRSs 2012 – 2014 Cycle)
 Amendments to MFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, MFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 

and MFRS 128 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures – Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation 
Exception

 Amendments to MFRS 11 Joint Arrangements – Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations*
 MFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts*
 MFRS 101 Presentation of Financial Statements – Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to MFRS 101)
 Amendments to MFRS 116 Property, Plant and Equipment and MFRS 138 Intangible Assets – Clarification of 

Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation
 Amendments to MFRS 116 Property, Plant and Equipment and MFRS 141 Agriculture – Agriculture: Bearer Plants
 Amendments to MFRS 127 Separate Financial Statements (2011) – Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements

 The adoption of the above new or amended standards did not have any impact on the financial statements of the 
Group and of the Company.

(c) Standards and Interpretations Issued but Not Yet effective 

 The Group and the Company have not adopted the following accounting standards, amendments and interpretations 
of the MFRS framework that have been issued by the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board (“MASB”) but not 
yet effective:

 effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2017
 Amendments to MFRS 12 (Annual improvements to MFRSs 2014 – 2016 Cycle)
 Amendments to MFRS 107 Statement of Cash Flows – Disclosure Initiatives
 Amendments to MFRS 112 Income Taxes – Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses
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(c) Standards and Interpretations Issued but Not Yet effective (Cont’d)

 effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2018
 Amendments to MFRS 1 (Annual improvements to MFRSs 2014 – 2016 Cycle)
 Amendments to MFRS 2 Share Based Payment – Classification and Measurement of Share Based Payment 

transactions*
 Amendments to MFRS 4 Insurance Contracts – Applying MFRS 9 Financial Instruments with MFRS 4 Insurance 

Contracts*
 Amendments to MFRS 140 Investment Property – Transfers of Investment Property*
 MFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
 Clarification to MFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
 MFRS 9 Financial Instruments (2015)
 MFRS 128 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (Annual improvements to MFRSs 2014 – 2016 Cycle)*
 IC Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

 effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019
 MFRS 16 Leases

 Deferred
 Amendments to MFRS 10 and MFRS 128: Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associates 

or Joint Ventures.

 *  Not applicable to the Group and the Company

 The Group and the Company are expected to apply the abovementioned new or amended standards beginning 
from the respective date the new or amended standards become effective.

 The directors expect that the adoption of the above standards and IC interpretations will have no material effect 
on the financial statements in the period of initial application except as those described below:

(i) MFRS 9: Financial Instruments

 In November 2014, MASB issued the final version of MFRS 9: Financial Instruments which reflects all 
phases of the financial instruments project and replaces MFRS 139: Financial Instruments: Recognition 
and Measurement and all previous versions of MFRS 9. The standard introduces new requirements for 
classification and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting. MFRS 9 is effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with early application permitted. Retrospective application is required, 
but comparative information is not compulsory. The Group is currently assessing the impact of MFRS 9 and 
plans to adopt the new standard on the required effective date.

(ii) MFRS 112: Recognition of Deferred Tax for Unrealised Losses (Amendments to MFRS 112)

 The amendments clarify that an entity needs to consider whether tax law restricts the sources of taxable profits 
against which it may make deductions on the reversal of that deductible temporary difference. Furthermore, 
the amendments provide guidance on how an entity should determine future taxable profits and explain the 
circumstances in which taxable profit may include the recovery of some assets for more than their carrying 
amount.

 Entities are required to apply the amendments retrospectively. However, on initial application of the 
amendments, the change in the opening equity of the earliest comparative period may be recognised in 
opening retained earnings (or in another component of equity, as appropriate), without allocating the change 
between retained earnings and other components of equity. Entities applying this relief must disclose that 
fact.

 These amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 with early 
application permitted. If an entity applies this amendments for an earlier period, it must disclose that fact. 
These amendments are not expected to have any impact on the Group and on the Company.
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(c) Standards and Interpretations Issued but Not Yet effective (Cont’d)

(iii) MFRS 16: Leases

 MFRS 16 will replace MFRS 117 Leases, IC Interpretation 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a 
Lease, IC Interpretation 115 Operating Lease-Incentives and IC Interpretation 127 Evaluating the Substance 
of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. MFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognition, 
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under a 
single on-balance sheet model similar to the accounting for finance leases under MFRS 117.

 At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments and an 
asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term. Lessees will be required to 
recognise interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.

 Lessor accounting under MFRS 16 is substantially the same as the accounting under MFRS 117. Lessors 
will continue to classify all leases using the same classification principle as in MFRS 117 and distinguish 
between two types of leases: operating and finance leases.

 MFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. Early application is permitted 
but not before an entity applies MFRS 15. A lessee can choose to apply the standard using either a full 
retrospective or a modified retrospective approach. The Group is currently assessing the impact of MFRS 
16 and plans to adopt the new standard on the required effective date.

(iv) MFRS 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers

 MFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model that will apply to revenue arising from contracts with customers. 
MFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including MFRS 118: Revenue, MFRS 
111: Construction Contracts and the related interpretations when it becomes effective.

 The core principle of MFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise revenue which depicts the transfer of 
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity 
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

 Under MFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, when “control” 
of the goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

 Either a full or modified retrospective application is required for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2018 with early adoption permitted. The Directors anticipate that the application of MFRS 15 may have a 
material impact on the amounts reported and disclosures made in the Group’s and the Company’s financial 
statements. The Group is currently assessing the impact of MFRS 15 and plans to adopt the new standard 
on the required effective date.

(d) Subsidiaries and Basis of Consolidation

(i) Subsidiaries

 Subsidiaries are all entities over which the group has control. The group control an entity when the Group is 
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect 
those returns through its power over the entity.

 In the Company’s separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at costs less 
accumulated impairment losses. On disposal of such investments, the difference between net disposal 
proceeds and their carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.
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(d) Subsidiaries and Basis of Consolidation (Cont’d)

(ii) Basis of consolidation

 The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries 
as at the financial year end. The financial statements of the subsidiaries used in the preparation of the 
consolidated financial statements are prepared for the same financial year end as the Company. Consistent 
accounting policies are applied to like transactions and events in similar circumstances.

 Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are 
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

 All intra-group balances, income and expenses and unrealised gains and losses resulting from the intra-group 
transactions are eliminated in full.

 The statement of comprehensive income reflects the results of the combining entities for the full year, 
irrespective of when the combination takes place. Comparatives are presented as if the entities have always 
been combined since the date the entities had come under common control. Acquisitions of subsidiaries 
are accounted for using the purchase method.

 Under the purchase method of accounting, identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities 
assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the date of acquisition. 
Adjustment to those fair values relating to previously held interests are treated as a revaluation and recognised 
in other comprehensive income. The cost of a business combination is measured as the aggregate of the fair 
values, at the date of exchange, of the assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments 
issued, plus any costs directly attributable to the business combination.

 Any excess of the cost of business combination over the Group’s share in the net fair value of the acquired 
subsidiary’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities is recorded as goodwill on the statement of 
financial position. Any excess of the Group’s share in the net fair value of the acquired subsidiary’s identifiable 
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of business combination is recognised as income 
in profit or loss on the date of acquisition. When the Group acquires a business, embedded derivatives are 
separated from the host contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required 
under the contract.

(iii) Transactions with non-controlling interest 

 Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries not attributable, direct or indirectly, to the owners 
of the Company, and is presented separately in consolidated statements of comprehensive income and within 
equity in the consolidated statement of financial position, separately from equity attributable to owners of the 
Company.

 Changes in the Company owners’ ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control 
are accounted for as equity transactions. In such circumstances, the carrying amounts of the controlling 
and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. 
Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value of 
the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the parent.

 Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary is attributable to the non-controlling interest even if it results 
in a deficit balance.
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(e) Foreign Currencies 

(i) Functional and presentation currency

 The individual financial statements of each entity in the Group and the Company are measured using the 
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The 
consolidated financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM) which is also the Group’s and the 
Company’s functional currency.

(ii) Foreign currency transactions

 Transactions in foreign currencies are measured in the respective functional currencies of the Company and 
its subsidiaries are recorded on initial recognition in the functional currencies at exchange rates approximating 
those ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are 
translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign 
currencies that are measured at historical cost are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of 
the initial transactions. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies measured at fair value are 
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

 Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at the 
reporting date are recognised in profit or loss except for exchange differences arising on monetary items 
that form part of the Group’s net investment in foreign operations, which are recognised initially in other 
comprehensive income and accumulated under foreign currency translation reserve in equity. The foreign 
currency translation reserve is reclassified from equity to profit or loss of the Group on disposal of the foreign 
operation.

 Exchange differences arising on the translation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in 
profit or loss for the period except for the differences arising on the translation of non-monetary items in 
respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly in equity. Exchange differences arising from such 
non-monetary items are also recognised directly in equity.

(iii) Foreign operations

 The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into RM at the rate of exchange ruling at the 
reporting date and income and expenses are translated at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. 
The exchange differences arising on the translation are taken directly to other comprehensive income. 

 On disposal of a foreign operation, the convertible  amount recognised in other comprehensive income and 
accumulated in equity under foreign currency translation reserve relating to that particular foreign operation 
is recognised in the profit or loss.

 Fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of foreign operations are treated as assets and liabilities of 
the foreign operations and are recorded in the functional currency of the foreign operations and translated 
at the closing rate at the reporting date.
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(f) plant and equipment

 All items of plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. The cost of an item of plant and equipment is 
recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow 
to the Group and the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

 Subsequent to recognition, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment losses. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced in 
intervals, the Group and the Company recognise such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and 
depreciation, respectively. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying 
amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and 
maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

 Depreciation of plant and equipment is computed on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of the 
assets as follows:

Plant and machinery 10% to 33.3%
Office equipment, furniture and fittings 10% to 33.3%
Motor vehicles 10% to 20%
Mouldings 20% 
Renovation 10% to 33%

 The carrying values of plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. 

 The residual values, useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial year-end, and adjusted 
prospectively, if appropriate.

 An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected 
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on derecognition of the asset is included in the profit or loss in the year 
the asset is derecognised.

(g) Impairment of Non-Financial assets

 The Group and the Company assess at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset (other than 
inventories and deferred tax assets) may be impaired. If any such indications exist, or when an annual impairment 
assessment for an asset is required, the Group and the Company make an estimate of the asset’s recoverable 
amount.

 An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. For the 
purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable 
cash flows (cash generating units (“CGU”)).

 In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset are discounted 
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of 
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, 
the asset is written down to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of a CGU or groups 
of CGUs are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of assets in the unit or groups of units on a pro-rata basis.

 Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

 An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognised 
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed 
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last 
impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable 
amount. That increase shall not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, 
had no impairment loss been recognised previously. Such reversal is recognised in profit or loss.
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(h) Financial assets

 Financial assets are recognised in the statements of financial position when, and only when, the Group and the 
Company become a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

 When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus in the case of financial assets 
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of 
the financial instrument.

 The Group and the Company determine the classification of their financial assets at initial recognition and the 
category is as follows:

•	 Loans and receivables

 Financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market are classified 
as loans and receivables.

 Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the loans and receivables are 
derecognised or impaired, and through amortisation process.

 
 Loans and receivables are classified as current assets, except for those having maturity dates later than 12 

months after reporting date which are classified as non-current.

 A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired. On 
derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the 
consideration received and any convertible  gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income 
is recognised in profit or loss.

 Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the 
period generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace concerned. All regular way purchases 
and sales of financial assets are recognised or derecognised on the settlement date, i.e. the date that the asset is 
delivered to or by the Group and the Company.

(i) Impairment of Financial assets 

 The Group and the Company assess at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial 
asset is impaired.

 Trade and other receivables and other financial assets carried at amortised cost

 To determine whether there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets has been incurred, 
the Group and the Company consider factors such as the probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties 
of the debtor and default or significant delay in payments and delinquency in interest or principal payments and 
other financial reorganisation where observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated 
future cash flows.

 For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired 
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis based on similar risk characteristics. 
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s and the Company’s 
past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the 
average credit period and observable changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with default 
on receivables.

 If any such evidence exists, the amount of impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s 
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original 
effective interest rate. The impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss. 
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(i) Impairment of Financial assets (Cont’d)

 The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the 
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account. 
When a trade receivable becomes uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.

 If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively 
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed 
to the extent that the carrying amount of the assets does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date. The 
amount of reversal is recognised in profit or loss. 

(j) Cash and Cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits.

(k) Inventories

 Inventories are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value.

 Cost is determined using first-in, first-out basis. The cost of raw materials comprises cost of purchase. The cost of 
finished goods and work-in-progress include cost of raw materials, direct labour, other direct cost and appropriate 
production overheads. 

 Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of completion 
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(l) Financial Liabilities 

 Financial liabilities are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the 
definitions of a financial liability.

 Financial liabilities are recognised in the statements of financial position when, and only when, the Group and the 
Company become a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. Financial liabilities are classified 
as either financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or other financial liabilities.

•	 Other	financial	liabilities	

 The Group’s and the Company’s other financial liabilities include trade payables, other payables and borrowings. 

 Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs and 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

 Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured 
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Borrowing is classified as current liabilities unless the 
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting 
date. 

 For other financial liabilities, gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised 
and through the amortisation process. 

 A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is extinguished.

 When an existing financial liability is replaced by another instrument from the same lender on substantially different 
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated 
as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective 
carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.
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(m) provisions 

 Provisions are recognised when the Group and the Company have a legal or constructive present obligation as a 
result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economics benefits will be required 
to settle the obligation and the amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably.

 Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer 
probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed. If 
the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, 
where appropriate, the risk specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to 
the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

(n) Borrowing Cost

 Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of a qualifying asset if they are directly attributable to the 
acquisition, construction or production of that asset. Capitalisation of borrowing costs commences when the 
activities to prepare the asset for its intended use or sales are in progress and the expenditures and borrowing 
costs are incurred. Borrowing costs are capitalised until the assets are substantially completed for their intended 
use or sale. 

 All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist 
of interest and other costs that the Group and the Company incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds.

(o) Fair Value Measurement 

 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption 
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset 
or liability or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The 
principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group and the Company.

 The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when 
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

 The Group and the Company use valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising 
the use of unobservable inputs.

 All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised 
within the fair value hierarchy based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a 
whole.

 For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group and the 
Company determine whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation 
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the financial year 
end.

(p) employee Benefits

(i) Short term benefits

 Wages, salaries, bonuses and social security contributions are recognised as an expense in the year in which 
the associated services are rendered by employees of the Group and the Company. 

 
 Short term accumulating compensated absences such as paid annual leave are recognised when services 

are rendered by employees that increase their entitlement to future compensated absences, and short term 
non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick leave are recognised when the absences occur.
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(p) employee Benefits (Cont’d)

(ii) Defined contribution plans
 
 As required by law, companies in Malaysia make contributions to the state pension scheme, the Employees 

Provident Fund (“EPF”). Some of the Group’s foreign subsidiaries make contributions to their respective 
countries statutory pension schemes. Such contributions are recognised as an expense in the period in 
which the related service is performed. 

(q) Leases

 Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the 
leased item, are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, at the 
present value of the minimum lease payments. Any initial direct costs are also added to the amount capitalised. 
Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve 
a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged to profit or loss. 
Contingent rents, if any, are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

 Leased assets are depreciated over the estimated useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty 
that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the 
estimated useful life and the lease term.

 Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease 
term. The aggregate benefit of incentives provided by the lessor is recognised as a reduction of rental expense 
over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

(r) Income taxes

(i) Current tax

 Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the 
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or 
substantively enacted by the reporting date. 

 Current taxes are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that the tax relates to items recognised 
outside profit or loss (whether in other comprehensive income or directly in equity), in which case the current 
taxes is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

(ii) Deferred tax

 Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the reporting date between 
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. 

 Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences, except:

- where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction 
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting 
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

- in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, where the timing 
of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary 
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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(r) Income taxes (Cont’d)

(ii) Deferred tax (Cont’d)

 Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits 
and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the 
deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can 
be utilised except:

- where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial 
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time 
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

- in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax 
assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse 
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences 
can be utilised.

 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent 
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred 
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are 
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax 
asset to be utilised.

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when 
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

 Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred 
tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income 
or directly in equity and deferred tax arising from a business combination is adjusted against goodwill on 
acquisition.

 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current 
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same 
taxation authority.

(s) Segment reporting

 For management purposes, the Group is organised into geographical operating segments which are independently 
managed by the respective geographical segment managers responsible for the performance of the respective 
segments under their charge. The segment managers report directly to Deputy Executive Chairman, who regularly 
review the segment results in order to allocate resources to the segments and to assess the segments performance. 
Additional disclosures on each of these segments are shown in Note 35

(t) Share Capital and Share Issuance expenses

 An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting 
all of its liabilities. Ordinary shares are equity instruments.

 Ordinary shares are recorded at the proceeds received, net of directly attributable incremental transaction costs. 
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the period in which 
they are declared.
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2. SIGNIFICaNt aCCoUNtING poLICIeS (CoNt’D)

(u) Warrants

 Warrants are classified as equity instrument and it is allocated its value based on the closing price of the first trading 
day, if the warrant is listed, or estimated using option pricing models, if the warrant is not listed.

 The issuance of ordinary shares upon exercise of the warrants is treated as new subscription of ordinary shares 
for the consideration equivalent to the exercise price of the warrants.

(v) Compound Financial Instruments 

 A compound financial instruments is a non-derivatives financial instruments that contains both a liability and an 
equity component.

 Compound financial instruments issued by the Group comprise irredeemable convertible preference shares (“ICPS”) 
that can be converted to share capital at the option of the holder, when the number of shares to be issued does 
not vary with changes in their fair value.

 The proceeds are first allocated to the liability component, determined based on the fair value of a similar liability that 
does not have a conversion features or similar associated equity component. Any directly attributable transaction 
costs are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to their initial carrying amounts.

 Subsequent to initial recognition the liability component of a compound financial instruments is measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method. The equity component of a compound financial instrument is 
not remeasured subsequent to initial recognition 

 Interest and losses and gains relating to the financial liability are recognised in profit or loss. On conversion, the 
financial liability is reclassified to equity, no gain or loss is recognised on conversion.

(w) Irredeemable Convertible preference Shares (“ICpS”) 

 ICPS which were issued after the effective date of MFRS 132: Financial Instruments: Presentation, are regarded 
as compound instruments, consisting of an equity component and a liability component.

 ICPS which have a 0% coupon rate are considered to have only the equity component, as there is no obligation 
for payment of interest, principal or for re-purchase. If dividend payments are not discretionary, the ICPS contain 
a liability component and dividends thereon are recognised as interest expense in profit or loss as incurred. 

 When the ICPS, which were previously acquired and held by the Group, are reissued at values which are different 
from the nominal value of the ICPS, the differences would be taken to profit or loss if the ICPS are classified as a 
liability instrument or to equity if the ICPS are classified as an equity instrument.

(x) revenue 

 Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the 
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received 
or receivable.

(i) Revenue from sale of goods is recognised upon the transfer of significant risk and rewards of ownership of 
the goods to the customer. Revenue is not recognised to the extent where there are significant uncertainties 
regarding recovery of the consideration due, associated costs or the possible return of goods.

(ii) Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

(iii) Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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2. SIGNIFICaNt aCCoUNtING poLICIeS (CoNt’D)

(y) Significant accounting Judgements and estimates 

 The preparation of the Group’s and the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and 
the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the reporting date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and 
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or 
liability in the future.

(i) Judgement Made in Applying Accounting Policies 

 There were no major judgements made by the management in the process of applying the Group’s and 
the Company’s accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the 
financial statements.

(ii) Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

 The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting 
date, that have significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 
within the next financial year are discussed below:

•	 Useful	lives	of	plant	and	equipment

 The cost of plant and equipment for the manufacturing of electronic components is depreciated on a 
straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated economic useful lives. Management estimates the useful 
life of these plant and equipment to be within 3 to 10 years. These are common life expectancies applied 
in the electronics industry. Changes in the expected level of usage and technological developments 
could impact the economic useful lives and the residual values of these assets, therefore future 
depreciation charges could be revised. The carrying amount of the Group’s and the Company’s plant 
and equipment at the reporting date are disclosed in Note 13.

•	 Deferred	tax	assets

 Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses and unabsorbed capital allowances to 
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses and capital 
allowances can be utilised.  Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount 
of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based on the likely timing and level of future taxable 
profits together with future tax planning strategies. The total carrying value of the deferred tax assets 
of the Group is as disclosed in Note 15.

•	 Impairment	of	loans	and	receivables

 The Group and the Company assess at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence 
that a financial asset is impaired. To determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment, the 
Group and the Company consider factors such as the probability of insolvency or significant financial 
difficulties of the debtor and default or significant delay in payments.

 Where there is objective evidence of impairment, the amount and timing of future cash flows are 
estimated based on historical loss experience for assets with similar credit risk characteristics. The 
carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s loans and receivables at the reporting date are 
disclosed in Notes 17 and 18.
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2. SIGNIFICaNt aCCoUNtING poLICIeS (CoNt’D)

(y) Significant accounting Judgements and estimates (Cont’d)

(ii) Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Cont’d)

•	 Impairment	of	investment	in	subsidiaries	

 In previous financial years, the Company has recognised impairment losses in respect of investments 
in subsidiaries. The Company carried out the impairment test based on the estimation of the higher of 
the value-in-use or the fair value less cost of disposal of the cash-generating units (“CGU”) to which 
the investments in subsidiaries belong to. Estimating the recoverable amount requires the Company 
to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the CGU and also to determine a suitable 
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. Further details of the impairment 
losses recognised are disclosed in Note 14.

•	 Inventories	obsolescence
 
 Reviews are made periodically by the management on inventories for excess inventories, obsolescence 

and decline in the net realisable value below cost. These reviews require the use of judgements and 
estimates. Possible changes in these estimates could result in revisions to the valuation of inventories.

•	 ICPS

 The fair values of the equity and liability components of a compound financial instrument requires the 
determination of the most appropriate valuation model to use depending on the terms and conditions 
of the financial instrument, the discount rate, and making assumptions about the future cash flow 
streams.

 

3. reVeNUe

 This represents invoiced sales after allowance for goods returned and trade discount.

4. CoSt oF SaLeS

 Cost of sales represents cost of inventories sold and recognised as expense.
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5. otHer IteMS oF INCoMe

 Group Company
  2016 2015 2016 2015
  rM rM rM rM

Bad debts recovered  132,472 – – –
Government incentive for SME/Job 
 credit rebates  478,635 197,952 – –
Gain on foreign exchange - unrealised   377,623 1,066,513 13,488 1,159,462
Gain on disposal of associates   – 1 – 1
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment  – 5,983 – –
Interest income  145,610 4,786 139,216 69
Rebate from suppliers  – 56,824 – –
Reversal of impairment on
 - investments in subsidiaries   – – 9,685,885 –
 - Trade receivables  299,647 – – –
 - Other receivables  – 629,812 – –
Recovery expenses from subsidiaries  – – 207,435 207,845
Sales of scrap  30,224 60,641 – –
Sub-let rental income  212,122 82,517 – –
Other   257 5,071 – 5,071

   1,676,590 2,110,100 10,046,024 1,372,448

6. otHer eXpeNSeS

 Group Company
  2016 2015 2016 2015
  rM rM rM rM

      
 

Bad debts written off  666,324 629,812 – –
Allowance for impairment loss on:
- investment in subsidiary  – – – 99,999
- Other receivables  – – 1,741,064 –
Plant and equipment written off  4,045 73,745 – –
Loss on foreign exchange - realised  65,653 64,394 66,198 14,716
Recoverable expenses  – – 363,740 328,938

   736,022 767,951 2,171,002 443,653

7. FINaNCe CoSt, Net

 Group Company
  2016 2015 2016 2015
  rM rM rM rM

Finance and bank interest  11,605 14,259 – –
Bank charges  102,074 66,517 1,922 352

 
   113,679 80,776 1,922 352
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8.  proFIt/(LoSS) BeFore taX

 Profit/(Loss) before tax is stated after charging/(crediting):

 Group Company
  2016 2015 2016 2015
  rM rM rM rM

Auditors’ remuneration
- Statutory audit  110,617 107,587 25,000 25,000
- Other services
 - under provision in prior year  8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000
Auditors’ remuneration for subsidiaries
 - current year  44,000 42,000 44,000 42,000
 - under provision in prior year  753 9,815 2,000 9,815
Allowance for impairment loss on 
 - investment in subsidiary (Note 14)  – – – 99,999
 - trade receivable (Note 17)  467,603 – – –
 - other receivables (Note 18)  – – 1,741,064 –
Bad debts written off  666,324 629,812 – –
Bad debt recovered  (132,472) – – –
Depreciation (Note 13)  1,701,271 1,634,530 16,026 10,842
Employee benefits expense (Note 9)    16,701,426 15,803,909 577,766 728,530
Interest income  (145,610) (4,786) (139,216) (69)
Interest expenses  11,605 14,259 – –
(Gain)/Loss on foreign exchange
 - unrealised  (377,623) (1,066,513) (13,488) (1,159,462)
 - realised  65,653 64,394 66,198 14,716
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment – (5,983) – –
Gain on disposal of associate  – (1) – (1)
Plant and equipment written off  4,045 73,745 – –
Professional fees and cost on 
 corporate expenses  644,725 138,069 644,725 138,069
Reversal of impairment loss on
 - investment in subsidiaries (Note 14)  – – (9,685,885) –
 - trade receivables (Note 17)  (299,647) – – –
 - other receivables (Note 18)  – (629,812) – –
Rental of equipment  83,072 81,910 4,579 5,842
Rental of factory  1,356,682 1,082,513 – –
Rental of office  1,609,059 1,225,467 33,000 40,000
Sub-let rental income  (212,122) (82,517) – –

 

9.  eMpLoYee BeNeFItS eXpeNSe

 Group Company
  2016 2015 2016 2015
  rM rM rM rM

Wages, salaries and bonuses  15,902,714 15,040,821 514,793 658,507
Social security contributions  259,731 259,825 3,155 2,945
Defined contribution plans  324,934 241,763 58,469 61,267
Other staff related expenses  214,047 261,500 1,349 5,811

   16,701,426 15,803,909 577,766 728,530

 Included in employee benefits expense of the Group and of the Company are directors’ remuneration amounting to 
RM3,330,039 (2015: RM2,982,459) and RM145,377 (2015: RM288,757) respectively as disclosed in Note 10.
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10.  DIreCtorS’ reMUNeratIoN

 Group Company
  2016 2015 2016 2015
  rM rM rM rM

Directors of the Company
Executive:
Salaries and other emoluments  1,379,591 1,132,659 127,551 192,757
Fees   120,127 115,367 12,000 12,000
Benefits-in-kind  16,792 14,852 – –

   1,516,510 1,262,878 139,551 204,757

Non-executive:
Other emolument
 - overprovision in prior years  (47,583) – (47,583) –
Fees
 - current year   87,009 84,000 87,009 84,000
 - overprovision in prior years  (33,600) – (33,600) –

   5,826 84,000 5,826 84,000

   1,522,336 1,346,878 145,377 288,757

other directors of subsidiaries
Executive:
Salaries and other emoluments  1,639,941 1,491,122 – –
Defined contribution plans  49,161 31,445 – –
Fees   135,393 127,866 – –
Benefits-in-kind  899 – – –

   1,825,394 1,650,433 – –

Total   3,347,730 2,997,311 145,377 288,757

Analysis excluding benefits-in-kind:
Total executive directors’ 
 remuneration (Note 29(b))  3,324,213 2,898,459 139,551 204,757
Total non-executive directors’ 
 remuneration  5,826 84,000 5,826 84,000

Total directors’ remuneration (Note 9)  3,330,039 2,982,459 145,377 288,757
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10.  DIreCtorS’ reMUNeratIoN (CoNt’D)

 The number of directors of the Company whose total remuneration during the financial year fell within the following bands 
is analysed below:

 Number of directors
     2016 2015

executive directors:   
RM100,001 to RM150,000    1 –
RM150,001 to RM200,000    – 1
RM200,001 to RM1,000,000    – –
RM1,000,001 to RM1,500,000    1 1
   
Non-executive directors:   
Below RM50,000    6 3

11. INCoMe taX eXpeNSe

 The major components of income tax expense are:

 Group Company
  2016 2015 2016 2015
  rM rM rM rM

Statements of profit or loss:
Current income tax:
Under/(Over) provision in prior year  61,192 (5,681) – –
Foreign tax  179,526 6,052 – –

   240,718 371 – –

Deferred tax (Note 15):
Relating to origination and reversal of 
 temporary differences  (576) 168,428 – –
Overprovision in prior year  – (44,274) – –

 
   (576) 124,154 – –

Income tax recognised in profit or loss  240,142 124,525 – –
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11. INCoMe taX eXpeNSe (CoNt’D)

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit/(loss)

 A reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit/(loss) are multiplied by the applicable corporate 
tax rate are as follows: 

     2016 2015
     rM rM
Group
Profit before tax    94,657 2,816,490

   
Taxation at Malaysian statutory tax rate of 24% (2015: 25%)  22,718 704,123
Adjustments:   
Different tax rates in other countries    (250,953) (184,783)
Franchise tax    14,007 6,052
Non-deductible expenses     1,312,728 280,513
Deferred tax assets not recognised    – 27,873
Deferred tax assets movement not recognised   29,577 –
Differential tax rate for deferred tax    (20,715) (42,947)
Income not subject to tax    (592,559) (359,717)

Balance carried forward    514,803 431,114
 

Balance brought forward    514,803 431,114
Under/(Over) provision of income tax in prior year   61,192 (5,681)
Overprovision of deferred tax in prior year   – (44,274)
Utilisation of unutilised tax losses of federal tax   – 81,990
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised as deferred tax  (335,853) (338,624)

Income tax recognised in profit or loss    240,142 124,525

   
Company
Profit/(Loss) before tax    6,242,370 (491,116)

   
Taxation at Malaysian statutory tax rate of 24% (2015: 25%)  1,498,169 (122,779)
Adjustments:   
Non-deductible expenses    912,876 465,891
Income not subject to tax    (2,411,045) (343,112)

Income tax recognised in profit or loss    – –

 Domestic income tax is calculated at the Malaysian statutory tax rate of 24% (2015: 25%) of the estimated assessable 
profit for the year.

 Taxation for other jurisdiction is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

 The above reconciliation is prepared by aggregating separate reconciliation for each national jurisdiction.
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12. (LoSS)/earNINGS per SHare

(a) Basic (loss)/earnings per share

 Basic (loss)/earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing (loss)/ profit for the year net of tax, attributable 
to ordinary equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the 
financial year.

 The following reflect the (loss)/profit and share data used in the computation of basic (loss)/earnings per share for 
the years ended 31 December:

     2016 2015
   
(Loss)/Profit for the year, net of tax, attributable to owners 
 of the Company (RM)    (11,085) 2,691,965

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue  242,281,595 211,857,842

   
Basic (loss)/earnings per share (sen)   (0.005) 1.27

(b) Diluted (loss)/earnings per share

 For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings/(loss) per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares 
in issue during the financial year have been adjusted for dilutive effects of unexercised warrants.

    2016 2015
   
 (Loss)/Profit for the year, net of tax, attributable to owners 
  of the Company (RM)    (11,085) 2,691,965

 Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue  242,281,595 211,857,843
 Effect of dilution of unexercised warrants   45,549,042 22,685,860
 Effect of dilution of unexercised ICPS   118,945,570 –

 Adjusted weighted average number of ordinary shares  406,776,207 234,543,703

   
 Diluted (loss)/earnings per share (sen)   (0.003) 1.15
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13. pLaNt aND eQUIpMeNt

   office
   equipment,
  plant and  Furniture and Motor
  Machinery Fittings Vehicles Mouldings renovation total
  rM rM rM rM rM rM

Group      
at 31 December 2016      
Cost      
At 1 January 2016 9,391,596 2,119,732 1,155,699 239,846 2,800,492 15,707,365
Additions 5,849,726 185,151 – – 1,060,859 7,095,736
Written offs (1,188,272) (146,243) – – – (1,334,515)
Exchange differences (36,352) (28,275) 26,428 (6,044) (58,389) (102,632)

at 31 December 2016 14,016,698 2,130,365 1,182,127 233,802 3,802,962 21,365,954

accumulated Depreciation 
 and Impairment Losses
At 1 January 2016      
Accumulated depreciation 6,766,461 1,965,069 265,965 205,480 1,601,350 10,804,325
Accumulated impairment 
 losses 63,406 – – – – 63,406

 
  6,829,867 1,965,069 265,965 205,480 1,601,350 10,867,731
Charge for the year 1,242,144 105,549 134,320 31,257 188,001 1,701,271
Written offs (1,184,274) (146,196) – – – (1,330,470)
Exchange differences 23,837 (22,817) 7,860 (4,054) (23,376) (18,550)

at 31 December 2016      
Accumulated depreciation 6,848,168 1,901,605 408,145 232,683 1,765,975 11,156,576
Accumulated impairment losses 63,406 – – – – 63,406

 
  6,911,574 1,901,605 408,145 232,683 1,765,975 11,219,982

Net Carrying amount      
at 31 December 2016 7,105,124 228,760 773,982 1,119 2,036,987 10,145,972
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13.  pLaNt aND eQUIpMeNt (CoNt’D)

   office
   equipment,
  plant and  Furniture and Motor
  Machinery Fittings Vehicles Mouldings renovation total
  rM rM rM rM rM rM

Group      
at 31 December 2015      
Cost      
At 1 January 2015 7,716,687 1,804,165 924,526 208,941 1,774,031 12,428,350
Additions 984,578 32,694 100,835 – 708,663 1,826,770
Disposal  (124,586) (504) (64,263) – – (189,353)
Written offs (643,987) (47,997) – (5,425) – (697,409)
Exchange differences 1,458,904 331,374 194,601 36,330 317,798 2,339,007

at 31 December 2015 9,391,596 2,119,732 1,155,699 239,846 2,800,492 15,707,365

accumulated Depreciation 
 and Impairment Losses
At 1 January 2015      
Accumulated depreciation 5,188,317 1,602,711 162,453 140,213 1,224,351 8,318,045
Accumulated impairment 
 losses 63,406 – – – – 63,406

  5,251,723 1,602,711 162,453 140,213 1,224,351 8,381,451
Charge for the year 1,206,313 107,228 131,768 43,505 145,716 1,634,530
Disposal  (124,586) (82) (64,263) – – (188,931)
Written offs (571,982) (46,257) – (5,425) – (623,664)
Exchange differences 1,068,399 301,469 36,007 27,187 231,283 1,664,345

at 31 December 2015
Accumulated depreciation 6,766,461 1,965,069 265,965 205,480 1,601,350 10,804,325
Accumulated impairment losses 63,406 – – – – 63,406

  6,829,867 1,965,069 265,965 205,480 1,601,350 10,867,731

Net Carrying amount      
at 31 December 2015 2,561,729 154,663 889,734 34,366 1,199,142 4,839,634
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13. pLaNt aND eQUIpMeNt (CoNt’D)

    office
    equipment, 
    Furniture and 
    Fittings renovation total
    rM rM rM

Company
at 31 December 2016   
Cost   
At 1 January 2016   34,295 69,091 103,386
Additions   13,329 15,130 28,459

at 31 December 2016   47,624 84,221 131,845

accumulated Depreciation   
At 1 January 2016   16,656 6,334 22,990
Charge for the year   5,587 10,439 16,026

at 31 December 2016   22,243 16,773 39,016

Net Carrying amount
at 31 December 2016   25,381 67,448 92,829

at 31 December 2015
Cost   
At 1 January 2015   20,036 3,649 23,685
Additions   14,259 65,442 79,701

at 31 December 2015   34,295 69,091 103,386
   

accumulated Depreciation   
At 1 January 2015   12,148 – 12,148
Charge for the year   4,508 6,334 10,842

at 31 December 2015   16,656 6,334 22,990
   

Net Carrying amount   
at 31 December 2015   17,639 62,757 80,396

   
 

(a) During the financial year, the Group and the Company acquired all their plant and equipment by means of cash.

(b) The net carrying amount of motor vehicle of the Group held under finance lease and held in trust by a director at 
the end of the financial year is RM680,136 (2015: RM735,037). 

(c) The carrying amount of other plant and equipment of the Group held in trust by a third party at the end of the 
financial year is RM1,068 (2015: RM14,011).
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13. pLaNt aND eQUIpMeNt (CoNt’D)

(d) Included in plant and equipment of the Group are the cost of fully depreciated assets which are still in use as follow:

  Group
     2016 2015
     rM rM
   
Plant and machinery    4,188,255 3,410,801
Office equipment, furniture and fittings   1,697,874 1,688,658
Motor vehicle    152,973 –
Mouldings    202,622 13,979
Renovation    1,486,578 1,018,631

     7,728,302 6,132,069

14.  INVeStMeNtS IN SUBSIDIarIeS
 
  Company

     2016 2015
     rM rM
   
Unquoted shares, at cost    35,157,964 24,082,072
Less: Accumulated impairment losses    (10,160,153) (19,846,038)

 
     24,997,811 4,236,034

 
Movement in accumulated impairment losses   
At 1 January    19,846,038 19,746,039
Addition during the year (Note 8)    – 99,999
Reversal during the year (Note 8)    (9,685,885) –

 
At 31 December    10,160,153 19,846,038

(a) Details of the subsidiaries are as follows:

   effective Interest
 Name of Country of Held (%) principal activities
 Subsidiaries Incorporation 2016 2015  

    
 Rapid Conn  Malaysia 100 100 Dormant.
  Interconnect  
  (M) Sdn. Bhd.  
    
 Borderless Fame  Malaysia 100 100 Dormant.
  Sdn. Bhd.      

 Rapid Conn Inc. United States  100 100 Design, manufacture, sales,
  of America   marketing and services of
  (USA)   cables, connectors and related
     products.
    
 Rapid Conn (S)  Singapore 100 100 Trading and marketing of cables,
  Pte. Ltd. *     connectors and related products.
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14.  INVeStMeNtS IN SUBSIDIarIeS (CoNt’D)

(a) Details of the subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont’d)

   effective Interest
 Name of Country of Held (%) principal activities
 Subsidiaries Incorporation 2016 2015  
 
 Rapid Conn  People’s 100 100 Manufacture and trading of
  (ShenZhen) Republic of    cables, connectors and
  Co., Ltd. China   related products. 

 Held through rapid 
  Conn (ShenZhen) 
  Co., Ltd.

 ShenZhen Rapid  People’s 80 100 Manufacture and trading of
  Power Co., Ltd.  Republic of   cables, connectors and
  (formerly known as  China   related products.
  Rapid Power 
  (ShenZhen) 
  Co., Ltd.)

 ShenZhen Rapid People’s 80 – Manufacture and trading of
  Resin Co., Ltd. Republic of   thermoplastic and elastomers
   China   materials.

 * Audited by Moore Stephens LLP, Singapore.
 

(b) Auditors’ Reports and subsidiaries

 Rapid Conn Interconnect (M) Sdn. Bhd.’s auditors’ report contains material uncertainty relating to the appropriateness 
of going concern basis of accounting is dependent on the financial support from its holding company and its fellow 
subsidiaries.

 Borderless Fame Sdn. Bhd.’s auditors’ report contains material uncertainty relating to the appropriateness of going 
concern basis of accounting is dependent on the financial support from its holding company.

(c) Acquisition of new subsidiary and subscription of shares

(i) Rapid Conn (ShenZhen) Co., Ltd. (“RCC”)

 During the financial year, the Company subscribed for additional shares amounting to RMB14,692,762 
(equivalent to RM9,145,233), in RCC.

(ii) Rapid Conn (S) Pte. Ltd. (“RCS”)

 During the financial year, the Company subscribed for additional shares amounting to USD484,953 (equivalent 
to RM1,930,659), in RCS.

(iii) ShenZhen Rapid Resin Co., Ltd. (“RCR”)

 On 23 September 2016, the Company’s subsidiary, Rapid Conn (ShenZhen) Co., Ltd. (“RCC”), incorporated 
a new majority owned subsidiary, namely ShenZhen Rapid Resin Co., Ltd. ("RCR"), a private limited company 
which has subscription shares of RMB2,500,000 (equivalent to RM1,615,000) comprising 2,500,000 shares 
of RMB1 each. RCC had subscribed 2,000,000 share capital of RMB1 each, representing 80% of equity 
interest of RCR. 

 As at 31 December 2016, RCC had paid up to RMB1,000,000 (equivalent to RM646,000) of RCR’s share 
capital.
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14.  INVeStMeNtS IN SUBSIDIarIeS (CoNt’D)

(d) Disposal of subscription on investment in subsidiary

 On 14 October 2016, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company namely, Rapid Conn (ShenZhen) Co., Ltd. (“RCC”) 
had disposed its equity interest of 1,500,000 registered capital of RMB1 each in its subsidiary, namely ShenZhen 
Rapid Power Co., Ltd. (formerly known as Rapid Power (ShenZhen) Co., Ltd.) (“RCP”) to a third party for a total 
consideration of RMB1,500,000 (equivalent to RM930,002).

 An option for further acquisition has been granted to the third party to acquire an additional 20% shares, representing 
1,500,000 of ordinary shares of RMB1 each in RCP.

 As at 31 December 2016, RCC had paid up to RMB3,500,000 (equivalent to RM2,261,000) of RCP’s share capital.

(e) No cost of investment recognised for RCP in year ended 31 December 2015

 In year 2015, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company namely, RCC had incorporated a wholly-owned subsidiary 
namely RCP.

 In accordance to PRC Company Law, effective from 1 March 2014, the law had removed the existing requirements 
to the contribution timeline of registered capital and the minimum amount of the registered capital of a company. 
Shareholders of a company may determine for themselves the subscription of registered capital, contribution 
manner, term and etc. 

 As a result, there was no paid-up share capital for RCP and no cost of investment recognised by the Company.

(f) Impairment tests for investments in subsidiaries 

 The management has carried out an impairment review on the investments in the subsidiaries. The Company has 
used value-in-use calculations to estimate the recoverable amount. Value-in-use was determined by discounting 
the future cash flows generated from the continuing use of the cash generating units based on the following 
assumptions:

(i) pre-tax cash flow projections based on the most recent financial budgets approved by the directors covering 
a 5 years period.

(ii) pre-tax discount rates of 2% to 6% (2015: 4% to 5%) were applied in determining the recoverable amount. 
The discount rate was based on the current borrowing interest rate applicable at each subsidiaries locality.

 The values assigned to the key assumptions represent management’s assessment of future trends in the industry.

(g) Non-controlling interest in subsidiaries

 The Group’s subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests (“NCI”) are as follows:

    rCp  rCr total
    rM rM rM

2016 
NCI percentage of ownership interest 
 and voting interest   20% 20% 
Carrying amount of NCI   537,740 (34,728) 503,012
Total comprehensive expenses allocated to 
 NCI    (109,410) (34,728) (144,138)
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14.  INVeStMeNtS IN SUBSIDIarIeS (CoNt’D)

(g) Non-controlling interest in subsidiaries (Cont’d)

 The Group’s subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests (“NCI”) are as follows: (Cont’d)

Summarised financial information before intra-group elimination 

     rCp  rCr
     rM rM

as at 31 December 2016  
Non-current assets    4,054,223 622,460
Current assets    1,922,146 262,401
Current liabilities    (3,620,843) (410,201)

Net assets    2,355,526 474,660

  
Year ended 31 December 2016  
Total comprehensive expenses for the year/period   (547,049) (173,640)

  
Cash flows generated from operating activities   1,617,782 31,755
Cash flows used in investing activities   (4,124,087) (633,011)
Cash flows generated from financing activities   2,907,000 646,000

Net increased in cash and cash equivalents   400,695 44,744

 
15. DeFerreD taX (aSSetS)/LIaBILItIeS

 Group Company
  2016 2015 2016 2015
  rM rM rM rM

At 1 January  (49,315) (154,435) – –
Recognised in profit or loss (Note 11)  (576) 124,154 – –
Recognised in equity (Note 22)   (341,185) – (341,185) –
Exchange differences  (567) (19,034) – –

At 31 December  (391,643) (49,315) (341,185) –

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offsets when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against 
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same tax authority. The net deferred tax assets 
and liabilities shown on the statement of financial position after appropriate offsetting are as follows: 

 
 Group Company
  2016 2015 2016 2015
  rM rM rM rM

Deferred tax assets  (391,643) (49,315) (341,185) –
Deferred tax liabilities  – – – –

   (391,643) (49,315) (341,185) –
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15. DeFerreD taX (aSSetS)/LIaBILItIeS (CoNt’D)

Deferred tax assets:

   Unutilised 
   business losses  ICpS others total
   rM rM rM rM

Group    
At 1 January 2016  (37,879) – (11,436) (49,315)
Recognised in profit or loss  (576) – – (576)
Recognised in equity  – (341,185) – (341,185)
Exchange differences  (567) – – (567)

at 31 December 2016  (39,022) (341,185) (11,436) (391,643)

Group    
At 1 January 2015  (182,798) – (11,436) (194,234)
Recognised in profit or loss  124,154 – – 124,154
Overprovision in prior years  39,799 – – 39,799
Exchange differences  (19,034) – – (19,034)

at 31 December 2015  (37,879) – (11,436) (49,315)

   
Company    
At 1 January 2016  – – – –
Recognised in equity  – (341,185) – (341,185)

at 31 December 2016  – (341,185) – (341,185)

at 31 December 2015  – – – –

Deferred tax Liabilities:

 Group Company
  2016 2015 2016 2015
  rM rM rM rM

plant and equipment
At 1 January  – 39,799 – –
Overprovision in prior years  – (39,799) – –

At 31 December   – – – –

 The deferred tax assets are recognised for unutilised business losses of a subsidiary as the management considered 
it probable that the future taxable profits of the subsidiary based on the projected future profits will be available against 
which they can be utilised.
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15. DeFerreD taX (aSSetS)/LIaBILItIeS (CoNt’D)

 Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items as it is not probable that certain of the 
subsidiaries will generate sufficient future taxable profits against which it can be utilised: 

  Group
     2016 2015
     rM rM

   
Unutilised business losses    4,791,000 6,682,000
Unutilised capital allowances    4,511,600 4,511,600

16. INVeNtorIeS 

  Group
     2016 2015
     rM rM

At cost:   
Raw materials    1,493,032 878,853
Finished goods    8,249,777 3,532,121
Goods in transit    2,075,582 1,209,511
Work in progress    1,080,790 1,928,480

     12,899,181 7,548,965

17. traDe reCeIVaBLeS 

  Group
     2016 2015

     rM rM
   
Third parties    27,806,541 17,495,679
Less: Allowance for impairment    (484,400) (311,320)

     27,322,141 17,184,359

 
 Movement in allowance for impairment (individually impaired) during the financial year are as follows:

  Group
     2016 2015

     rM rM
   
At 1 January    311,320 253,068
Addition (Note 8)    467,603 –
Reversal of impairment loss on trade receivable (Note 8)   (299,647) –
Exchange differences    5,124 58,252

At 31 December    484,400 311,320

 The Group’s normal trade credit terms are 30 days to 90 days (2015: 30 days to 90 days). Other credit terms are assessed 
and approved on a case-by-case basis.

 The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk that may arise from exposures to a single debtor or to group of 
debtors. Trade receivables are non-interest bearing.

 They are recognised at their original invoice amounts which represent their fair values on initial recognition.  
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17. traDe reCeIVaBLeS (CoNt’D)

 Ageing analysis of trade receivables

 The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables are as follows:

  Group
     2016 2015
     rM rM

Neither past due nor impaired    24,040,341 14,059,677

1 to 30 days past due not impaired    2,410,579 3,079,176
31 to 60 days past due not impaired    525,536 45,506
More than 60 days past due not impaired   345,685 –
 
     3,281,800 3,124,682
Impaired    484,400 311,320

     27,806,541 17,495,679

Receivables that are neither past due nor impaired

 Trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are creditworthy debtors with good payment records with the 
Group.

 None of the Group’s trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired have been renegotiated during the financial 
year.

 Receivables that are past due but not impaired

 The Group has trade receivables amounting to RM3,281,800 (2015: RM3,124,682) that are past due at reporting date 
but not impaired.

 The balances of receivables that are past due but not impaired are unsecured in nature. The management is confident 
that these receivables are recoverable as these accounts are still active.

 The currency exposure profiles of trade receivables are as follows:

  Group
     2016 2015
     rM rM

   
Hong Kong Dollars    1,299,888 848,556
Singapore Dollars    3,553 –
US Dollars    922,113 925,988
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18. otHer reCeIVaBLeS

 Group Company
  2016 2015 2016 2015
  rM rM rM rM

 
Amount due from subsidiaries  – – 7,761,951 10,590,529
Sales tax and purchase tax recoverable  3,887,511 1,638,101 – –
Deposits  917,136 383,775 11,120 11,190
Prepayments  255,282 310,286 4,427 208,612
Sundry receivables   447,205 193,012 1,000 1,000

   5,507,134 2,525,174 7,778,498 10,811,331
Less: Allowance for impairment  – – (6,083,329) (4,342,265)

   5,507,134 2,525,174 1,695,169 6,469,066

Movements in allowance for impairment (individually impaired) during the financial year are as follows:

 Group Company
  2016 2015 2016 2015
  rM rM rM rM

At 1 January  – 571,791 4,342,265 4,342,265
Additional (Note 8)  – – 1,741,064 –
Reversal of impairment on other 
 receivables (Note 8)  – (629,812) – –
Exchange difference  – 58,021 – –

At 31 December   – – 6,083,329 4,342,265

 Other receivables that are individually determined to be impaired at the reporting date relate to debtors that are in 
significant financial difficulties and have defaulted on payments. These receivables are not secured by any collateral or 
credit enhancements.

 The amounts due from related parties are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are repayable on demand.

 The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk that may arise from exposures to a single debtor or to groups 
of debtors. 98% (2015: 98%) of the Company’s receivables are due from subsidiaries.

 The currency exposure profiles of other receivables are as follows:

 Group Company
  2016 2015 2016 2015
  rM rM rM rM

US Dollars  – – 2,681,286 3,095,364
Singapore Dollars  30,662 36,901 – 4,083,509
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19. CaSH aND BaNK BaLaNCeS

 Group Company
  2016 2015 2016 2015
  rM rM rM rM

Cash on hand and at banks/ Cash and 
 cash equivalents  14,607,209 4,859,231 9,339,659 340,801

The currency exposure profiles of cash and bank balances are as follows:

 Group Company
  2016 2015 2016 2015
  rM rM rM rM

Hong Kong Dollars  7,663 11,028 – –
Renminbi  17,630 7,335 – –
Singapore Dollars  342,555 4,789 – –
US Dollars  192,692 187,599 151,294 3,765

20. SHare CapItaL

 Group and Company
 Number of ordinary Shares amount
 of rM0.10 each

   2016 2015    2016    2015
     rM rM

authorised:
At 1 January  500,000,000 500,000,000 50,000,000 50,000,000
Created during the year  1,250,000,000 – 125,000,000 –

At 31 December  1,750,000,000 500,000,000 175,000,000 50,000,000

Issued and fully paid:
At 1 January  216,607,200 206,151,400 21,660,720 20,615,140
Conversion of ICPS  70,223,025 – 7,022,303 –
Issuance of shares pursuant to 
 exercise of warrants  – 10,455,800 – 1,045,580

At 31 December  286,830,225 216,607,200 28,683,023 21,660,720

 The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by the Company. All ordinary shares 
carry one vote per share without restrictions and rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

 WarraNtS-a 2011/2021

 In year 2011, the Company issued renounceable rights issue of 60,847,500 new ordinary shares together with 60,847,500 
free detachable warrants on the basis of 3 rights shares together with 3 detachable warrants for every 4 ordinary shares 
of the Company. This exercise price is subject to adjustment in accordance with the basis set out in the deed poll.

 The warrants may be exercised at any time commencing on the date of issue of warrants on 19 September 2011 but 
not later than 18 September 2021. Any warrants which have not been exercised at date of maturity will lapse and cease 
to be valid for any purpose.
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20. SHare CapItaL (CoNt’D)

 WarraNtS-a 2011/2021 (Cont’d)

 The new ordinary shares allotted and issued upon exercise of the warrants shall be fully paid and rank pari passu with 
the then existing ordinary shares of the Company. The warrant holders will not have any voting rights in any general 
meeting of the Company unless the warrants are exercised into new ordinary shares and registered prior to the date of 
the general meeting of the Company.

 During the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the number of Warrants-A 2011/2021 have been adjusted in 
accordance with the provisions of Deed Poll 2011 as a result of the Rights issue of ICPS. Up to 9,223,144 additional 
Warrants-A shall be issued to the holders of Warrants-A. The number of Warrants-A was adjusted from 50,390,800 to 
59,613,944.

 The movement of the Company’s Warrants-A 2011/2021 are as followed:

      Number of 
      Warrants-a 
      2011/2021 
      Unit
 
At 1 January 2015     60,846,600
Exercised      (10,455,800)

At 31 December 2015 / 1 January 2016    50,390,800
Adjustment for Rights Issue     9,223,144

At 31 December 2016     59,613,944

 WarraNtS-B 2016/2021

 During the financial year ended 31 December 2016, 649,821,600 irredeemable convertible preference shares (“ICPS”) were 
issued pursuant to a renounceable rights issues on basis of 3 ICPS for every 1 existing ordinary share of RM0.10 each 
held in the Company, at an issue price of RM0.025 per ICPS payable in full upon acceptance together with 43,321,388 
free detachable warrants (“Warrants-B”) on the basis of 1 free warrants-B for every 15 ICPS.

 Warrants-B 2016/2021 is constituted by a Deed Poll dated 25 April 2016.

 The salient features of the Warrants-B 2016/2021 are as followed:

(a) The issue date of Warrants-B is pursuant to the Rights Issue of ICPS and is expired on the date preceding the 5th 
anniversary of the Issue Date. Any Warrants-B not exercised at expiry date will lapse and cease to be valid for any 
purpose;

(b) The exercise price and the number of outstanding Warrants-B are subject to the adjustments in accordance with 
the term and provisions of the Deed Poll; 

(c) The rights of Warrants-B holder to subscribe the Company ordinary shares under a Warrant-B at exercise price 
and is subjected to the provision of the Deed Poll; and

(d) Upon exercise of the Warrants-B into new ordinary shares, such shares shall rank pari passu in all respect with 
the ordinary shares of the Company in issue at the time of exercise except that they shall not be entitled to any 
dividend or other distributions declared in respect of a financial period prior to the financial period. 

 No Warrants-B were exercised during the financial year. As at 31 December 2016, the total numbers of warrants that 
remained unexercised were 43,321,388.
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21.    SHare preMIUM

  Group and Company
     2016 2015
     rM rM
  
At 1 January    2,070,279 2,170,979
Premium utilisation arising from:   
Share issuance expenses    (510,818) (100,700)
Warrants issuance expenses    (1,559,461) –

At 31 December    – 2,070,279

The share premium which is non-distributable represents the premium arising from the issue of shares.
 

22.  IrreDeeMaBLe CoNVertIBLe preFereNCe SHareS

 During the financial year ended 31 December 2016, 649,821,600 ICPS were issued pursuant to a renounceable rights 
issue on the basis of 3 ICPS for every 1 existing ordinary share of RM0.10 each held in the Company at an issue price of 
RM0.025 per ICPS payable in full upon acceptance together with 43,321,388 free detachable warrants (“Warrants-B”) 
on the basis of 1 free warrants-B for every 15 ICPS.

 During the financial year, 

(i) 123,051,300 ICPS were converted into ordinary shares on the basis of 4 ICPS for 1 existing ordinary share; and 

(ii) 39,460,200 ICPS were converted into ordinary shares on the basis of 1 ICPS for 1 existing ordinary share with 
cash consideration of RM0.075 each

The outstanding ICPS as at 31 December 2016 was 487,310,100 units at the Group and the Company levels.

The salient terms of the ICPS were as follows:

(i) ICPS shall be convertible into ordinary shares of the Company during the period from the date of Rights Issue to 
the maturity date on 5 years from issue date. The remaining ICPS that are not converted on the maturity date shall 
be automatically converted into ordinary shares.

(ii) Upon conversion of the ICPS into new ordinary shares, such shares shall rank pari passu in all respects with the 
ordinary shares of the Company except that such new ordinary shares shall not entitle its holders to any dividends, 
rights, allotments and/or other distributions on or prior to the relevant date of allotment of new ordinary shares 
arising from the conversion of the ICPS. 

(iii) ICPS may be converted into new ordinary shares in the following manners:

(a) by surrendering for cancellation the ICPS with an aggregate par value equivalent to the conversion price; or

(b) by surrendering for cancellation such number of ICPS with an aggregate par value below the conversion 
price, subject to a minimum of 1 ICPS, and paying the difference between the par value of ICPS surrendered 
and the conversion price in cash, for every 1 new ordinary share.

(iv) A cumulative preference dividend rate per annum of 10 sen per 100 ICPS shall be payable out of post taxation 
profits. Dividends of ICPS holders of less than 100 ICPS shall be pro-rated based on such number of the ICPS 
held by the ICPS holder. No dividends shall be paid on the ordinary shares of the Company unless the dividends 
on the ICPS have first been paid.
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22.  IrreDeeMaBLe CoNVertIBLe preFereNCe SHareS (CoNt’D)

 ICPS – Equity Component Movement

  Group and Company
     2016 2015
     rM rM
   
At 1 January    – –
Issued during the year    16,245,540 –
Deferred tax effects on conversion (Note 15)   341,185 –
Liability portion of ICPS    (1,421,601) –
Converted into ordinary shares of the Company   (4,062,788) –

At 31 December    11,102,336 –

 ICPS – Liability Component Movement

  Group and Company
     2016 2015
     rM rM
   
At 1 January    – –
Issued during the year    1,895,685 –
Converted into ordinary shares of the Company   (474,084) –

At 31 December    1,421,601 –

23. reSerVeS

 Group Company
  2016 2015 2016 2015
  rM rM rM rM

Foreign exchange reserve   1,992,747 1,479,679 – –
Warrants reserve   3,032,497 – 3,032,497 –

   5,025,244 1,479,679 3,032,497 –

Foreign exchange reserve

  Group
     2016 2015
     rM rM

At 1 January    1,479,679 194,327
Arising during the year    513,068 1,285,352

At 31 December    1,992,747 1,479,679

 
 The foreign exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial 

statements of foreign subsidiaries whose functional currencies are different from that of the Group’s presentation currency. It 
is also used to record the exchange differences arising from monetary items which form part of the Group’s net investment 
in foreign operations, where the monetary item is denominated in either the functional currency of the reporting entity or 
the foreign operations.
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23. reSerVeS (CoNt’D)

 Warrants reserve

 Warrants reserve arose from the rights issues together with free detachable warrants which is measured at fair value on 
the date of issuance. Warrants reserve is transferred to the share premium account upon the exercise of warrants and 
the warrants reserve in relation to unexercised warrants at the expiry of the warrant periods will be transferred to retained 
earnings.

 The warrants reserve comprised the followings:

  Group and Company
     2016 2015
     rM rM
   
Warrants-B    3,032,497 –

Warrants-B movement 

  Group and Company
     2016 2015
     rM rM
   
At 1 January    – –
Issued during the year    3,032,497 –
At 31 December    3,032,497 –

 The fair value of the warrants-B is derived at using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the assumptions as follow:

Exercise price RM0.10
Tenure  5 years
Share price of the Company as at latest practicable date 18 April 2016 RM0.1206
Volatility rate  85.01%
Risk free rate  3.516%

24. BorroWINGS 

  Group
     2016 2015

     rM rM

Current
Secured:    
Obligation under finance lease (Note 25)   93,829 79,231

Non-Current   
Secured:   
Obligation under finance lease (Note 25)   173,483 251,928

total borrowings    267,312 331,159

total borrowings   
Obligation under finance lease (Note 25)   267,312 331,159
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25. oBLIGatIoN UNDer FINaNCe LeaSe

  Group
     2016 2015

     rM rM

Future minimum finance lease payments:   
Not later than 1 year    102,774 90,913
Later than 1 year and not later than 2 years   90,371 83,924
Later than 2 years and not later than 5 years   92,210 185,721

 
     285,355 360,558
Less: Future finance charges    (18,043) (29,399)

Present value of obligation under finance lease (Note 24)   267,312 331,159

analysis of present value of finance lease liabilities:   
Not later than 1 year    93,829 79,231
Later than 1 year and not later than 2 years   173,483 75,615
Later than 2 years and not later than 5 years   – 176,313

 
     267,312 331,159

 The obligation under finance lease is denominated in Singapore Dollars and bears interest at the reporting date at rate 
of 3.25% (2015: 3.25%) per annum.

26. traDe paYaBLeS

 Trade payables are non-interest bearing and the normal trade credit terms granted to the Group range from 30 to 120 
days (2015: 30 to 120 days). 

 The currency exposure profiles of trade payables are as follows:

  Group
     2016 2015

     rM rM
    
Singapore Dollars    31,330 –
US Dollars    297,353 72,077
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27. otHer paYaBLeS
 
 Group Company
  2016 2015 2016 2015
  rM rM rM rM

Current
Accruals  2,436,222 2,179,498 90,661 170,737
Amount due to a subsidiary  – – 127,138 –
Provision for unutilised leave  350,258 151,889 – –
Sundry payables  4,583,037 1,041,540 65,051 49,549

 
   7,369,517 3,372,927 282,850 220,286

Non-current
Sundry payable  10,004 27,742 – –

total   7,379,521 3,400,669 282,850 220,286

Amount due to a subsidiary is unsecured, non-interest bearing and is repayable upon demand

The currency exposure profiles of other payables are as follows:

 Group Company
  2016 2015 2016 2015
  rM rM rM rM

Hong Kong Dollars  1,503 86,110 – –
Singapore Dollars  594,516 371,711 – –

28. CoMMItMeNtS

 rental commitments

 The Group and the Company have entered into non-cancellable operating lease agreements for use of factory, office and 
equipment. These leases have an average life of between 1 and 5 years with renewal option included in the contracts. 
There are no restrictions placed upon the Group and the Company by entering into the leases.

 The future aggregate minimum lease payments under the non-cancellable operating lease contracted as at reporting 
date but not recognised as liabilities are as follow: 

 Group Company
  2016 2015 2016 2015
  rM rM rM rM

      
 

Payable within one year  3,124,698 1,433,616 33,000 36,000
Payable more than one year but not 
 more than five years  12,354,391 6,615,500 – 33,000

   15,479,089 8,049,116 33,000 69,000
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29. SIGNIFICaNt reLateD partY DISCLoSUreS

 Identity of related parties

 For the purpose of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the Group and the Company if the 
Group and the Company have the ability to directly control the party or exercise significant influence over the party in 
making financial and operating decision, or vice versa, or where the Group and the Company and the party are subject 
to common control or common significant influence. Related parties may be individuals or other entities. 

 The Group and the Company have related party relationships with their subsidiaries and key management personnel.

  Company
     2016 2015
     rM rM

Subsidiaries    
Recovery expenses paid     (207,435) (328,938)
Recovery expenses charged     363,740 207,845

The key management personnel compensations are as follows:

 Group Company
  2016 2015 2016 2015

   rM rM rM rM

Key management personnel 

Directors
Salaries and other emoluments  3,191,267 2,902,901 131,757 270,157
Defined contribution plan  138,772 79,558 13,620 18,600
Benefits-in-kind  17,691 14,852 – –

 
   3,347,730 2,997,311 145,377 288,757

other key management personnel
Salaries and other emoluments  180,707 194,062 180,707 194,062
Defined contribution plan  21,600 20,352 21,600 20,352

 
   202,307 214,414 202,307 214,414

   3,550,037 3,211,725 347,684 503,171

30. FaIr VaLUeS oF FINaNCIaL INStrUMeNtS

(a) Fair value of the financial instruments 

 The Group and the Company categorise fair value measurement using a fair value hierarchy that is dependent on 
the valuation inputs used as follows:

(i) Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities that the Group and 
the Company can access at measurement date;

(ii) Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, 
either directly or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

(iii) Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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30. FaIr VaLUeS oF FINaNCIaL INStrUMeNtS (CoNt’D)

(a) Fair value of the financial instruments (cont’d)

 The Group and the Company do not have any financial assets and financial liabilities carried at fair value nor classified 
any financial assets and financial liabilities in Level 1 to Level 3 as at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015.

(b) Financial instruments that are not carried at fair value

 Financial instruments classified as loans and receivables and financial liabilities are carried at amortised cost.
 
 The carrying amount of these financial instruments are reasonable approximation of their fair value due to short-

term nature:

  Note
 
Trade receivables 17
Other receivables 18
Cash and bank balances 19
Borrowings  24
Trade payables 26
Other payables (current) 27
Other payable (non-current) 27

 The carrying value of current financial assets and current financial liabilities of the Group and the Company 
approximate their values due to their short term nature whilst the carrying value of hire purchase payables is 
estimated to be approximate the fair value estimated based on the current rates available for borrowing with the 
same maturity profile.

 The carrying amount of the non-current other payable is reasonable approximation of fair value due to the insignificant 
impact of discounting.

(c) Categories of financial instruments

(i) Financial assets

    Note 2016 2015
     rM rM

Group
Loans and receivables
Trade receivables   17 27,322,141 17,184,359
Other receivables   18 5,507,134 2,525,174
Cash and bank balances   19 14,607,209 4,859,231

     47,436,484 24,568,764

Company
Loans and receivables
Other receivables   18 1,695,169 6,469,066
Cash and bank balances   19 9,339,659 340,801

     11,034,828 6,809,867
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30. FaIr VaLUeS oF FINaNCIaL INStrUMeNtS (CoNt’D)

(c) Categories of financial instruments (Cont’d)

(ii) Financial liabilities

    Note 2016 2015
     rM rM

Group
Financial liabilities measured at 
 amortised cost
Trade payables   26 22,261,532 12,415,521
Other payables   27 7,379,521 3,400,669
Borrowings   24 267,312 331,159

     29,908,365 16,147,349

Company
Financial liabilities measured at 
 amortised cost
Other payables  27  282,850 220,286

 
31. FINaNCIaL rISK MaNaGeMeNt oBJeCtIVeS aND poLICIeS

 The Group’s and the Company’s activities expose them to a variety of financial risk: liquidity risk, market risk (including 
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk) and credit risk. The Group’s and the Company’s overall risk management strategy 
seeks to minimise adverse effects from the unpredictability of financial markets on the Group’s and the Company’s financial 
performance. The Group and the Company may use relevant financial instruments to manage certain risks. Such financial 
instruments are not held for trade or speculative purposes.

(a) Liquidity risk

 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group or the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated 
with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial assets.

 To manage liquidity risk, the Group and the Company maintain a level of cash equivalent and funding facilities deemed 
adequate by management to finance their operations. In assessing the adequacy of the facilities, management 
reviews its working capital requirements.

 analysis of financial instruments by remaining contractual maturities

 The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company’s financial liabilities at the reporting 
date based on contractual undiscounted repayment obligations.

    on demand or  
    within 1 year 1 to 5 years total
    rM rM rM

Group
31 December 2016     
Trade payables   22,261,532 – 22,261,532
Other payables   7,369,517 10,004 7,379,521
Borrowings   93,829 173,483 267,312

    29,724,878 183,487 29,908,365
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31. FINaNCIaL rISK MaNaGeMeNt oBJeCtIVeS aND poLICIeS (CoNt’D)

(a) Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

    on demand or  
    within 1 year 1 to 5 years total
    rM rM rM

31 December 2015     
Trade payables   12,415,521 – 12,415,521
Other payables   3,372,927 27,742 3,400,669
Borrowings   79,231 251,928 331,159

    15,867,679 279,670 16,147,349

      on demand or 
      within 1 year
      rM

Company 
31 December 2016 
Other payables     282,850

31 December 2015 
Other payables     220,286

(b) Interest rate risk 

 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of the future cash flows of the Group’s or the Company’s future 
instruments will fluctuate because of change in market interest rates.

 The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk arises primarily from its borrowings; the Group has no substantial long 
term interest-bearing assets as at 31 December 2016. The investments in financial assets are mainly short term 
in nature and they are not held for speculative purposes. 

 Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Borrowings issued at fixed 
rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The interest rate that the Group will be able to obtain on 
debt financing will depend on market conditions at that time, and may differ from the rates the Group has secured 
currently. 

 The interest rates and repayment terms of interest-bearing financial instruments are disclosed in the respective 
notes to the financial statements.

 The Group is not exposed to any significant market risk for changes in interest rates. Hence, no sensitivity analysis 
is presented.

(c) Foreign Currency risk

 Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 
of changes in foreign exchange rates.

 The Group has transactional currency exposures that are denominated in a currency other than respective functional 
currencies of Group entities, primarily Ringgit Malaysia (“RM”), Renminbi (“RMB”) and US Dollars (“USD”). The 
foreign currencies in which these transactions are denominated are mainly US Dollars (“USD”), Singapore Dollars 
(“SGD”) and Hong Kong Dollars (“HKD”).
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31. FINaNCIaL rISK MaNaGeMeNt oBJeCtIVeS aND poLICIeS (CoNt’D)

(c) Foreign Currency risk (Cont’d)

 The Group faces foreign exchange risk as its borrowing is denominated in foreign currency or whose price is 
influenced by its benchmark price movements in foreign currency (especially USD) as quoted on international 
markets.

 The Group does not have any formal hedging policy for its foreign exchange exposure and did not actively engage 
in activities to hedge its foreign currency exposures during the financial year. The Group seeks to manage the foreign 
currency risk by constructing natural hedges where it matches revenue and expenses in any single currency.

 The Group is also exposed to currency translation risk arising from its net investments in foreign operations. The 
Group’s net investment in Singapore, People’s Republic of China and United States of America are not hedged as 
currency position in RMB and USD are considered to be long-term in nature.

 Sensitivity analysis for foreign currency risk

 The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Group’s and the Company’s loss net of tax to change in the 
USD, SGD and HKD exchange rates against the respective functional currencies of the Group’s entities, with all 
other variables held constant.

 Effect on (loss)/profit before tax:

 Group Company
  2016 2015 2016 2015

   rM rM rM rM

USD against RM
(2016: 6% , 2015: 15%)
- strengthened  49,048 128,804 113,303 743,791
- weakened  (49,048) (128,804) (113,303) (743,791)

SGD against RM
(2016: 2%, 2015: 13%)
- strengthened  (10,328) (62,188) 2,543 653,361
- weakened  10,328 62,188 (2,543) (653,361)

HKD against RM
(2016: 2%, 2015: 2% )
- strengthened  26,121 15,470 – –
- weakened  (26,121) (15,470) – –

(d) Credit risk

 Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments should a counterparty default 
on its obligations. The Group’s and the Company’s exposure to credit risk arises primarily from trade and other 
receivables. For other financial assets (including cash and bank balances), the Group and the Company minimise 
credit risk by dealing with reputable banks with high credit ratings.

 The Group’s objective is to seek continual revenue growth while minimising losses incurred due to increased credit 
risk exposure. The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties. In addition, receivable balances 
are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.
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31. FINaNCIaL rISK MaNaGeMeNt oBJeCtIVeS aND poLICIeS (CoNt’D)

(d) Credit risk (Cont’d)

 The maximum exposure to credit risk in the event that the counterparties fail to perform their obligations as at the 
end of the financial year in relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of those 
assets as stated in the statements of financial position.

 Significant concentrations of credit risk

 Concentrations of credit risk exist when changes in economics, industry or geographical factors similarly affect 
counterparties whose aggregate credit exposure is significant in relation to the Group’s total credit exposure. The 
Group has no significant concentration of credit risks with exposure spread over a large number of counterparties 
and customers.

 receivables and other financial assets

 Risk management objective, policies and processes for managing the risk

 Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Deposits 
with banks are placed with or entered into with reputable banks with high credit ratings and no history of default.

 Exposure to credit risk

 The maximum exposure to credit risks arising from receivables is represented by the carrying amounts in the 
statements of financial position. 

 Management has taken reasonable steps to ensure that receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are 
stated at their net realisable values. The Group uses aging analysis to monitor the credit quality of the receivables.

 Impairment losses

 The Group maintains an aging analysis in respect of trade receivables only. The aging of trade receivables as at 
the reporting date is disclosed in Note 17. 

 The movement in the impairment loss of trade and other receivables is disclosed in Notes 17 and 18. The allowance 
account is used to record impairment losses. Unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is possible, 
the amount considered irrecoverable is written off against the receivable directly.

 amounts due from subsidiaries

 Risk management objective, policies and processes for managing the risk

 The Company provides advances to its subsidiaries. The Company monitors the results of the subsidiaries regularly. 

 Exposure to credit risk

 The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by their carrying amounts in the statements of financial position. 

 Impairment losses

 As at the reporting date, there was no indication that the amounts due from related parties are not recoverable, 
except for those amounts for which an impairment loss had been made. 
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32. CapItaL MaNaGeMeNt

 The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy 
capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value.

 The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To 
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholder, return capital to 
shareholder or issue new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the years ended 
31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015. 

 The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Group 
includes within net debt, trade and other payables and borrowings, less cash and bank balances. Capital includes equity 
attributable to the owners.

 The Group’s strategy is to maintain the gearing ratio at a very low level.

 
33. SIGNIFICaNt eVeNtS

(a) On 15 June 2016, the Company had completed the following listing of and quotation for the following securities 
on ACE Market of Bursa Malaysia:

(i) 649,821,600 ICPS issued pursuant to the Rights Issue of ICPS;

(ii) 43,321,388 Warrants-B issued pursuant to the rights Issue of ICPS, and;

(iii) 9,223,144 additional Warrants-A issued pursuant to the relevant adjustment clauses of the deed poll governing 
the Warrants-A dated 24 June 2011.

(b) On 30 June 2016, the Company had entered into a Heads of Agreement (“HOA”) with third parties for the acquisition 
of 510,000 ordinary shares of RM1 each, representing 51% equity interest, in Kejuruteraan Asastera Sdn. Bhd. 
(“KASB”) from the third parties.

 
 On 14 August 2016, both parties mutually agreed to terminate the HOA. 

(c) On 4 July 2016, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, namely RCI had accepted an award of contract from 
DirecTV Latin America LLC to undertake the manufacturing of HDMI devices for year 2017 and 2018. The contract 
will commence from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2018.

(d) On 14 September 2016, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, namely RCI had entered into a Distribution 
Agreement with Venus Group Inc. for the distribution of charging station products manufactured or distributed by 
RCI.

34. SUBSeQUeNt eVeNtS

(a) On 13 January 2017, the Company had subscribed for additional 727,388 ordinary shares of SGD1 each in the 
share capital of its wholly-owned subsidiary, Rapid Conn (S) Pte. Ltd..

(b) On 23 January 2017, the Company had additional issuance of 2,100,000 ordinary shares of RM0.10 each through 
conversion of ICPS of RM0.025 each.

(c) On 14 March 2017, the Company had additional issuance of 500,000 ordinary shares through conversion of ICPS 
of RM0.025 each.
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34. SUBSeQUeNt eVeNtS (CoNt’D)

(d) The Companies Act, 2016 (New Act) was enacted to replace the Companies Act, 1965 and was passed by 
Parliament on 4 April 2016. The New Act was subsequently gazetted on 15 September 2016. On 26 January 
2017, the Minister of Domestic Trade, Co-operatives and Consumerism announced that the effective date of the 
New Act, except for section 241 and Division 8 of Part III of the New Act, to be 31 January 2017.

 Amongst the key changes introduced in the New Act which will affect the financial statements of the Group and 
of the Company would include the removal of the authorised share capital, replacement of no par value shares in 
place of par or nominal value shares, and the treatment of share premium and capital redemption reserves.

 The adoption of the New Act is not expected to have any financial impact on the Group and on the Company for 
the financial year ended 31 December 2016 as any accounting implications will only be applied prospectively, if 
applicable, and the effect of adoption mainly will be on the disclosures to the annual report and financial statements 
of the Group and of the Company for the financial year ending 31 December 2017.

 
35.  SeGMeNt INForMatIoN

 For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units based on their geographical location, and has 
four reportable segments as follows:

(i) Rapid Conn Interconnect (M) Sdn. Bhd. (“RCM”), Borderless Fame Sdn. Bhd. (“BFSB”), and ConnectCounty 
Holdings Berhad (“CCHB”) covering Malaysia;

(ii) Rapid Conn (ShenZhen) Co., Ltd. (“RCC”), ShenZhen Rapid Power Co., Ltd. (formerly known as Rapid Power 
(ShenZhen) Co., Ltd.) (“RCP”) and ShenZhen Rapid Resin Co., Ltd. (“RCR”) covering People’s Republic of China 
(“China”);

(iii) Rapid Conn (S) Pte. Ltd. (“RCS”) covering Singapore; and

(iv) Rapid Conn Inc. (“RCI”) covering United States of America (“USA”).

 Except as indicated above, no operating segment has been aggregated to form the above reportable operating segments

 Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions about 
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on operating profit or 
loss which, in certain respect as explained in the table below, is measured differently from operating profit or loss in the 
consolidated financial statements.
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35.  SeGMeNt INForMatIoN (CoNt’D)

Note: Nature of adjustments and eliminations to arrive at amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements

A Inter-companies revenues are eliminated on consolidation

B There are no other material non-cash expenses

C  The following items are added to/(deducted from) segment (loss)/profit to arrive at “ (Loss)/ Profit before tax” 
presented in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income:

     2016 2015
     rM rM
 
Profit from inter-companies sales     17,470 (412,406)
Profit from inter-companies recovery charges   (784) –
Allowance for impairment loss on 
- investments in subsidiaries    – 99,999
- other receivables    1,741,064 –
Bad debts written off    348 –
Reversal of impairment loss on     
- investments in subsidiaries                                   (9,685,885) –
- trade and other receivables     (2,303,064) –
Foreign currency difference    (16,686) 412,406

     (10,247,537) 99,999

 
D Additions to non-current assets consist of:

     2016 2015
     rM rM
    
Motor vehicles    – 100,835
Office equipment, furniture and fittings   185,151 32,694
Plant and machinery    5,849,726 984,578
Renovation    1,060,859 708,663

     7,095,736 1,826,770

 E The following items are deducted from segment assets to arrive at 
 total assets reported in the consolidated statement of financial position:

     2016 2015
     rM rM

Investments in subsidiaries    (24,997,811) (4,236,034)
Plant and equipment     (10,705) 311,805
Inter-companies assets    (13,507,173) (11,884,097)
Deferred tax liabilities    37,000 37,000

     (38,478,689) (15,771,326)
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35.  SeGMeNt INForMatIoN (CoNt’D)

F The following items are deducted from segment liabilities to arrive at
 total liabilities reported in the consolidated statement of financial position:  

 
     2016 2015
     rM rM

Inter-companies liabilities     (19,583,557) (18,504,562)

GeoGrapHICaL INForMatIoN

 Revenue and non-current assets information based on the geographical location of customers and assets respectively 
are as follows: 

 revenue Non-current assets
  2016 2015 2016 2015
  rM rM rM rM

Malaysia  – – 92,829 80,396
People’s Republic of China  20,946,318 12,314,082 8,411,931 3,175,447
Singapore  25,230,510 21,106,583 1,473,871 1,507,504
USA   35,534,540 31,456,582 167,341 76,287

   81,711,368 64,877,247 10,145,972 4,839,634

 Non-current assets information presented above consist of the following items as presented in the consolidated statement 
of financial position.

     2016 2015
     rM rM
   
Motor vehicles    773,982 889,734
Mouldings    1,119 34,366
Office equipment, furniture and fittings    228,760 154,663
Plant and machinery    7,105,124 2,561,729
Renovation    2,036,987 1,199,142

     10,145,972 4,839,634

36.   aUtHorISatIoN oF FINaNCIaL StateMeNtS For ISSUe

 The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution 
of the directors on 25 April 2017.
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The following breakdown and components of retained earnings are identified and disclosed in accordance with the Guidance 
on Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosure pursuant to 
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants. 

 Group Company
  2016 2015 2016 2015

   rM rM rM rM

Total accumulated losses:
- Realised  21,974,895 23,859,663 (8,055,654) (12,824,988)
- Unrealised  (1,591,367) (1,430,364) – –

  20,383,528 22,429,299 (8,055,654) (12,824,988)
Less:
Consolidation adjustments  (26,218,998) (26,780,648) –  –

Accumulated losses as per financial statements (5,835,470) (4,351,349) (8,055,654) (12,824,988)

SUppLeMeNtarY INForMatIoN pUrSUaNt to 
bUrSa malaYSIa SeCUrITIeS berHaD lISTInG reQUIremenTS
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StatIStICS oF 
SHareHolDInGS

as at 5 april 2017

Total Number of Issued Shares : RM29,035,522.50 comprising of 216,607,200 ordinary shares 
  
Class of Shares : Ordinary shares 
  
Voting Rights : One vote per ordinary share

aNaLYSIS BY SIZe oF SHareHoLDINGS

     
1 - 99 52 3.58 2,046 0.00
100 - 1,000 252 17.37 120,420 0.04
1,001 - 10,000 437 30.12 2,304,125 0.79
10,001 - 100,000 500 34.46 21,592,920 7.44
100,001 – 14,517,760* 206 14.20 165,855,214 57.12
14,517,761 and above ** 4 0.28 100,480,500 34.61
    
Total: 1,451 100.00 290,355,225 100.00

Notes:-
* Less than 5% of issued holdings
** 5% and above of issued holdings

SUBStaNtIaL SHareHoLDerS BASED ON THE REGISTER OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AS AT 5 APRIL 2017

 No. of ordinary Shares
 Direct   Indirect
No. Name Interest % Interest %

1. Ace Credit (M) Sdn. Bhd. 40,778,000 14.04 – –
2. Ahmad Fuzi Bin Abdul Razak 36,352,500 12.52 – –
3. Chang Choon Ming 27,555,000 9.49 – –
4. Ang Chuang Juay 17,014,124 5.86 – –

DIreCtorS’ SHareHoLDINGS IN THE COMPANY BASED ON THE REGISTER OF DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS AS 
AT 5 APRIL 2017

 No. of ordinary Shares
 Direct   Indirect
Name of Directors Interest % Interest %

Chang Choon Ming 27,555,000 9.49 – –
Ang Chuang Juay 17,014,124 5.86 – –
Hong Cheong Liang – – – –
Lim Bee San – – – –
Mok Shiaw Hang – – – –
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STaTISTICS of SHareHolDInGS
as at 5 april 2017
(cont’d)

top 30 SeCUrItIeS aCCoUNt HoLDerS (orDINarY SHareS) AS PER RECORD OF DEPOSITORS AS AT 5 APRIL 2017

  No. of
No. Name Issued Shares %
   
1. MERCSEC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. 40,778,000 14.04
 - Pledged Securities Account for Ace Credit (M) Sdn. Bhd. 

2. MERCSEC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. 23,350,000 8.04
 - Pledged Securities Account for Chang Choon Ming 

3. Ahmad Fuzi Bin Abdul Razak 19,430,400 6.69

4. JF Apex Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. 16,922,100 5.83
 - Pledged Securities Account for Ahmad Fuzi Bin Abdul Razak 

5. AMSEC Nominees (Asing) Sdn. Bhd. 11,665,752 4.02
 - Pledged Securities Account for Ang Chuang Juay 

6. Chng Seng Chye (Chng Hung Seng) 7,800,082 2.69

7. Cheah Hock Choon 7,093,100 2.44

8. Ang Chuang Juay 5,348,372 1.84

9. Chin Sin Hong 4,859,400 1.67

10. JF Apex Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. 4,749,300 1.64
 - Pledged Securities Account for Lee Chong Peng 

11. M&A Nominee (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd.
 - Pledged Securities Account for Chang Choon Ming 4,205,000 1.45

12. Lim Puoh Sea 3,400,000 1.17

13. Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. 3,300,000 1.14
 - Pledged Securities Account for Tan Sun Ping 

14. Ace Corporation (M) Sdn. Bhd. 2,100,000 0.72

15. JF Apex Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. 2,036,900 0.70
 - Pledged Securities Account for Ng Kae Wen 

16. TA Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd, 1,971,600 0.68
 - Pledged Securities Account for Sia Beng Heng 

17. Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. 1,900,000 0.65
 - Pledged Securities Account for Lim Huang Fee 

18. MERCSEC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. 1,864,900 0.64
 - Pledged Securities Account for Chung Kah Haur 

19. Wan Wu Yau 1,820,000 0.63

20. JF Apex Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. 1,817,000 0.63
 - Pledged Securities Account for Pey Biing Kuen 

21. Tai Shu Bing 1,800,000 0.62

22. CIMSEC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. 1,750,000 0.60
 - CIMB Bank for Omar Bin Zolkifli 

23. M&A Nominee (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. 1,700,000 0.59
 - Pledged Securities Account for Chan Shek Yee 

24. Wong Chee Boon 1,700,000 0.59

25. Goh Mee Fong 1,699,970 0.59

26. CIMSEC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. 1,560,000 0.54
 - CIMB Bank for Pang Hoi Kee 

27. M&A Nominee (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. 1,550,000 0.53
 - Pledged Securities Account for Chung Kah Haur 

28. Loh Yong Huat 1,535,100 0.53

29. Fong Fui Chin 1,524,800 0.53

30. Chai Wee Kiong 1,500,000 0.52
  
 Total: 182,731,776 62.93
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STaTISTICS of SHareHolDInGS
as at 5 april 2017

(cont’d)

Description : Irredeemable Convertible Preference Shares (“ICPS”)
  
Total Number of Issued Shares : RM12,100,127.50 comprising of 484,005,100 ICPS 
  
Conversion Period : 5 years
  
Maturity Date : 7 June 2021
  
Conversion Ratio/Mode : 1:1 to 4:1 (By cash and/or securities)

aNaLYSIS BY SIZe oF SHareHoLDINGS

 No. of   No. of
Size of Holdings Holders % Shares % 
    
1 - 99 0 0.00 0 0.00
100 - 1,000 7 2.12 900 0.00
1,001 - 10,000 36 10.91 198,400 0.04
10,001 - 100,000 135 40.91 7,390,900 1.53
100,001 – 24,200,254* 148 44.85 208,895,928 43.16
24,200,255 and above ** 4 1.21 267,518,972 55.27
    
Total: 330 100.00 484,005,100 100.00

Notes:-
* Less than 5% of issued holdings
** 5% and above of issued holdings

SUBStaNtIaL SHareHoLDerS BASED ON THE REGISTER OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AS AT 5 APRIL 2017

 No. of Irredeemable Convertible preference Shares
 Direct   Indirect
No. Name Interest % Interest %

1. Ace Credit (M) Sdn. Bhd. 150,000,000 30.99 – –
2. Ace Corporation (M) Sdn. Bhd. 48,441,416 10.01 – –
3. Ang Chuang Juay  51,997,256 10.74 – –
4. Chin Sin Hong 27,080,300 5.60 – –

DIreCtorS’ SHareHoLDINGS IN THE COMPANY BASED ON THE REGISTER OF DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS AS 
AT 5 APRIL 2017

 No. of Irredeemable Convertible preference Shares
 Direct   Indirect
Name of Directors Interest % Interest %

Chang Choon Ming 7,990,000 1.65 – –
Ang Chuang Juay 51,997,256 10.74 – –
Hong Cheong Liang – – – –
Lim Bee San – – – –
Mok Shiaw Hang – – – –
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top 30 SeCUrItIeS aCCoUNt HoLDerS (IrreDeeMaBLe CoNVertIBLe preFereNCe SHareS) AS PER 
RECORD OF DEPOSITORS AS AT 5 APRIL 2017

  No. of
No. Name Issued Shares %
   
1. MERCSEC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. 150,000,000 30.99
 - Pledged Securities Account for Ace Credit (M) Sdn. Bhd. 

2. Ace Corporation (M) Sdn. Bhd. 48,441,416 10.01

3. AMSEC Nominees (Asing) Sdn. Bhd. 41,997,256 8.68
 - Pledged Securities Account for Ang Chuang Juay 

4. Chin Sin Hong 27,080,300 5.60

5. Cheah Hock Choon 12,110,000 2.50

6. Len Chui Phin 11,648,000 2.41

7. JF Apex Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. 10,700,000 2.21
 - Pledged Securities Account for Ng Ke-Xun Genevieve 

8. Ang Chuang Juay 10,000,000 2.07

9. MERCSEC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. 7,990,000 1.65
 - Pledged Securities Account for Chang Choon Ming 

10. Goh Hock Hun 7,132,500 1.47

11. Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. 7,000,000 1.45
 - Pledged Securities Account for Tan Sun Ping 

12. RHB Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. 5,894,800 1.22
 - Cheong Wong Sang 

13. Low Lay Ping 5,890,100 1.22

14. Low Chon 4,833,072 1.00

15. Lee Hsing Yeh 4,680,000 0.97

16. JF Apex Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. 4,100,000 0.85
 - Pledged Securities Account for Lee Chong Peng 

17. Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. 4,000,000 0.83
 - Pledged Securities Account for Tan Yok Hua 

18. Ng Poh Seng 4,000,000 0.83

19. Hooi Den Yen 3,970,000 0.82

20. Lee Chip Hwa 3,648,700 0.75

21. Goh Mee Fong 3,527,510 0.73

22. Lee Hooi Yean 3,330,000 0.69

23. Wong Ken Keong 3,200,000 0.66

24. Chia Lek Sang 3,150,000 0.65

25. Lai Cheung Chen 3,127,600 0.65

26. Yeoh Swee Kim 3,000,000 0.62

27. Loh Kian John 2,589,000 0.53

28. Cheng Poh Wan 2,550,000 0.53

29. HLIB Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd.  2,432,400 0.50
 - Pledged Securities Account for Chia Soo Yee 

30. Kong Kim Chong 2,270,000 0.47
  
 Total: 404,292,654 83.53

STaTISTICS of SHareHolDInGS
as at 5 april 2017
(cont’d)
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StatIStICS oF 
WarranTHolDInGS

as at 5 april 2017

Description                            :  Warrants 2011/2021 (“Warrants-a”)

Total Warrants Issued              : 59,613,944

Maturity Date                         : 8 September 2021

Number of Warrantholders  : 516

analysis by Size of Warrantholdings as per the Record of Depositors

Size of No. of  No. of
Warrantholdings Warrant Holders % Warrants %

1 – 99 105 20.35 4,789 0.01
100 – 1,000 29 5.62 12,903 0.02
1,001 - 10,000 57 11.05 315,987 0.53
10,001 – 100,000 223 43.22 11,213,016 18.81
100,001 – 2,980,696 * 101 19.57 44,017,449 73.84
2,980,697 and above ** 1 0.19 4,049,800 6.79

Total:  516 100.00 59,613,944 100.00

Notes:-
* Less than 5% of issued holdings
** 5% and above of issued holdings
 

top 30 SeCUrItIeS aCCoUNt HoLDerS (WarraNtS) as per the Record of Depositors 

  No. of 
No. Name of Warrantholders Warrants %
   
1. Pamela Ong Mei Yu 4,049,800 6.79

2. Chng Seng Chye (Chng Hung Seng) 2,028,700 3.40

3. Goh Hock Hun 1,959,100 3.29

4. Grace Cheah Yeong Sen 1,700,000 2.85

5. Wong Ken Keong 1,611,500 2.70

6. Lee Chee Kuang 1,600,000 2.68

7. Yap Kon Lian 1,350,000 2.26

8. Lim Lay Peng 1,307,373 2.19

9. Chen Tong Yee 1,300,000 2.18

10. Low Pak Seng 1,183,036 1.98

11. Ng Poh Seng 1,183,036 1.98

12. CIMSEC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. 1,000,000 1.68
 - Pledged Securities Account for Tan Gaik Ai 

13. Goo Maa Hok 1,000,000 1.68

14. Tam Kock Kay @ Tan Kock Kay 1,000,000 1.68

15. HLIB Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn.  Bhd. 910,032 1.53
 - Hong Leong Bank Bhd for Lee Kim Lang 

16. AllianceGroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd 887,336 1.49
 - Pledged Securities Account for Batu Bara Resources  Corporation Sdn. Bhd. 
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top 30 SeCUrItIeS aCCoUNt HoLDerS (WarraNtS) as per the Record of Depositors (Cont’d)

  No. of 
No. Name of Warrantholders Warrants %

17. Tam Tze Sheong 849,419 1.42

18. JF Apex Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. 800,000 1.34
 - Pledged Securities Account for Ooi Yung Ping 

19. Teh Chin Ching 626,736 1.05

20. Public Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. 568,209 0.95
 - Pledged Securities Account for Ho Chi Lin 

21. Cheah Cheow Pheng 518,303 0.87

22. Chu Eng Lai 500,000 0.84

23. Lai Yoke Hoong 500,000 0.84

24. Sia Beng Heng  500,000 0.84

25. TA Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. 500,000 0.84
 - Pledged Securities Account for Sia Beng Heng 

26. Tan Sin Yen 500,000 0.84

27. Tan Wee Jen 500,000 0.84

28. Li Cheng Leng 496,100 0.83

29. HLIB Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn.  Bhd. 473,214 0.79
 - Pledged Securities Account for Ang Bak Khoi 

30. Lee Chooi Fong 473,214 0.79
  
 Total:  31,875,108 53.47

STaTISTICS of WarranTHolDInGS
as at 5 april 2017
(cont’d)
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STaTISTICS of WarranTHolDInGS
as at 5 april 2017

(cont’d)

Description                              :  Warrants 2016/2021 (“Warrants-B”)

Total Warrants Issued              : 59,613,944

Maturity Date                          : 15 June 2021

Number of Warrantholders  : 447

analysis by Size of Warrantholdings as per the Record of Depositors

Size of No. of  No. of
Warrantholdings Warrant Holders % Warrants %

1 – 99 56 12.53 2,841 0.01
100 – 1,000 37 8.28 19,536 0.05
1,001 - 10,000 131 29.31 685,941 1.59
10,001 – 100,000 151 33.78 6,169,349 14.31
100,001 – 2,155,068 * 70 15.66 24,359,023 56.52
2,155,069 and above ** 2 0.45 11,864,700 27.53

Total:  447 100.00 43,101,388 100.00

Notes:-
* Less than 5% of issued holdings
** 5% and above of issued holdings

 
top 30 SeCUrItIeS aCCoUNt HoLDerS (WarraNtS) as per the Record of Depositors 

  No. of 
No. Name of Warrantholders Warrants %

1. Goh Hock Hun 6,752,300 15.67

2. Goh Hock Loong 5,112,400 11.86

3. Grace Cheah Yeong Sen 1,609,700 3.73

4. Lee Mee Kuen 1,600,000 3.71

5. TA Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. 1,500,000 3.48
 - Pledged Securities Account for Sia Beng Heng 

6. Ng Poh Seng 1,000,000 2.32

7. Khong Heng Jian 900,000 2.09

8. Low Yew Seng 900,000 2.09

9. Yap Kon Lian 640,000 1.48

10. Ooi Phuay Gim 616,193 1.43

11. Chen Tong Yee 600,000 1.39

12. Chu Ling Chai 600,000 1.39

13. Khaw Ai Leng 500,000 1.16

14. Li Cheng Leng 500,000 1.16

15. Loh Lian Fatt 500,000 1.16

16. Tan Sin Yen 500,000 1.16
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top 30 SeCUrItIeS aCCoUNt HoLDerS (WarraNtS) as per the Record of Depositors (Cont’d)

  No. of 
No. Name of Warrantholders Warrants %

17. Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. 460,000 1.07
 - Loi Tien Huo 

18. Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. 400,006 0.93
 - Pledged Securities Account for Tan Sun Ping 

19. Chng Seng Chye (Chng Hung Seng) 400,000 0.93

20. Public Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. 400,000 0.93
 - Pledged Securities Account for Yeap Sek Seong 400,000 0.93

21. Public Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd.
 - Pledged Securities Account for Yeoh Bee Chung 

22. Raja Muhammad Bin Raja Omar 350,000 0.81

23. Public Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. 337,500 0.78
 - Pledged Securities Account for Fam Choon Wai 

24. Chong Chi Ping 330,900 0.77

25. Lee Siew Mei 320,000 0.74

26. Chu Eng Lai 300,000 0.70

27. CIMSEC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. 300,000 0.70
 - CIMB Bank for Pang Hoi Kee 

28. Khoo Tee Keah 300,000 0.70

29. Lee Yeow Kiang 300,000 0.70

30. Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd.
 - Tan Yok Hua 300,000 0.70
  
 Total:  28,729,059 66.65

STaTISTICS of WarranTHolDInGS
as at 5 april 2017
(cont’d)
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NotICe oF
annUal General meeTInG

NotICe IS HereBY GIVeN tHat the Fourteenth (“14th”) Annual General Meeting (“aGM”) of the Company will be held at 
Function Room 1, Level 2, Hotel Sri Petaling, 30, Jalan Radin Anum, Bandar Baru Sri Petaling, 57000 Kuala Lumpur, Wilayah 
Persekutuan on Friday, 26 May 2017 at 10:00 a.m. for the following purposes:-

a G e N D a

ordinary Business

1. To receive the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 
31 December 2016 together with the Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

(Refer to Note 8)

2. To approve the payment of Directors’ Fees amounting to RM87,009/- for the financial year 
ended 31 December 2016.

Ordinary Resolution 1

3. To approve an amount of up to RM41,500/- as benefits payable to the Non-Executive 
Directors from 31 January 2017 to the Fifteenth (“15th”) AGM of the Company pursuant 
to Section 230 (1)(b) of the Companies Act, 2016.

Ordinary Resolution 2

4. To recommend the re-election of Mr. Ang Chuang Juay, the Director who is retiring pursuant 
to Article 83 of the Company’s Articles of Association and being eligible, has offered himself 
for re-election.

Ordinary Resolution 3

5.  To recommend the re-election of the following Directors who are retiring pursuant to Article 
90 of the Company’s Articles of Association and being eligible, have each offered themselves 
for re-election:-

(a) Ms. Lim Bee San;

(b) Mr. Chang Choon Ming; and

(c) Mr. Mok Shiaw Hang.

Ordinary Resolution 4

Ordinary Resolution 5

Ordinary Resolution 6

6. To re-appoint Messrs. Moore Stephens Associates PLT as Auditors of the Company until 
the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting and to authorise the Board of Directors 
of the Company to determine their remuneration.

Ordinary Resolution 7

Special Business

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following as Ordinary Resolution:-

7. ordinary resolution 
- authority to Issue Shares pursuant to Sections 75 and 76 of the Companies 

act 2016

Ordinary Resolution 8

“tHat subject to Sections 75 and 76 of the Companies Act 2016, the Articles of Association 
of the Company, and the approvals of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and any other 
governmental/regulatory authorities, the Directors of the Company be and are hereby 
empowered, pursuant to Sections 75 and 76 of the Companies Act, 2016, to issue and allot 
shares in the Company at any time to such person and upon such terms and conditions 
and for such purposes as the Directors of the Company may, in their absolute discretion, 
deem fit, provided that the aggregate number of shares to be issued pursuant to this 
resolution does not exceed ten per centum (10%) of the total number of issued shares of 
the Company for the time being aND tHat such authority shall continue in force until the 
conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company.

aND tHat the Directors of the Company, whether solely or jointly, be and are hereby 
empowered to obtain the approval for the listing of and quotation for the additional shares so 
issued on the ACE Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad aND be hereby authorised 
to do all such acts and things including executing all relevant documents as he/they may 
consider expedient or necessary to complete and give full effect to the abovesaid mandate.”
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noTICe of annUal General meeTInG
(cont’d)

8. To transact any other business of which due notice shall have been given in accordance 
with the Companies Act 2016.

BY orDer oF tHe BoarD

CHUa SIeW CHUaN (MaICSa 0777689)
CHeNG CHIa pING (MaICSa 1032514)
Company Secretaries

Kuala Lumpur
28 April 2017

Notes:

Information for Shareholders/ proxies

1.  In respect of deposited securities, only members whose names appear in the Record of Depositors on 19 May 2017 
(General Meeting Record of Depositors) shall be eligible to attend the Meeting.

2.  A member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint more than one (1) proxy to attend and vote in 
his stead (subject always to a maximum of two (2) proxies at each meeting). Where a member appoints more than one 
(1) proxy, the appointments shall be invalid unless he specifies the proportions of his shareholdings to be represented by 
each proxy.

3.  A proxy may but does not need to be a member of the Company. Notwithstanding this, a member entitled to attend 
and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint any person as his proxy to attend and vote instead of the member at the 
Meeting. There shall be no restriction as to the qualification of the proxy. A proxy appointed to attend and vote at the 
Meeting shall have the same rights as the member to speak at the Meeting.

4.  The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney duly authorised in 
writing or, if the appointor is a corporation, either under its seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised.

5.  Where a member is an authorised nominee as defined under the Securities Industry (Central Depository) Act, 1991, it 
may appoint at least one (1) proxy in respect of each securities account it holds with ordinary shares of the Company 
standing to the credit of the said securities account. 

6.  Where a member of the Company is an exempt authorised nominee which holds ordinary shares in the Company for 
multiple beneficial owners in one securities account (“omnibus account”), there is no limit to the number of proxies 
which the exempt authorised nominee may appoint in respect of each omnibus account it holds.

7.  The instrument appointing a proxy and the power of attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is signed or a 
notarially certified copy of that power or authority, shall be deposited at the Company's Registered Office located at Level 
7, Menara Milenium, Jalan Damanlela, Pusat Bandar Damansara, Damansara Heights, 50490 Kuala Lumpur, Wilayah 
Persekutuan, not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the Meeting or at any adjournment thereof.

audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2016

8.  This agenda item is meant for discussion only, as the provision of Section 340(1)(a) of the Companies Act 2016 does not 
require a formal approval for the Audited Financial Statements from the shareholders. Therefore, this agenda item is not 
put forward for voting.
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payment of Directors’ Fees

9.  The Proposed Directors’ fees for the financial year ended 31 December 2016 amounting to RM87,009/- in total (2015: 
RM96,000/-).

 The Ordinary Resolution 1, if approved, will authorise the payment of Directors’ fees pursuant to Article 92(1) of the Articles 
of Association (“aa”) of the Company. 

Benefits payable to the Non-executive Directors

10.  The proposed benefits payable to the Directors pursuant to Section 230 (1)(b) of the Companies Act, 2016 has earlier been 
reviewed by the Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company, which recognise that the benefits 
payable is in the best interest of the Company for the applicable period between 31 January 2017 to the next Annual 
General Meeting of the Company. The proposed benefits comprised solely of meeting allowance of up to RM41,500/-, 
which will only be accorded based on actual attendance of meeting by the Non-Executive Directors.

re-election of Directors

11.  Article 83 of the AA of the Company states that one-third (1/3) of the Directors shall retire from office and shall be eligible 
for re-election at each AGM. All Directors shall retire from office at least once in each three (3) years but shall be eligible 
for re-election. 

 Article 90 of the AA of the Company states that the Directors shall have power at any time and from time to time, to 
appoint any person to be a Director, wither to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the existing Directors but so that 
the total number of Directors shall not at any time exceed the maximum number fixed in accordance with these Articles. 
Any Director so appointed shall hold office only until the next annual general meeting, and shall then be eligible for re-
election but shall not be taken into account in determining the Directors who are to retire by rotation at that meeting.

 In determining the eligibility of the relevant Directors to stand for re-election at the forthcoming 14th AGM of the Company, 
the Nomination Committee (“NC”) has carried out the following assessments:-

(i) formal review of the performance of the Director, taking into account the results of the latest Board evaluations;
(ii) attendance of Board meetings as well as Board Committee Meetings (where applicable);
(iii) the level of contribution to the Board through his skills and experience;
(iv) experience and strength in qualities;
(v) his level of independence (for Independent Non-Executive Directors only); and 
(vi) ability to act in the best interest of the Company in decision-making.

 In line with Recommendation 3.1 of the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance 2012 (“MCCG 2012”), the Board 
has conducted a separate assessment on the independence of the Independent Non-Executive Directors, the evaluation 
criteria adopted as well as the process of assessment by the Board have been duly elaborated in the Statement on 
Corporate Governance of the Annual Report 2016 of the Company. 

 he Board approved the NC’s recommendation for the retiring Directors pursuant to Article 83 and 90 of the AA of the 
Company, respectively. All the retiring Directors have consented to their re-election, and abstained from deliberation as 
well as decision on their own eligibility to stand for re-election at the relevant NC and Board meetings, where applicable. 

re-appointment of auditors

12.  The Audit Committee (“aC”) have assessed the suitability and independence of the External Auditors and recommended 
the re-appointment of Messrs. Moore Stephen Associates PLT as External Auditors of the Company for the financial year 
ending 31 December 2017. The Board has in turn reviewed the recommendation of the AC and recommended the same 
be tabled to the shareholders for approval at the forthcoming 14th AGM of the Company under Ordinary Resolution 7. 
The evaluation criteria adopted as well as the process of assessment by the AC and Board, respectively, have been duly 
elaborated in the Statement on Corporate Governance of the Annual Report 2016 of the Company.
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explanatory Note to Special Business

13.  authority to Issue Shares pursuant to Sections 75 and 76 of the Companies act 2016

 The ordinary resolution 8 proposed under agenda item 7 above is a renewal of the general mandate for issuance of 
new ordinary shares pursuant to Sections 75 and 76 of the Companies Act 2016, which was granted by the shareholders 
at the last AGM. 

 The Company had been granted a general mandate by its shareholders at the last AGM of the Company held on 26 
May 2016 to issue and allot shares at any time to such persons in their absolute discretion without convening a general 
meeting provided that the aggregate number of shares issued does not exceed ten per centum (10%) of the total number 
of issued shares of the Company.

 The proposed Ordinary Resolution 8, if passed, will give the Directors of the Company, from the date of the above 
Meeting, the authority to issue and allot ordinary shares from the unissued share capital of the Company up to an amount 
not exceeding in total ten per centum (10%) of the total number of issued shares of the Company for the time being for 
such purposes as the Directors of the Company consider would be in the best interest of the Company. There will be 
no adverse effect on the share price in such cases, as the new issuance would not be priced at a discount of more than 
ten per centum (10%) of the weighted average market price for five (5) market days before the price-fixing date. This 
authority will, unless revoked or varied at a general meeting, expire at the conclusion of the next AGM of the Company.

 The authority will provide the Directors certain flexibilities when the need arises to issue additional shares for any possible 
fund raising activities, including but not limited to funding future investment projects, working capital and/or acquisitions 
and, in addition to enhancing efficiency in implementing the same, it will reduce the time and cost that would be involved 
in seeking shareholders’ approval at a general meeting convened solely for such issuance of shares.

  As at the date of this Notice, no new shares in the Company were issued pursuant to the mandate granted to the Directors 
at the 13th AGM held on 26 May 2016 and which will lapse at the conclusion of the 14th AGM.
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✄

 (Incorporated in Malaysia)
(Company No. 618933-D)

ForM oF proXY

*I/We, ...................................................................................................... Company No./NRIC No .....................................................
(full name as per NRIC/Certificate of Incorporation in capital letters)

of …..............................………………………………...……………….....……………………………………………................................
(full address)

being a member of CoNNeCtCoUNtY HoLDINGS BerHaD hereby appoint 

................................................................................................................ NRIC No ............................................................................
(full name as per NRIC in capital letters)

and/ or failing him/ her, 

................................................................................................................ NRIC No ............................................................................
(full name as per NRIC in capital letters)

and/ failing *him/her, the Chairman of the Meeting as *my/our proxy, to vote for *me/us on *my/our behalf at the Fourteenth Annual 
General Meeting of the Company to be held at Function Room 1, Level 2, Hotel Sri Petaling, 30, Jalan Radin Anum, Bandar Baru Sri 
Petaling, 57000 Kuala Lumpur, Wilayah Persekutuan on Friday, 26 May 2017 at 10:00 a.m. and at any adjournment thereof, on the 
following resolutions referred to in the Notice of Fourteenth Annual General Meeting.

*My/Our proxy(ies) *is/are to vote as indicated below:-

ordinary Business For against
ordinary resolution 1 To approve payment of Directors’ fees for the financial year ended 31 

December 2016
ordinary resolution 2 To approve the benefits payable to the Non-Executive Directors from 31 

January 2017 to the Fifteenth Annual General Meeting of the Company
ordinary resolution 3 To re-elect Mr. Ang Chuang Juay as Director (Article 83)
ordinary resolution 4 To re-elect Ms. Lim Bee San as Director (Article 90)
ordinary resolution 5 To re-elect Mr. Chang Choon Ming as Director (Article 90)
ordinary resolution 6 To re-elect Mr. Mok Shiaw Hang as Director (Article 90)
ordinary resolution 7 To re-appoint Messrs. Moore Stephens Associates PLT as Auditors 

of the Company and to authorise the Board of Directors to determine 
their remuneration

Special Business
ordinary resolution 8 Authority to issue shares pursuant to Sections 75 and 76 of the 

Companies Act 2016

(Please indicate with an “X” in the appropriate box against each Resolution how you wish your vote to be cast. If no specific direction 
as to how the proxy shall vote, the proxy shall vote as he/she thinks fit or, at his/her discretion, abstain from voting.)

Signed this_________ day of _________________, 2017   

__________________________________________
Signature(s)/Common Seal of Member(s)  

Notes:
1.  In respect of deposited securities, only members whose names appear in the Record of Depositors on 19 May 2017 (General Meeting Record 

of Depositors) shall be eligible to attend the Meeting.

2.  A member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint more than one (1) proxy to attend and vote in his stead (subject always 
to a maximum of two (2) proxies at each meeting). Where a member appoints more than one (1) proxy, the appointments shall be invalid unless 
he specifies the proportions of his shareholdings to be represented by each proxy.

3.  A proxy may but does not need to be a member of the Company. Notwithstanding this, a member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting 
is entitled to appoint any person as his proxy to attend and vote instead of the member at the Meeting. There shall be no restriction as to the 
qualification of the proxy. A proxy appointed to attend and vote at the Meeting shall have the same rights as the member to speak at the Meeting.

4.  The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney duly authorised in writing or, if the appointor 
is a corporation, either under its seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised.

5.  Where a member is an authorised nominee as defined under the Securities Industry (Central Depository) Act, 1991, it may appoint at least one 
(1) proxy in respect of each securities account it holds with ordinary shares of the Company standing to the credit of the said securities account. 

6.  Where a member of the Company is an exempt authorised nominee which holds ordinary shares in the Company for multiple beneficial owners 
in one securities account (“omnibus account”), there is no limit to the number of proxies which the exempt authorised nominee may appoint in 
respect of each omnibus account it holds.

7.  The instrument appointing a proxy and the power of attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is signed or a notarially certified copy of that 
power or authority, shall be deposited at the Company’s Registered Office located at Level 7, Menara Milenium, Jalan Damanlela, Pusat Bandar 
Damansara, Damansara Heights, 50490 Kuala Lumpur, Wilayah Persekutuan, not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the Meeting or 
at any adjournment thereof.

* Delete if not applicable

Number of shares held

CDS account no.

For appointment of two proxies, percentage of 
shareholdings to be represented by the proxies

No. of shares percentage

Proxy 1

Proxy 2

Total 100%
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